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ocor R







If you have questions regarding this proposed action or how to file an appeal, you may contact
Dr. Ruihong Guo at Ruihong.Guo@ams.usda.gov or by telephone at (202) 720-3252.

Sincerely,

Barbara C. Robinson, Ph.D.
Acting Director
National Organic Program

cc: Mark Bradley, Chief, Accreditation, Auditing, & Training Branch

David W. Trykowski, Director, Compliance, Safety and Security

R. Guo Barbara C. Robinson
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Service

Subject: NOPC-003-09

Dear

Agricultural
Marketing
Service

Notice of Noncompliance

1400 Independence Avenue, S.W.
STOP 0268, Room-2646S
Washington, D.C. 20250-0268




If you have questions regarding this notice of noncompliance or the suitability of proposed
corrective actions, please contact me or Dr. Ruihong Guo, Director, Compliance & Enforcement
Division at Ruihong.Guo@ams.usda.gov or by telephone at (202) 720-3252.

Sincerely,

Miles McEvoy
Deputy Administrator
National Organic Program

cc: Mark Bradley, Chief, Accreditation, International Activities Division
Samantha Simon, Auditing Review & Compliance Branch, Livestock & Seed Programs

R. Guo Miles McEvoi
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USDA Agricultural 1400 Independence Avenue, S.W.
=———=2 Marketing Room 2646-S, STOP 0268

Service Washington, D.C. 20250-0268

NOTICE OF NONCOMPLIANCE

Re: NOPC-003-09 Shamrock Farms Dairy

oo R




If you have any questions regarding this Notice of Noncompliance, please contact Lars Crall,
Regional Accreditation Manager, Accreditation and International Activities Division, at
(202) 205-5536 or at lars.crail@ams.usda.gov.

Sincerely,

Miles V. McEvoy
Deputy Director
National Organic Program

cc:  NOP Compliance and Enforcement Division
ARC Branch
NOP Appeals




Printed: June 4, 2040

CEATITED ORGANIC

ORGANIC INSPECTION REPORT / DAIRY WORK ORDER #8356

299879

This Organic Inspection Record and supporting documentation must be submitted to QAl by the inspector withir
10 business days after the completion of the inspection.

Inspector name:

CPM name;

Work Order number: #8356 P

Name of Certified Entity: Shamrock Farms Co ~ | New [ | Renewal
Facility Name: Same CE ] AP[ | Location [ |

25y

!
|

Date assigned: | May 10, 2010 & A0028178 t
Location (City, State): i Stanfield, AZ 4 3
Location(s) visited by inspector: | 40034 W. Clayton Read

Stanfieid Arizona 85172
USA
Preparation Time Total. | 2 hours ’ [ 2 hours

7.5 bhrs on site

Follow-up Time Total:
| T o

i
} Total:

Time arrived: | 08:30 Time departed: 4.0 nrs prep/fup
Date(s) | Inspected: 12-May-2010 '
Submitted: 19-May-2010

Type of Compliance Plan:

Dairy Producer |

" Contact persoi;

Mr. John Voss

480-988-1452
Email to be assigned

jiim_whitehur shamrockfoods.com

Personnel (& titles) present:

Mr. John Voss, Heard Supervisor
Mr. James Whitehurst, V.P. Asst G.M.
Mr. Frank Boyce, V.P. General Manager,

Brief narrative of operation
inspected (please be sure to
detail number of fields or
processing lines in production
and observed during inspection,
on-site / off-site warehouses,
general & brief description of
production activities, types of
products grown or handled, etc): '

NOP Crop Producer and Dairy Cattle Management for
roducti f 100% ORG raw milk

Organic (ORG) crop production and dairy cattle operations
located approx 50 miles south of Phoenix Arizona USA. All fields
are contiguous and adjacent to Shamrock’s cenventional dairy.
QORG operations are distinctly segregate: separate pasture fields,
milk handling operations and load-out, separate housing area for
ORG cattle. A 10-ft chain link fence divides the two operations,
with one common cross-over point: the Shamrock Farms offices.

.

AESOP I This line reserved for AESOP]
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T & K Feeds, Inc.
P.O. BOX 189
Stanfield, AZ 85172
Ph. 520-424-3622 Fax 520-424-3090

June 1, 2010

Mr. Frank Boyce
Shamrock Farms Company
P.O. Box 280

Stanfield, AZ 85172

Dear Frank,

Apparently affidavits we had completed prior for the dates August 8" — 10, 2009 and
August 20" — 24™ 2009 have been misplaced.

[, Tom Dugan, Jr., state that the trucks we used in hauling manure to Shamrock’s organic
fields on the above referenced dates were indeed washed out prior to loading manure and

entering the organic fields.

If T can be of further service to you in this matter, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Sincerel

Tom Dugan, Jr.
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lanuary 24, 2007

Custom Farm Services
36311 W Hwy 84

PO Box 338
Stanfield AZ 85272

Legal Descriptions: Al of section 14 By
East halt of 23 O i e G

To Whom [t May Concern:

Shamrock Farms Company the agent for property owner Maricopa Farms,LLC is herehy
notifving Custom Farm Services that the above entitled properties are being certified
Organic, Please be aware that any leaking nozzies or chemical discharge from an aerial
applicator would jeopardize the certification and canse economic harm to the farm.
Please be aware of this and aveid flving of the property when ever possible.

hitchurst
Vice President
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P W Clayton Rd. / P.O. Box 280 Stanfield, Anzona 8527"’
" Phone: (480) 988-1452 Fax: (480) 988-1634




CE Nawme: Shamrock Farms Co / Stanfield AZ USA

CEATIFIED CRAANIC

Section 5: Applicant Authorization: NOP 205.403(a)(2)

I, the client, hereby acknowledge that 1 have reviewed and accept these observations of the Inspector and that all
information is true and correct to the best of my knowledge. 1 understand that additional unannounced visits by
QAl may be required, for which [ hereby give my permission. I hereby acknowledge that all corrective actions
noted hy the inspector are recommendations only and may be overturned or added to by QAl, and that I
will implementt corrective actions only after receiving formal notification from QAL

08 /2 4//52 o (0

DATE

ICANT SIGNATURE

‘Section 6: Inspector Authorization:

Under penalty of perjury, 1 swear that [ have reviewed the application and its supporting documents; and that all
of the information I have collected and submitted with this inspection package is true to the best of my
knowledge. 1 understand that if I fraudulently misrepresent information, or violate the terms and conditions of the
Inspection Agreement, 1 am liable for all damages rendered by a court of law, 1 further indemmify and hold
harmtess Quality Assurance International, its agents and all others from liability for mistakes 1 knowingly
commit. In addition, ] attest to the following (please initial).

I. I understand that neither I nor an immediate famify member are currently providing consulting

or in any way involved commercially with this operation. Furthermore, 1 understand that neither
i nor an immediate family member may engage in such activities within the next 12 months without first
informing QAL

- | attest that I have not accepted payment, gifts, or favors of any kind from the operation

nspected.
‘ understand that | am required to submit my inspection report to QAl within 10 days of

inspection. IfT am not able to submit my report in the allotted time frame it must be approved by QAT or
my inspection fee will be subject to a delayed payment penalty of 30 days.

For IFOAM inspections only:

I attest that I arn an active member of a recognized auditor/inspector training
ation_ TOIA .

- I attest that [ have not inspected this operation for more than four consecutive years.
I attest that neither [ nor an immediate family member have provided consuiting services for, or

had a commercial interest in, the applicant/operation ( within the tast (24) twenty-four months).

17-May-2010

INSPECTOR SIGNATURE DATE

Section 7: Report Copy:

A copy of this completed report will be provided to you by QAl per NOP 205.403(e)(2)

Page 22 of 34
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CE Name: Shamrock Farms Co / Stanfield AZ LISA

CERTIRED ORGANIL

M1, Input/Ouiput Balance

Choose a product or ingredient for a particular peried of time or identity preserved lat which includes receipt, processing,
sales and/or storage.

1. Suate product or ingredient, 100% ORG raw mifk produced on Shamrock Farm
ORG dairy, and shipped to Shamrock Processing in
Phoenix Arizona

2. State the relevant lot or period of time | March 2010 {31 days of production)

3. Calculate the conversion factor or 100% milk produced transferred to storage tank and
recovery rate of the product or ingredient | to ocutbound tanker trailer

chosen

4, Calculate the gquantity of the organic 0-fb {milk from tast days of Feb milk shipped out

raw material in inventory at the beginning | prior to March 1)
of the period of time selected

5. State the quantity of raw materials 1,268,760-1b milk produced from average of 643

processed cows {average production of 63.64-1b / day)

6. State the quantity of the Same

product/ingredicent in finished product

7. Calculate the quantity of finished 0 T

product carried over from previous

hatches

8. Taking into account raw and finished Muitiple load outs into Shamrock Processing fleet of 6

product carried over from previous dedicated to ORG tankers verified by:

batches, waste, water additions, purges, o Milk Producers Receipt (wash ticket)

| ete, compare product/ingredient in vs. o Weigh Scale Ticket

product/ingredient out » Milk Samplers Checklist (record of quality
checks, silo loaded from, red-colored seals
for ORG, and tanker ID
Checklist is signed by Shamrock Farm ORG
dairy operator

7. Comment on results and note any Review of milk production records and load out

discrepancies reports for the last twelve months showed no

anomalies in volume of mitk produced, no. of ORG
cows milked, or shipment destination.
Signed Date 17-May-2010
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PLEASE PLACE ALL
NEW DOCUMENTATION
RECEIVED AT
INSPECTION BEHIND
THIS SHEET






John Voss

From: Bruce Tonkin [Btonkin@UDAZ.ORG]
Sent: Thursday, June 09, 2011 10:23 AM
To: John Voss

Subject: Hills Bros.

Chlorine is 12.5 percent active ingredient by weight. Inclusion rate is 1 ounce to 5-6
gallons of water to sanitize equipment on the dairy.

Bruce Tonkin
United Dairymen of Arizona

Quality Assurance Zﬂ/ / -
Tempe, AZ /M cw KJJ%( C
602-721-2288

%&/Z;/zzk



John Voss

From: Bruce Tonkin [Btonkin@UDAZ.ORG]
Sent: Thursday, June 09, 2011 10:53 AM
To: John Voss

The chlorine is mixed with Conquest (alkaline soap) to break down proteins in the pipeline
and milk tanks. The wash system uses 175 gallons of water roughly thru each step of the wash
cycle.
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TOTAL DRY MATTER INTAKE FROM PASTURE 2010-2011 (AS OF 5/31/2011)

MONTH GROUP BUDGET DMI ACTUALFED PASTURE DMI % DAYS ON PASTURE
Dec-10 HIGH MILK COWS 8{1 1764.60 1308.64 455.96 0.26 177
LOW MILK COWS 861.98 617.63 244.35 0.28 17
DRY COWS 420 - 265.04 154.96 0.37 14
HEIFERS 382.81 347.99 34.82 0.09 18
11-Jan  HIGH MIK COWS 1660.8 1294.09 366.71 0.22 16/
LOW MILK COWS 670.18 533.32 136.86 0.20 14
DRY COWS 0 0 0.00 #DIV/0! 0
HEIFERS 617.49 426.51 190.98 0.31 31
11-Feb  HIGH MIK COWS 934.20 833.43 100.77 0.11 9 /
LOW MILK COWS 430.83 318.77 112.06 0.26 9
DRY COWS 0 o 0.00 #DIV/0! 0
HEIFERS 64.03 44.15 19.88 0.31 3
11-Mar  HIGH MIK COWS 2906.40 2217.08 689.32 0.24 28 v
LOW MILK COWS 1053.14 828.18 224.96 0.21 22
DRY COWS 209.98 36.66 173.32 0.83 7
HEIFERS 641.76 210.56 431.20 0.67 29
11-Apr  HIGH MILK COWS 3114 2147.23 966.77 0.31 30
LOW MILK COWS 1340.36 942.23 398.13 0.30 28
DRY COWS 900 307.89 592.11 0.66 30
HEIFERS 678.08 324.25 353.83 0.52 30
11-May  HIGH MILK COWS 2387.4 1652.86 734.54 0.31 23 \/
LOW MILK COWS 1483.97 1009.38 474.59 0.32 31
DRY COWS 930 296.93 633.07 0.68 31
HEIFERS 674.98 372.92 302.06 0.45 31
SEASON TO DATE
HIGH MIK COWS 12767.40 9453.33 3314.07 0.26 123
LOW MILK COWS 5840.46 4249.51 1590.95 0.27 121
DRY COWS 2459.98 906.52 1553.46 0.63 82
HEIFERS 3059.15 1726.38 1332.77 0.44 142
120 DAY MINIMUM DAYS ON PASTURE PERCENTAGE DMI FROM PASTURE
' HIGH MIK COWS 123 26%
LOW MILK COWS 121 27%
DRY COWS 82 63%

HEIFERS 142 44%



Organic Hay 2010

Feb-11  SouthwestAg | 47,560 @  23.78 . 013750  275.00. 6,539.50 |
Tobylamow | | - #DIV/Ol _#DIV/0! -
1 Tuscany 1 a2 R #DIV/O!  #DIV/O! -
Oasis ; - #DIV/O!  #DIV/O!
Rock River ' | | ;
Purchase 47,560 23.78 0.13750 275.00 6,539.50
‘Sham Hauling | | 5 ' | i
Available 2,602,295 1,301.15 0 010650 213.00 277,139.28
IWet . (412,808)] | : . (43,963.24)
Heifer f | ‘ : : 5 -
.dry [ | i i -
Available 12,189,487 1,301.15 0 0  213.00 233,176.04
i i . . n i f
Mar-11  SouthwestAg | 91,840  45.92 0.13747. 27494 12,625.25
TobyFarrow ' - #DIV/OI _#DIV/Ol -
Tuscany ; L - __#DIV/O! . #DIv/0! -
Oasis s - #DIV/O!  #DIV/O! -
i ~_Rock River | #DIV/O!  #DIV/O! | 61,038.80
_ Purchase 91,840 45.92 0.80209 1604.18 73,664.05
| Sham Hauling | |
| Available 2,281,327 1,140.66 0 013450 269.00 306,840.09
T wet L3390y | 444,960 -
Heifer | A N -. =) e § I
dry '

Available I2,281,327 1.140.66 0 0  269.00 306,840.09




Organic Hay 2010

Mar-11 Southwest Ag 91,840 45.92 0.13747 27494 12,625.25
Toby Farrow - #DIvV/Ot  #DIV/O! -
Tuscany - #DIV/O!  #DIV/0! -]
Oasis - #DIV/O!  #DIV/0! -
Rock River #DIV/O!  #DIV/O! 61,038.80
Purchase 91,840 45.92 0.80209 1604.18 73,664.05
Sham Hauling
~ Available 2,281,327 1,140.66 0 0.13450 269.00 306,840.09
Wet (334,276) (44,960.36)
Heifer -
| dy N
_____Available 1,947,051 1,140.66 0 0 269.00 261,879.74
Apr-11 Southwest Ag 49,800 24.90 0.13750 275.00 6,847.50
~ Toby Farrow - #DIv/O!  #DIVIO! -
Tuscany - #DIVIO!  #DIV/O! -
QOasis - #DIV/O!  #DIV/O! -
Rock River #DIV/O!  #DIV/0!
Purchase 49,800 24.90 0.13750 275.00 6,847.50
~_ Sham Hauling
| Available 1,996,851 998.43 0 0.13458 269.15 268,727.24
| Wet (271,595) (36,550.03)
Heifer -
dry -

Available 1,725,256 998.43 0 0 269.15 232,177.20




SPARTAN DAIRY RATION EVALUATOR
MICHIGAN STATE UNIVERSITY
COOPERATIVE EXTENSION SERVICE
DEPARTMENT OF ANIMAL SCIENCE

Theo Lykos

HOLSTEIN Heifer
Age: 19 months
Body wt: 1075 lbs Avg gain:
Target mature wt: 1300 lbs

1.8 1bs/day

Condition Score: Temperature: 70F

ORGANIC Shamrock Heifers PREGNANT  2-14-11 i/()' \)(‘\; o
______________________________________________________________________________ i
DAIRY VISIONS, LLC. b‘v L.,/ x"'(
File: C:\SPARTD2\DRT\ORGSHAM\HEPR@214.DRT  2/13/11 v 4/ (CJVP
Mix Feed AsFed LbsDM DM NEm NEg CP NDF  ADF Ca (*7) kb\,ta (&
------------------------------------ %---Mcal/1bMcal/1b-%DM- - -%DM- - -%DM- - -XDM- - ‘,o kdv\' s

Pasture OAT\WHE\V 47.0@ 7.05 15.8 ©0.64 ©.38 27.0 40.6 23.0 0.4@ ? ; +
Sorghum Silage 0.00 ©0.00 27.2 .57 .29 11.0 58.¢ 37.0 0.34 « 6;f
Sudan\Wheat Sil 18.50 8.14 44.0 .52 0.25 14.0 60.0 40.0 0.46 v
Alfalfa Hay DRY 7.15 6.36 89.0 ©.61 ©0.38 18.0 44.0 32.0 1.50 QA\f*<4/'r~*//
Water 0.00 ©0.00 1.0 ©0.00 0.00 ©.0 0.0 0.0 e.ae{/*uﬂ
Cottonseed w lint ©.00 ©.00 92.0 1.10 ©0.77 22.0 44.0 34.0 ©.21 o 'JEL/
Sudan hay mature 0.00 ©.00 89.0 ©.52 .25 7.8 72.0 42.0 0.38 SU”
corn grn ground 2.0 1.76 88.0 ©0.95 0.65 9.5 9.6 3.0 o.e3 r%\
Corn Flaked 85% .00 ©.00 85.0 ©.99 ©.68 9.5 9.0 3.0 @.e3 S,\ .
—Soybeah-Meal 47.5 ©0.00 ©0.00 90.6..0.94 067 52.2 R8.1 6.1 0.29 U¥, ¢
Canola Meal 0.00 0.00 92.8 ©.81 0,53 38.5 36.0 18.8 0,73 {:l .[
9 Shamrock ORG DRY ©.00 ©.00 93.1 .51 ©.35 6.6 16.8 6.2 5.39 o~ \ij v’
1
--lbs----1lbs----%---Mcal/d-Mcal/d--1b/d--1b/d--1b/d--1b/d- W k£'$
Totals by weight 74.65 23.31 31.2 8.92 3.11 4.4 10.7 7.8 0.16 | 0//
Requirements 23.35 ©.0 8.92 3.8 3.5 7.5 4.9 0.14 @}J ,
--differences-- 74.65 -0.04 31.2 9.e0 -0.71 0.9 3.2 2.1 €.02 s;
==DIET SUMMARY ==== }L;/
Nutrient (unit) Total Reqt Nutrient(unit) Total Reqt e}
CP(%DM) 18.68 15.00* Veg(%Lipid) 100.00 0.00 f_)&é\
UndegP (%CP) 24,21 6.63 Inert(%Lipid) 0.00 0.00
DegP (%CP) 75.79 37.11 Ash(%DM) 10.67 0.00
AbsP (XDM) 9.23  6.59 Ca(%DM) 0.69 0.60*
SolP(%CP) 39.27 28.55 P(%DM) 0.36 8.30*
BndP (%CP) 7.21 Mg (%DM) 8.27 0.20*
NE1(Mcal/1b) 0.63 K (%DM) 2.72 0.65
NEm(Mcal/1b) 0.61 ©.66 Na (XDM) 0.08 8.10
NEg(Mcal/1b) 0.35 0.39 C1(%DM) 0.22 0.20
TDN(%DM) 62.77 0.00 S(%DM) 8.26 0.20*
ADF (%DM) 29.88 21.00* Co(ppm) 0.00 0.30*
NDF (%DM) 45.73  32.00* Cu(ppm) 8.00 10.00
EfNDF (%NDF) 89.99 77.e0* Fe(ppm) .60 50.00
NFC (%DM) 22.51  @.e0 I(ppm) 0.00 0.25
Starch(%DM) 8.33 0.00 Mn(ppm) 0.60 40.00
FermSt(X¥Starch) 66.54 .00 Se(ppm) 0.00 0.30
Lipid(%DM) 2.49  0.00 Zn(ppm) 0.00 40.00
Animal(%Lipid) .00  0.00 VitA(KIU/1b) 0.00 2.14*
VitD(KIU/1b) .00  ©.30*
VitE(IU/1b) .00  12.85* Cost($/day)
Cost($/1bDM) AbsP(1b/d) 2.15 1.54
Se(mg/d) 0.00 3.18 vitA(KIU/d) 0.00 50.00*
VitD(KIU/d) 0.00  7.00* VitE(IU/4) 0.09 300.80*
——————— RATIOS & RELATIONSHIPS ===z =
% Forage in diet DM : 92.5% DMI / Body Weight T 2.2%
Intake NDF-/~Body-Weight 11.0% Forage-NDF—/-Required-NDF——:140.6%
Cation-Anion (meq/1@eg DM) : 66.5 Ca/ P : 1.94



SPARTAN DAIRY RATION EVALUATOR
MICHIGAN STATE UNIVERSITY
COOPERATIVE EXTENSION SERVICE
DEPARTMENT OF ANIMAL SCIENCE
Theo Lykos

HOLSTEIN Heifer
Age: 19 months
Body wt: 1075 lbs Avg gain:
Target mature wt: 1350 lbs

1.8 lbs/day

Condition Score:

..........................................................

Temperature: 69F

T e e

ORGANIC Shamrock Heifers PREGN{E; 1-25-11

...................................................... R et il bl

DAIRY VISIONS, LLC R

File: C:\SPARTD2\DRT\ORGSHAM\HEPR@125.DRT 1/20/11

Mix Feed AsFed LbsDM DM NEm NEg CP NDF ADF Ca

------------------------------------ %---Mcal/1bMcal/1b-%DM- - -%XDM- - -%DM- - -XDM- -
Pasture OAT\WHE\V 47.0@ 7.65 15.0 ©.64 ©.38 32.0 33.0 20.0 0.30
Sudan\Wheat Sil 17.00 7.48 44.0 ©.52 0.25 14.0 60.0 40.0 0.46
Alfalfa Hay DRY 7.99 7.03 89.0 ©.61 0.38 18.0 44.0 32.0 1.50
Flaxseed meal 9.00 ©0.00 93.0 ©.71 0.46 35,0 35.0 22.9 0.44
Water 9.00 ©0.00 1.0 ©0.00 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00
Almond Hulls 9.00 ©0.00 90.0 ©0.58 ©.38 5.0 35.9 24.0 0.23
Corn grn ground 2,06 1.76 88.0 0.95 ©.65 9.5 9.0 3.6 0.03
Wheat Grain Groun ©.00 ©.00 90.0 1.0 ©.69 11.3 14.0 4.0 0.7
Milu Grouund ©0.00 ©0.00 90.9 ©.88 ©0.60 11.5 20.0 6.0 ©.04
Barley Ground 0.00 ©.00 92,0 ©0.91 ©.64 12.9 19.0 7.0 0.05
Corn Flaked 85% 9.00 ©0.00 85.0 ©0.99 ©.68 9.5 9.0 3.0 9.03
Canola Meal 0.00 ©.00 92.0 ©0.81 ©.53 38.5 36.0 18.0 0.73

9 Shamrock ORG Supl ©.00 0.0 93.1 0.51 0.35 6.6 16.8 6.2 5.39

--1bs----1bs----%---Mcal/d-Mcal/d--1b/d--1b/d--1b/d--1b/d-

Totals by weight 73.9¢ 23.32 31.6 8.92 3.17 4.7 10.1 6.7 ©.16
Reqguirements 23.35 0.0 8.92 3.8 3.5 7.5 4.9 06.14
--differences-- 73.99 -9.03 31.6 ©.00 -0.65 1.2 2.6 1.8 ©.02
DIET SUMMARY
Nutrient(unit) Total Reqt Nutrient(unit) Total Reqt
CP(%DM) 20.31 15.00* Veg(%Lipid) 100.00 0.90
UndegP(%CP) 23.33 6.03 Inert(%Lipid) 0.00 0.00
DegP(%CP) 76.67 33.02 Ash(%DM) 10.61 .00
AbsP(%DM) 9.41 6.59 Ca(%DM) 0.69 0.60*
SolP(%CP) 39.76 30.51 P(%DM) 0.35 0.30*
BndP(%CP) 7.01 Mg(%DM) 0.27  0.20*
NE1(Mcal/1b) 0.63 K(%DM) 2.63  0.65
NEm(Mcal/1b) 0.62 0.66 Na(XDM) 0.08 0.1e
NEg(Mcal/1b) 0.36  ©.39 C1(%DM) 0.23  ©.20
TDN(%DM) 63.00 0.00 S(%DM) 0.23 0.20*
ADF (%DM) 28.75 21.ee*  Co(ppm) 0.00  0.30*
NDF (%DM) 43,17 32.ee*  Cu(ppm) 0.00 10.00
EFNDF (%NDF) 91,59 77.e0*  Fe(ppm) 0.00 50.00
NFC(%DM) 23.52 .00 I(ppm) 0.00  0.25
Starch(%DM) 8.25 0.00 Mn(ppm) 0.00 40.00
FermSt(%Starch) 66.84 0.00 Se(ppm) 0.00 0.30
Lipid(%DM) 2,39 0.00 Zn(ppm) 0.00 40.00
Animal(%Lipid) 0.00 ©.00 VitA(KIU/1b) 0.00  2.14*
VitD(KIU/1b) 0.00  ©.30*
Cost($/day) 2.16 VitE(IU/1b) 0.00 12.85*
Cost($/1bDM) 0.09 AbsP(1b/d) 2.19 1.54
VitA(KIU/d) 0.00 50.00*
VitD(KIU/d) 0.00 7.00% VitE(Iu/d) 0.00 300.00*
= .2===RATIOS & RELATIONSHIPS=-
% Forage in diet DM : 92,5% DMI / Body Weight s 2.2%
Intake NDF / Body Weight 0.9% Forage NDF / Required NDF  :132.6%
Cation-Anion (meg/100g DM) : 64.4 Ca/ P : 1,96



SPARTAN DAIRY RATION EVALUATOR
MICHIGAN STATE UNIVERSITY
COOPERATIVE EXTENSION SERVICE
DEPARTMENT OF ANIMAL SCIENCE
Theo Lykos

Dry HOLSTEIN cow
Age: 60 months
Body wt: 1500 lbs Avg gain:
Days Till Freshening: 40 days

0.9 1lbs/day

Condition Score: 3.4 Temperature: 70F

ORGANIC Shamrock FAR-OFF DRY 4-07-11

DAIRY VISIONS, LLC.

File: C:\SPARTD2\DRT\ORGSHAM\FO@406NP.DRT 4/02/11

Mix Feed AsFed LbsDM DM NE1 CP UndegP NDF  EfNDF ADF

------------------------------------ %---Mcal/1b-%DM- - ~%CP- - -%DM- ~ - - %DM~ - -%DM- -
Pasture OAT\WHE\V ©.00 ©0.00 15.0 0.67 27.¢ 15.0 40.0 32.0 23.0
Sorghum Silage 22.00 5.94 27.6 0©.61 11.0 25.0 58.6 58.0 37.0
Sudan\Wheat Sil 0.00 ©0.00 44.0 0.56 14.0 35.0 60.0 54.0 40.0
Alfalfa Hay DRY 15.00 13.35 89.0 ©.60 18.0 25.0 44.0 41.8 32.9
Water 5.60 ©.05 1.0 ©.00 ©.0 0.2 0.0 .0 0.0
Almond Hulls 0.00 ©0.00 9.0 ©.60 5.0 5.0 35.0 35.0 24.0
Sudan hay mature 9.50 _8.46 89.0 .52 7.0 30.0 65.0 65.0 42.0
Corn grn ground 2.50 2.20 88.6 ©.91 9.5 50.¢ 9.0 2.3 3.0
Wheat Grain Groun ©.00 ©.00 90.0 ©.95 11.3 20.0 14.0 3.5 4.0
Milo Ground ©.00 0.00 9.0 6.8 11.5 58.6 20.0 5.6 6.0
Barley Ground 0.00 ©0.00 92.0 .84 12.9 25.0 19.0 4.8 7.9
Corn Flaked 85% ©.06 ©0.00 85.0 0.93 9.5 55.0 9.e 2.3 3.0

9 Shamrock ORG DRY ©0.06 ©.00 93.1 0©.49 6.6 55.0 16.8 4.2 6.2

--1bs----1bs----%---Mcal/d--1b/d--1b/d--1b/d--1b/d---1b/d-

Totals by weight 54.00 30.00 55.5 18.83 3.9 1.0 15.¢ 14.6 1l0.1
Requirements 28,39 0.0 16.11 4.0 0.9 8.5 6.8 5.7
--differences-- 54,6 1.61 55.5 1.92 -6.1 ©.1 6.5 7.8 4.4
DIET SUMMARY
Nutrient(unit) Total Reqt Nutrient(unit) Total Reqt
CP(%DM) 12.96 14.00*  Veg(%Lipid) 100.00  ©.00
UndegP (%CP) 27.12 23.96 Inert(%Lipid) 0.00 0.00
DegP (%CP) 72.88 56.20 Ash(%DM) 8.19 0.00
AbsP (%DM) 8.06 8.18 Ca(%DM) 0.82 0.70%*
So1P(%CP) 28.42 28.10 P (%DM) 0.25  0.25*
BndP (%CP) 7.88 Mg (%DM) 8.24 .16
NE1(Mcal/1b) 0.60 0.57 K(%DM) 2,17 0.65
NEm(Mcal/1b) 0.60 Na(%DM) 0.14 0.10
NEg(Mcal/1b) 0.34 C1(%DM) 0.30 0.20
TDN(%DM) 59.15 0.00 S(%DM) .27 0.16
ADF (%DM) 33.63 20.00*  Co(ppm) 0.00 ©0.10
NDF (%DM) 50.05 30.00* Cu(ppm) 0.00 10.00
EFNDF (%NDF) 97.95 80.00 Fe(ppm) 0.00 50.00
NFC(%DM) 26.24 .00 I(ppm) 0.00  0.25
Starch(%DM) 8.43 0.00 Mn(ppm) 0.00 40.00
FermSt(%Starch) 67.65 0.00 Se(ppm) 0.00 0.30
Lipid(%DM) 2.66 0.00 Zn(ppm) 0.00 40.00
Animal(%Lipid) 0.00 0.00 VitA(KIU/1b) 0.00 1.76*
VitD(KIU/1b) 0.00 0.70*
VitE(IU/1b) 0.00 35.23* Cost($/day) 3.97
AbsP(1b/d) 2.42 2.32 Cost($/1bDM) 0.10
VitA(KIU/d) 0.00 50.00*
VitD(KIU/d) 0.00 20.00* VitE(IU/d) 0.00 1000.00*

RATIOS & RELATIONSHIPS

%-Forage-in-diet DM 1792.5% DMI“/ Body Weight $200%
Intake NDF / Body Weight 1.0% Forage NDF / Required NDF  :174.0%
Cation-Anion (meq/10@g DM) : 53.3 Ca/ P : 3.34



SPARTAN DAIRY RATION EVALUATOR HOLSTEIN Heifer

MICHIGAN STATE UNIVERSITY Age: 12 months
COOPERATIVE EXTENSION SERVICE Body wt: 750 lbs Avg gain: 1.8 lbs/day
DEPARTMENT OF ANIMAL SCIENCE Target mature wt: 13e@ 1lbs
Theo Lykos
Condition Score: Temperature: 70F

ORGANIC Shamrock Heifers GROWING 2-14-11

DAIRY VISIONS, LLC.
File: C:\SPARTD2\DRT\ORGSHAM\HEGR©214.DRT 2/13/11

Mix Feed AsFed LbsDM DM NEm NEg CP NDF  ADF Ca
------------------------------------ %---Mcal/lbMcal/1b-%DM- - -XDM- - -XDM- - -XDM- -

Pasture OAT\WHE\V 33.30 5.00 15.0 .64 ©0.38 27.0 40.0 23.0 ©.40
Sorghum Silage 0.00 ©0.00 27.0 0.57 .29 11.0 58.0 37.0 0.34
Sudan\Wheat Sil 12.00 5.28 44.0 ©.52 ©0.25 14.0 60.0 40.0 0.46
Alfalfa Hay DRY 5.106 4.54 89.0 .61 ©.38 18.0 44.0 32.0 1.50
Water 0.00 . 0.00 1.0 ©.00 ©.00 ©.0 ©.0 ©.0 0.00
Cottonseed w 1lint o©.00 .00 92,0 1.10 ©.77 22.0 44.6 34.0 0.21
Sudan hay mature ©.600 ©0.00 89.06 ©.52 0©.25 7.0 72.0 42.0 ©.30
Corn grn ground 2.0 1.76 88.0 ©.95 ©.65 9.5 9.0 3.6 0.03
Corn Flaked 85% .00 0.00 85.0 0.99 0.68 9.5 9.0 3.0 ©0.03
~.-Soybean Meal 47.5__9.00 0.00 96.6 ©.94 0,67 52.2 8.1 6.1 ©.29
Canola Meal 0.60 0.0 92.9 .81 0.53 38.5 36.2 18.0 ©.73
9 Shamrock ORG DRY .00 ©0.00 93.1 .51 ©0.35 6.6 16.8 6.2 5.39

--1bs----1bs----%---Mcal/d-Mcal/d--1b/d--1b/d--1b/d--1b/d-

Totals by weight 52.40 16.57 31.6 6.81 2.09 3.1 7.3 4.8 0.11
Requirements 16.64 ©.06 6.81 2,74 2.5 5.6 3.3 0.08
--differences-- 52.40 -0.07 31.6 ©.06 -6.65 ©.6 2.3 1.4 ©.e3
DIET SUMMARY =
Nutrient(unit) Total Reqt Nutrient (unit) Total Reqt
CP(%DM) 18.54 15.00*  Veg(%Lipid) 100.06  ©.00
UndegP (%CP) 24.38  9.57 Inert(%Lipid) 0.00 ©.00
DegP(%CP) 75.62 41.28 Ash(%DM) 9.41 0.00
AbsP (%DM) 9.62 7.40 Ca(%DM) @.68  0.50*
SolP(%CP) 42.17 30.64 P(%DM) 0.35 .30
BndP (%CP) /.16 Mg(%DM) 0.26 .16
NEL(Mcal/lb) 0.64 K (%DM) 2.64  0.65
NEm(Mcal/1lb) 0.63 0.68 Na(%DM) 0.08 0.10
NEg(Mcal/lb) 0.37 0.41 C1(%DM) 0.22 ©.20
TDN(%DM) 63.69 .00 S{%DM) 0.23 0.16
ADF (%DM) 28.76 20.80*  Co(ppm) 0.e0  ©.10
NDF (XDM) 44.17  30.00* Cu(ppm) 0.60 10.00
EFNDF (¥NDF) 87.23 75.00% Fe(ppm) 6.00 50.00
NFC(%DM) 25.37  ©.00 1(ppm) 0.60  0.25
Starch(%DM) 10.39  0.00 Mn(ppm) 0.00 40.00
Fermst(¥%Starch) 67.51 0.00 Se(ppm) 0.00 0.30
Lipid(%DM) 2.51 ©.e0 Zn(ppm) 0.00 40.00 .
Animal(%Lipid) 0.00  0.00 VitA(KIU/1b) 0.00 3.00*
VitD(KIU/1b) 0.00  ©.60*
VitE(IU/1b) 6.00 15,02* Cost($/day)
Cost($/1bDM) AbsP(1b/d) 1.59 1.23
se(mg/d) 0.00 2.26 VitA(KIU/d) .60 50.00*
vitD(KIU/d) 0.00 10.00*  VitE(IU/d) 0.00 250.00*
RATIOS & RELATIONSHIPS
% Forage in diet DM : 89.4% DMI / Body Weight T 2.2%
Intake-NDF-/-Body-Weight i1.0% Forage-NDF-/-Required NDF..:143.5%

Cation-Anion (meg/1e0g DM) : 64.8 Ca/ P : 1.93



MONTHLY PASTURE DRY MATTER INTAKE
MONTH 11-Mar

DAY 29
TOT DAYS 31
MONTHLY AVG
Heifers 102
DM BUDGET 21.47
DM ACTUAL 6.00
DM FROM PAST 15.47
% DM FROM PAST 0.72
DATE COWS BUD. DMI DMI FED PAST. DMI % DM FROM PAST 3 DAY AVG 7 DAY AVG
03/01/11 107 22.79 22.79 0 0.00
03/02/11 107 21.71 21.71 0 0.00
03/03/11 107 23.77 23.77 0 0.00 0.00
03/04/11 101 21.38 21.38 0.00 0.00 0.00
03/05/11 101 21.38 0.00 21.38 1.00 0.33
03/06/11 101 21.38 21.38 0.00 0.00 0.33
03/07/11 101 21.38 0.00 21.38 1.00 0.67 0.29
03/08/11 101 21.38 14.08 7.30 0.34 0.45 0.33
03/09/11 101 21.38 0.00 21.38 1.00 0.78 0.48
03/10/11 101 21.38 0.00 21.38 1.00 0.78 0.62
03/11/11 101 21.38 0.00 21.38 1.00 1.00 0.76
03/12/11 101 21.38 13.72 7.66 0.36 0.79 0.67
03/13/11 101 21.38 14.61 6.77 0.32 0.56 0.72
03/14/11 101 21.38 14.61 6.77 0.32 0.33 0.62
03/15/11 101 21.38 14.26 7.12 0.33 0.32 0.62
03/16/11 101 21.38 13.01 8.37 0.39 0.35 0.53
03/17/11 101 21.38 0.00 21.38 1.00 0.57 0.53
03/18/11 101 21.38 0.00 21.38 1.00 0.80 0.53
03/19/11 101 21.38 0.00 21.38 1.00 1.00 0.62
03/20/11 101 21.38 0.00 21.38 1.00 1.00 0.72
03/21/11 101 21.38 0.00 21.38 1.00 1.00 0.82
03/22/11 101 21.38 0.00 21.38 1.00 1.00 0.91
03/23/11 101 21.38 0.00 21.38 1.00 1.00 1.00
03/24/11 101 21.38 0.00 21.38 1.00 1.00 1.00
03/25/11 101 21.38 0.00 21.38 1.00 1.00 1.00
03/26/11 101 21.38 0.00 21.38 1.00 1.00 1.00
03/27/11 101 21.38 0.00 21.38 1.00 1.00 1.00
03/28/11 101 21.38 0.00 21.38 1.00 1.00 1.00
03/29/11 101 21.38 0.00 21.38 1.00 1.00 1.00
03/30/11 101 21.38 11.50 9.88 0.46 0.82 0.92
03/31/11 101 21.38 11.55 9.83 0.46 0.64 0.85

0.72



MONTHLY PASTURE DRY MATTER INTAKE PEN 14 HEIFERS
MONTH  11-Apr
DAY 30
TOT DAYS 30

MONTHLY AVG
HEIFERS 118
DM BUDGET 22.60
DM ACTUAL 10.81
DM FROM PAST 11.79
% DM FROM PAST 0.52
DATE Cows BUD. DM DMI FED PAST. DMI % DM FROM PAST 3 DAY AVG 7 DAY AVG
04/01/11 101 23.32 10.48 12.84 0.55
04/02/11 101 23.32 10.21 13.11 0.56
04/03/11 101 23.32 9.40 13.92 0.60 0.57
04/04/11 101 18.73 10.48 8.25 0.44 0.53
04/05/11 101 23.32 11.69 11.63 0.50 0.51
04/06/11 101 23.32 9.67 13.65 0.59 0.51
04/07/11 101 23.32 11.07 12.25 0.53 0.54 0.54
04/08/11 101 23.32 0.00 23.32 1.00 0.70 0.60
04/09/11 101 23.32 11.73 11.58 0.50 0.67 0.59
04/10/11 101 23.32 0.00 23.32 1.00 0.83 0.65
04/11/11 101 23.32 11.87 11.45 0.49 0.66 0.66
04/12/11 101 23.32 12.23 11.09 0.48 0.66 0.65
04/13/11 101 23.32 12.80 10.52 0.45 0.47 0.63
04/14/11 101 23.32 12.80 10.52 0.45 0.46 0.62
04/15/11 101 23.32 11.53 11.79 0.51 0.47 0.55
04/16/11 101 23.32 12.60 10.72 0.46 0.47 0.55
04/17/11 101 23.32 0.00 23.32 1.00 0.66 0.55
04/18/11 141 22.02 12.20 9.82 0.45 0.64 0.54
04/19/11 141 22.02 11.78 10.24 0.46 0.64 0.54
04/20/11 141 22.02 11.38 10.64 0.48 0.46 0.54
04/21/11 141 22.02 11.93 10.08 0.46 0.47 0.55
04/22/11 141 22.02 11.39 10.62 0.48 0.47 0.54
04/23/11 141 22.02 15.16 6.86 031 0.42 0.52
04/24/11 141 22.02 15.75 6.27 0.28 0.36 0.42
04/25/11 141 22.02 15.64 6.37 0.29 0.30 0.40
04/26/11 141 22.02 14.70 7.32 0.33 0.30 0.38
04/27/11 141 22.02 13.30 8.72 0.40 0.34 0.36
04/28/11 141 22.02 14.22 7.80 0.35 0.36 0.35
04/29/11 141 22.02 13.90 8.12 0.37 0.37 0.33
04/30/11 141 22.02 434 17.68 0.80 0.51 0.40

0.38



MONTHLY PASTURE DRY MATTER INTAKE
MONTH 11-May

DAY 31
TOT DAYS 31
MONTHLY AVG
Heifers 111
DM BUDGET 21.77
DM ACTUAL 12.03
DM FROM PAST 9.74
% DM FROM PAST 0.45
DATE COWS BUD. DMI DMI FED PAST. DMI % DM FROM PAST 3 DAY AVG 7 DAY AVG
05/01/11 141 22.02 4.46 17.56 0.80
05/02/11 141 22.02 4.07 17.95 0.82
05/03/11 141 22.02 4.43 17.59 0.80 0.80
05/04/11 141 22.02 4.19 17.82 0.81 0.81
05/05/11 141 22.02 5.07 16.95 0.77 0.79
05/06/11 141 22.02 6.17 15.85 0.72 0.77
05/07/11 141 22.02 6.62 15.40 0.70 0.73 0.77
05/08/11 101 22.02 7.42 14.60 0.66 0.69 0.75
05/09/11 101 22.02 6.23 15.79 0.72 0.69 0.74
05/10/11 141 22.02 5.44 16.58 0.75 0.71 0.73
05/11/11 141 22.02 5.44 16.58 0.75 0.74 0.72
05/12/11 133 22.05 5.99 16.06 0.73 0.74 0.72
05/13/11 133 22.05 13.90 8.15 0.37 0.62 0.67
05/14/11 133 22.05 14.01 8.04 0.36 0.49 0.62
05/15/11 133 22.05 15.64 6.41 0.29 0.34 0.57
05/16/11 93 22.05 13.47 8.58 0.39 0.35 0.52
05/17/11 93 21.50 12.23 9.27 0.43 0.37 0.48
05/18/11 92 21.50 12.61 8.89 0.41 041 0.43
05/19/11 89 21.50 12.20 9.30 0.43 0.43 0.38
05/20/11 89 21.50 11.16 10.34 0.48 0.44 0.40
05/21/11 89 21.50 13.39 8.11 0.38 0.43 0.40
05/22/11 89 21.50 13.09 8.41 0.39 0.42 0.42
05/23/11 89 21.50 12.50 9.00 0.42 0.40 0.42
05/24/11 89 21.50 12.05 9.45 0.44 0.42 0.42
05/25/11 89 21.50 11.70 9.80 0.46 0.44 0.43
05/26/11 89 21.50 13.80 7.70 0.36 0.42 0.42
05/27/11 89 21.50 23.85 -2.35 -0.11 0.23 0.33
05/28/11 89 21.50 28.50 -7.00 -0.33 -0.03 0.23
05/29/11 89 21.50 24.40 -2.90 -0.13 -0.19 0.16
05/30/11 89 21.50 24.15 -2.65 0.12 -0.19 0.08
05/31/11 89 21.50 24.75 -3.25 -0.15 -0.14 0.00

0.44



SPARTAN DAIRY RATION EVALUATOR Dry HOLSTEIN cow

Avg gain: ©.9 lbs/day

MICHIGAN STATE UNIVERSITY Age: 69 months

COOPERATIVE EXTENSION SERVICE Body wt: 1500 lbs
DEPARTMENT OF ANIMAL SCIENCE Days Till Freshening: 40 days
Theo Lykos

Condition Score: 3.4

ORGANIC Shamrock  FAR-OFF DRY (30X PAST) 2-14-11

.............. e s o e e e e e m—m—m—m e m——mm e e mm—mfemm e ————————

DAIRY VISIONS, LLC.

File: C:\SPARTD2\DRT\ORGSHAM\F0821430.DRT 2/13/11

Mix Feed AsFed LbsDM DM NE1 CP UndegP NDF  EfNDF ADF

------------------------------------ %X---Mcal/1b-XDM---%CP~ - ~-XDM- - - -XDM- - -XDM- -
Pasture OAT\WHE\V 66.06 9.00 15.0 ©.67 27.0 15.0 40.0 32.0 23.0
Sorghum Silage 0.00 ©.00 27.0 .61 11.0 25.0 58.0 58.0 37.0
Sudan\Wheat Sil 23.60 10.12 44.0 0.56 14.0 35.0 60.0 54.0 40.0
Alfalfa Hay DRY 10.25 9.12 89.0 0.60 18.0 25.0 44.0 41.8 32.0
Water 0.00 ©0.00 1.0 ©0.00 0.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Cottonseed w lint ©.00 ©.00 92.0 ©0.90 22.0 45.0 44.0 22.0 34.0
Sudan hay mature ©0.00 ©.060 89.0 9©.52 7.0 30.0 72.0 72.0 42.9
Corn grn ground 2.00 1.76 88.0 .91 9.5 56.8 9.0 2.3 3.0
Corn Flaked 85% 0.00 ©0.00 85.9 9.93 9.5 55.0 9.0 2.3 3.0
Soybean Meal 47.5 ©.00 ©0.00 90.0 ©0.92 52.2 37.0 8.1 2.6 6.1
-€anola—Meal— ~-0-00---06-00—92-0-—0.80-38.5-34.0-36.86... 9.6_18.0

9 Shamrock ORG DRY .00 ©0.00 93.1 0.49 6.6 55.0 16.8 4.2 6.2

Temperature: 70F

--1bs----1bs----%---Mcal/d--1b/d--1b/d--1b/d--1b/d---1b/d-

Totals by weight 95.25 3@.ee 31.5 18.77 5.7 1.4 13.8 12.2 9.1
Requirements 28.39 0.0 16.11 4.0 0.8 8.5 6.8 5.7
--differences-- 95.25 1.62 31.5 2,66 1.7 0.5 5.3 5.4 3.4
——————— DIET SUMMARY: = =

Nutrient(unit) Total Reqt Nutrient(unit) Total Reqt

CP(%DM) 18.85 14.00* veg(%Lipid) 100.00 ©.00

UndegP(%CP) 23.95 14.42 Inert(XLipid) 0.00 0.00

DegP(%CP) 76.05 36.21 Ash(%DM) 10.48 0.00

AbsP (%DM) 9.17 8.18 Ca(%DM) 0.73 0.70*

SolP(%CP) 39.05 28.10 P(%DM) 0.35 0.25%

BndP (%CP) 7.21 Mg (%DM) 0.27  ©.16

NE1(Mcal/1lb) .63 .57 K (%DM) 2.74  @.65

NEm(Mcal/1b) 0.61 Na (%DM) .08  0.10

NEg(Mcal/1b) 0.35 C1(%DM) 0.23 0.20

TDN(%DM) 62.49 ©.00 S(%DM) 0.26 0.16

ADF (%DM) 30.30 20.00*  Co(ppm) .00  0.10

NDF (%DM) 46.14 30.00* Cu(ppm) 0.00 10.00

EFNDF (¥NDF) 88.11 80.00 Fe(ppm) 0.00 50.00

NFC (%DM) 22.16 0.00 I(ppm) 0.6  0.25

Starch(%DM) 7.12 0.00 Mn(ppm) 0.00 40.00

Fermst(%starch) 66.10 6.00 Se(ppm) 0.00 @.30

Lipid(%DM) 2.36 0.00 Zn(ppm) 0.60 40.00

Animal(%Lipid) 0.00 0.00 VitA(KIU/1b) 0.00 1.76*

VilD(KIU/1b) .00  0.70*

VitE(IU/1b) 0.00 35.23* Cost($/day)

Cost($/1bDM) AbsP(1b/d) 2.75  2.32

se(mg/d) 0.00  3.86 VitA(KIU/d) 0.00 50.00*

VitD(KIU/d) 0.00 20.00*  VitE(IU/d) 0.00 1000.00*

==RATIOS & RELATIONSHIPS =======z== =

X Forage in diet DM :94.1% DMI / Body Weight : 2.0%
Intake NDF / Body Weight i 0.9% Forage NDF / Required NDF :160.7%
Cation-Anion (meq/16eg DM) : 67.3 Ca/P 172,07



MONTHLY PASTURE DRY MATTER INTAKE
MONTH 11-Mar

DAY 7
TOT DAYS 31
MONTHLY AVG
DRY COW 48
DM BUDGET 30.00 209.98
DM ACTUAL 5.24 36.66
DM FROM PAST 24.76 173.32
% DM FROM PAST 0.83 0.83
DATE COws BUD. DMI DMI FED PAST.DMI % DM FROM PAST 3 DAY AVG 7 DAY AVG
03/01/11 57 25.28 25.28 0.00 0.00
03/02/11 42 27.70 27.70 0.00 0.00
03/03/11 50 25.85 25.85 0.00 0.00 0.00
03/04/11 55 26.50 26.50 0.00 0.00 0.00
03/05/11 55 28.45 28.45 0.00 0.00 0.00
03/06/11 55 27.75 27.75 0.00 0.00 0.00
03/07/11 55 29.51 29.51 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
03/08/11 55 27.55 27.55 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
03/09/11 47 26.55 26.55 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
03/10/11 52 27.26 27.26 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
03/11/11 52 29.54 29.54 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
03/12/11 52 28.58 28.58 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
03/13/11 52 28.19 28.19 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
03/14/11 52 29.02 29.02 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
03/15/11 52 31.73 31.73 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
03/16/11 43 28.26 28.26 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
03/17/11 41 29.98 0.00 29.98 1.00 0.33 0.14
03/18/11 52 29.92 29.92 0.00 0.00 0.33 0.14
03/19/11 52 35.52 35.52 0.00 0.00 0.33 0.14
03/20/11 52 29.52 29.52 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.14
03/21/11 52 32.87 32.87 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.14
03/22/11 52 27.65 27.65 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.14
03/23/11 52 26.65 26.65 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.14
03/24/11 42 27.21 27.21 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
03/25/11 42 28.31 28.31 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
03/26/11 42 30.00 13.38 16.62 0.55 0.18 0.08
03/27/11 42 30.00 0.00 30.00 1.00 0.52 0.22
03/28/11 42 30.00 0.00 30.00 1.00 0.85 0.36
03/29/11 42 30.00 0.00 30.00 1.00 1.00 0.51
03/30/11 33 30.00 11.73 18.27 0.61 0.87 0.59
03/31/11 33 30.00 11.55 18.45 0.62 0.74 0.68

0.65



MONTH
DAY
TOT DAYS

DATE
04/01/11
04/02/11
04/03/11
04/04/11
04/05/11
04/06/11
04/07/11
04/08/11
04/09/11
04/10/11
04/11/11
04/12/11
04/13/11
04/14/11
04/15/11
04/16/11
04/17/11
04/18/11
04/19/11
04/20/11
04/21/11
04/22/11
04/23/11
04/24/11
04/25/11
04/26/11
04/27/11
04/28/11
04/29/11
04/30/11

11-Apr
30
30

cows
33
33
33
33
33
34
34
34
34
34
34
27
27
27
27
29
29
29
29
29
29
29
29
29
29
29
29
29
29
29

MONTHLY PASTURE DRY MATTER INTAKE

MONTHLY AVG
DRY COW 30
DM BUDGET 30.00
DM ACTUAL 10.26
DM FROM PAST 19.74
% DM FROM PAS 0.66
BUD. DMI DMI FED
30.00 10.48
30.00 10.21
30.00 9.40
30.00 10.48
30.00 11.69
30.00 9.67
30.00 11.07
30.00 0.00
30.00 11.73
30.00 0.00
30.00 11.87
30.00 12.23
30.00 12.80
30.00 12.80
30.00 11.53
30.00 12.60
30.00 0.00
30.00 12.67
30.00 13.15
30.00 12.60
30.00 12.18
30.00 12.46
30.00 12.05
30.00 12.88
30.00 12.88
30.00 12.60
30.00 10.94
30.00 12.60
30.00 12.32
30.00 0.00

PAST. DMI
19.52
19.79
20.60
19.52
18.31
20.33
18.93
30.00
18.27
30.00
18.13
17.77
17.20
17.20
18.47
17.40
30.00
17.33
16.85
17.40
17.82
17.54
17.95
17.12
17.12
17.40
19.06
17.40
17.68
30.00

% DM FROM PAST 3 DAY AVG

0.65
0.66
0.69
0.65
0.61
0.68
0.63
1.00
0.61
1.00
0.60
0.59
0.57
0.00
0.62
0.58
1.00
0.58
0.56
0.58
0.59
0.58
0.60
0.57
0.57
0.58
0.64
0.58
0.59
1.00

0.67
0.67
0.65
0.65
0.64
0.77
0.75
0.87
0.74
0.73
0.59
0.39
0.40
0.40
0.73
0.72
0.71
0.57
0.58
0.59
0.59
0.58
0.58
0.57
0.60
0.60
0.60
0.72

7 DAY AVG

0.65
0.70
0.70
0.74
0.73
0.73
0.72
0.63
0.57
0.57
0.57
0.56
0.56
0.56
0.64
0.64
0.64
0.58
0.58
0.58
0.59
0.59
0.59
0.65



MONTHLY PASTURE DRY MATTER INTAKE
MONTH 11-May

DAY 31
TOT DAYS 31
MONTHLY AVG
DRY COW 32
DM BUDGET 30.00
DM ACTUAL 9.58
DM FROM PAST 20.42
% DM FROM PAST 0.68
DATE Cows BUD. DMI DMI FED PAST. DMI % DM FROM PAST 3 DAY AVG 7 DAY AVG
05/01/11 29 30.00 0.00 30.00 1.00
05/02/11 29 30.00 0.00 30.00 1.00
05/03/11 29 30.00 0.00 30.00 1.00 1.00
05/04/11 31 30.00 0.00 30.00 1.00 1.00
05/05/11 32 30.00 0.00 30.00 1.00 1.00
05/06/11 32 30.00 0.00 30.00 1.00 1.00
05/07/11 32 30.00 0.00 30.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
05/08/11 32 30.00 0.00 30.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
05/09/11 32 30.00 0.00 30.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
05/10/11 32 30.00 0.00 30.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
05/11/11 32 30.00 0.00 30.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
05/12/11 35 30.00 0.00 30.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
05/13/11 35 30.00 10.69 19.31 0.64 0.88 0.95
05/14/11 35 30.00 11.11 18.89 0.63 0.76 0.90
05/15/11 35 30.00 12.94 17.06 057 0.61 0.83
05/16/11 35 30.00 11.81 18.19 0.61 0.60 0.78
05/17/11 35 30.00 12.23 17.77 0.59 0.59 0.72
05/18/11 35 30.00 12.61 17.39 0.58 0.59 0.66
05/19/11 32 30.00 12.20 17.80 0.59 0.59 0.60
05/20/11 32 30.00 11.16 18.84 0.63 0.60 0.60
05/21/11 32 30.00 13.39 16.61 0.55 0.59 0.59
05/22/11 41 30.00 13.09 16.91 0.56 0.58 0.59
05/23/11 32 30.00 12.50 17.50 0.58 0.57 0.58
05/24/11 32 30.00 12.05 17.95 0.60 0.58 0.59
05/25/11 31 30.00 11.70 18.30 0.61 0.60 0.59
05/26/11 31 30.00 13.80 16.20 0.54 0.58 0.58
05/27/11 31 30.00 23.85 6.15 0.21 0.45 0.52
05/28/11 31 30.00 28.50 1.50 0.05 0.27 0.45
05/29/11 31 30.00 24.40 5.60 0.19 0.15 0.40
05/30/11 31 30.00 24.15 5.85 0.20 0.14 0.34
05/31/11 31 30.00 24.75 5.25 0.18 0.19 0.28

0.68



SPARTAN DAIRY RATION EVALUATOR
MICHIGAN STATE UNIVERSITY

Lactating HOLSTEIN cow
Age: 41 months Lactation #: 3

COOPERATIVE EXTENSION SERVICE Body wt: 1500 1bs Avg gain: 0.7 lbs/day
DEPARTMENT OF ANIMAL SCIENCE Milk prod: 75 lbs/day DIM: 120 days
Theo Lykos Milk Fat: 3.6% Milk Protein: 3.2%

Condition Score: 2.8 Temperature: 75F

ORGANIC Shamrock HIGH (30% Past) 3-18-11

DAIRY VISIONS, LLC.

File: C:\SPARTD2\DRT\ORGSHAM\HI03193@.DRT 3/13/11
{/O( Mix Feed AsFed LbsDM . DM NE1l CP UndegP NDF EFfNDF ADF
/c} ----------------------------------- %---Mcal/lb-%DM- - -%CP-- -¥DM- - - -XDM- - -XDM- -
‘g ﬂ/ﬁ}’j/: Sorghum Silage 17.66 4.93 29.0 ©.57 7.6 25.0 57.0 48.5 35.0
Sudan Sil EARLY 0.00 0.00 44.0- ©.58 11.0 28.0 60.0 51.0 40.0
Pasture OAT\WHE\V 104.00 15.60 15.0 ©.67 27.0 28.0 40.0 32.0 23.0
Alfalfa Hay 180 8.00 7.04° 88.0 ©.64 22.5 25.0 36.0 32.4 28.0
Water 16.00 ©.1©¢ 1.0 ©.00 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.9
Soybeans, ROASTED 2.50 2,28 91.6 ©.99 42.1 55.0 15.0 3.8 10.0
Cottonseed w lint ©0.00 ©0.00 92,0 0,90 22,0 45.0 44.0 22.0 34.0
Almond Hulls 0.60 0.00 9.0 ©0.60 5.0 5.0 35.0 35.0 24.0
Sudan Hay 0.00 ©0.00 92,0 ©.50 4.4 30.0 70.0 70.9 47.0
Alfalfa DRY cow 5.75 5:18-90.0 ©.61 18.0 28.0 42.0 37.8 31.0
Corn grn ground 16.00 14.08 88.0 ©.91 9.5 50.6 9.9 2.3 3.0
Barley Ground 0.00 ©0.00 88.0 ©.83 12.5 25.@¢ 25.¢0 6.3 7.0
Corn Flaked 85% 0.006 ©0.00 85.0 .93 9.5 55.8 9.0 2.3 3.0
Canola Meal .08 0.00 92.¢ 0.80 38.5 34.8 36.0 9.0 18.0
Shamr ORG Mineral 3.00 2.80 93.2 ©.47 4.7 48.6 4.5 1.2 1.5

--1bs----1bs----%---Mcal/d--1b/d--1b/d--1b/d--1b/d---1b/d-
3

Totals by weight 166.25 52.e0 31.3 37.32 9.5 3.2 15.5 12,1 9.6
Requirements 51.9¢ ©.¢ 36.13 8.8 2.5 15.6 11.7 190.4
--differences-- 166.25 0.10 31.3 1.19 .7 0.7 -0.1 0.4 -0.8
DIET SUMMARY
Nutrient(unit) Total Reqt Nutrient(unit) Total Reqt
CP(%DM) 18.27 18.00* NFC(%DM) 38.41 2.00
UndegP(%CP) 33.49 25.92 Starch(%DM) 24.71 0.00
DegP(%CP) 66.47 48.56 FermSt(%Starch) 69.26 0.00
AbsP (%DM) 11.58 10.50 Lipid(%DM) 3.75 0.00
SolP(%CP) 31.42 29.28 Animal(%Lipid) 0.00 0.00
BndP (%CP) 6.73 Veg(%Lipid). 100.00 0.00
NE1l(Mcal/1lb) 0.72 9.70 Inert(%Lipid) ©.o00 0.v0
NEm(Mcal/1lb) 0.76 Ash (%DM) 9.70 0.00
NEg(Mcal/1lb) 0.49 Ca(%DM) 0.89 1.00*
TDN(%DM) 71.20 ©.00 P(%DM) 0.41 0.38*
ADF (%DM) 18.43 20.00* Mg (%DM) 0.37 0.25*
NDF (%DM) 29.79 30.00 K(%DM) 2.08 1.50*
EfNDF (%NDF) 77.81  75,00* Na(%bM) v.40 0.18
C1(%DM) 0.40 0.25 VitE(IU/1b) 13.75 14 .45*
S(%DM) 0.25 0.25*
Co(ppm) 1.07 0.40%* Cost($/day) 7.76
Cu(ppm) 17.35 15.00* Cost($/1bDM) .15
Fe(ppm) 54.69 50.00 AbsP(1b/d) 6.02 5.45
I(ppm) 0.75 0.60
Mn{ppm) 66.75 GO.00* VitA(KIU/d) 145.21 136.00*
Se(ppm) ' 8.30 0.30 VitD(KIU/d) 29.04 28.00*
Zn(ppm) 73,12  60,00* VitE(IU/d) 714.87 750,00*
VitA(KIU/1b) 2.79 2,50*
VitD(KIU/1b) 0.56 0.54*
RATIOS & RELATIONSHIPS
% Forage in diet DM : 63.0% DMI / Body Weight 3.5%
Intake NDF / Body Weight 1.0% Forage NDF / Required NDF : 88.4%
Cation-Anion (meq/1@0g DM) : 59.3 ~ Ca/ P ¢ 2.17




SPARTAN DAIRY RATION EVALUATOR
MICHIGAN STATE UNIVERSITY

Lactating HOLSTEIN cow
Age: 41 months Lactation #: 3

COOPERATIVE EXTENSION SERVICE Body wt: 1500 1lbs Avg gain: 0.7 lbs/day
DEPARTMENT OF ANIMAL SCIENCE Milk prod: 75 lbs/day DIM: 120 days
Theo Lykos Milk Fat: 3.6% Milk Protein: 3.2%

Condition Score: 2.8 Temperature: 70F

ORGANIC Shamrock HIGH (NO Past) 2-14-11

DAIRY VISIONS, LLC.

File: C:\SPARTD2\DRT\ORGSHAM\HI®214NP.DRT 2/13/11 /b"q
Mix Feed AsFed LbsDM DM NE1 CP UndegP NDF EFNDF ADF 2}\
------------------------------------ %---Mcal/1lb-%DM- - -%CP- - -%DM- - - -%DM- - - XDM- -
Sorghum Silage 17.e0 4,93 29.0 0.57 7.6 25.0 57.0 48.5 35.0
Sudan Sil EARLY ©0.00 ©0.00 44.0 ©.58 11.0 28.0 60.0 51.0 40.0 . QSJ#
Pasture OAT\WHE\V ©.00 ©.00 15.0 ©0.67 27.0 28.0 40.0 32.0 23.0 *L,
Alfalfa Hay 180 20.00 17.60 88.0 ©0.64 22.5 25.0 36.0 32.4 28.9 gf;/,/’Y%ﬂ
Water 10.00 ©.1©¢ 1.6 ©0.00 0.6 0.0 0.0 0.9 0.0 01
Soybeans, ROASTED 2.96 2,684 91.6 ©.99 42.1 55.0 15.0 3.8 10.0 /”’/
Cottonseed w lint ©.60 ©.00 92.0 ©0.90 22.0 45.0 44.0 22.0 34.0
Sudan Hay 0.00 ©0.00 92.0 0.50 4.4 30.0 70.0 70,0 47.0
Alfalfa DRY cow 9.25 8.32 90.0 ©0.61 18.0 28.0 42.0 37.8 31.0
Corn grn ground 17.75 15.62 88.0 ©.91 9.5 5.0 9.0 2.3 3.0 17,(, 0
Corn Flaked 85% 0.00 .00 85.0 0.93 9.5 55.0 9.0 2.3 3.0 )
Soybean Meal 47.5 0.00 0.00 92.0 0.92 51.0 40.0 8.1 2.0 6.1 Sh.isl
Canola Meal 0.00 0.00 92.0 ©.80 38.5 34.0 36.0 9.6 18.0 ——
Shamr ORG Mineral 3.0 2.80 93.2 0.47 4.7 48.6 4.5 1.2 1.5 ;L;: 9 Y4
--1bs----1bs----%---Mcal/d--1b/d--1b/d--1b/d--1b/d---1b/d-
Totals by weight 79.90 52.81 65.1 37.31 8.5 2.9 14.6 11.7 10.© C‘a?};7 /éf
Requirements 51.9¢ ©.0 36.13 8.8 2.5 15.6 11.7 1e.4 Y9I K
--differences-- 79.9¢ ©.11 65,1 1.18 -0.3 0.5 -1.0 0.0 -0.4
zmz s========smszsssssosss DLE! SUMMARY== sRammmmEsSsTssosco-s- . -
Nutrient(unit) Total  Reqt Nutrient(unit)  Total Reqt l—/l;‘ £3S CG¥q
CP(%DM) 16.40 17.00* NFC(%DM) 42.73 0.00
UndegP(%CP) 34.15 28.81 Starch (%DM) 27.52 0.00
DegP (%CP) 65.82 55.86 FermSt(%Starch)  69.29 e.00
AbsP (%DM) 11.17 10.50 Lipid(%DM) 3.69 0.00
SolP(%CP) 23.14 27.93 Animal(%¥Lipid) 0.00 0.00
BndP(%CP) 8.21 veg(%Lipid) 100.00 0.00
NE1(Mcal/lb) .72 .70 Inert(%¥Lipid) .00  ©.00
NEm(Mcal/lb) 0.73 Ash(%DM) 9.09 e.00
NEg(Mcal/1b) 0.46 Ca(%DM) 1.16 1.00*
TDN(%DM) 68.59 0.00 P (%DM) 0.37 0.38*
ADF (%DM) 19,25 20.00* Mg (%DM) .38 0.25%
NDF (%DM) 28.01 30.00 K(%DM) 1.71 1.50*
EFNDF (%NDF) 80.46 75.00* Na (%DM) 0.41 ©.18
C1(%DM) .41 .25 VitE(IU/1b) 13.74  14.45*
S(%DM) 0.25 0.25%
Co(ppm) 1.e7 0.40* Cost($/day)
cu(ppm) 17.35 15.00* Cost($/1bDM)
Fe(ppm) 54.67 50.00 AbsP(1b/d) 5.81 5.45
I(ppm) 8.75 0.60
Mn(ppm) 66.73  60.00* VitA(KIU/d) 145.21 130.00*
Sc(ppm) Q.30 Q.30 vitd(kIiu/d) 79.04  28.00*
Zn(ppm) 73.16  60.00* vite(IU/d) 714.87 750.00*
VitA(KIU/1b) 2.79  2.5e*
VitD(KIU/1b) 0.56 0.54*
ZzmzzszzssssSsss=sIsss=ssSsSs ====RATIOS & RELATIONSHIPS =
% Forage in diet DM : 59.3% DMI / Body Weight 3.5%
Intake NDF / Body Weight 1.0% Forage NDF / Required NDF  : 81.2%
Cation-Anion (meg/10@g DM) : 49.9 Ca/ P : 3.12



MONTHLY PASTURE DRY MATTER INTAKE
MONTH 11-Mar

DAY 28
TOT DAYS 31
MONTHLY AVG
HIGH MILK COW J
DM BUDGET 103, SOZ L ’! 2906.40
DM ACTUAL _D ans’ 2217.08
DM FROM PAST 24,62 f 689.32
% DM FROM PAST 0,24 0.24
DATE Cows BUD. DMI DMIFED  PAST.DMI % DM FROM PAST 3 DAY AVG 7 DAY AVG
03/01/11 432 109.54 109.54 0 0.00
03/02/11 434 107.42 107.42 0 0.00
03/03/11 437 108.87 108.87 0 0.00 0.00
03/04/11 438 103.80 101.40 24 0.02 0.01
03/05/11 aa1 103.80 89.04 14.76 0.14 0.06
03/06/11 443 103.80 87.50 16.3 0.16 0.11
03/07/11 a46 103.80 90.14 13.66 0.13 0.14 0.06
03/08/11 453 103.80 87.73 16.07 0.15 0.15 0.09
03/09/11 456 103.80 84.95 18.85 0.18 0.16 0.11
03/10/11 426 103.80 84.65 19.15 0.18 0.17 0.14
03/11/11 426 103.80 87.13 16.67 0.16 0.18 0.16
03/12/11 426 103.80 87.95 15.85 0.15 0.17 0.16
03/13/11 427 103.80 88.28 15.52 0.15 0.15 0.16
03/14/11 432 103.80 89.39 14.41 0.14 0.15 0.16
03/15/11 431 103,80 91,74 12.06 0.12 0.13 0.15
03/16/11 431 103.80 84.19 19.61 0.19 0.15 0.16
03/17/11 431 103.80 70.31 33.49 0.32 0.21 0.18
03/18/11 437 103.80 72.90 30.9 0.30 0.27 0.20
03/19/11 443 103.80 70.96 32.84 0.32 0.31 0.22
03/20/11 439 103.80 62.66 4114 0.40 0.34 0.25
03/21/11 an 103.80 72.23 31.57 0.30 0.34 0.28
03/22/11 442 103.80 73.81 29.99 0.29 0.33 0.30
03/23/11 442 103.80 70.27 33.53 0.32 0.31 0.32
03/24/11 444 103.80 71.64 32.16 0.31 0.31 0.32
03/25/11 446 103.80 - 72.42 31.38 0.30 0.31 0.32
03/26/11 aas 103.80 71.45 32.35 0.31 0.31 0.32
03/27/11 a45 103.80 70.92 32.88 0.32 031 0.31
03/28/11 445 103.80 7217 31.63 0.30 0.31 0.31
03/29/11 433 103.80 70.75 33.05 0.32 0.31 0.31
03/30/11 428 103.80 69.89 33.91 0.33 0.32 0.31

03/31/11 430 103.80 70.61 33.19 0.32 0.32 0.31



MONTHLY PASTURE DRY MATTER INTAKE

MONTH 11-Apr
DAY 30
TOT DAYS 30
MONTHLY AVG

HIGH COWS 438

DM BUDGET 103.80

DM ACTUAL 71.57

DM FROM PAST 32.23

% DM FROM PAST 031

DATE COws BUD. DMI DMI FED

April 1, 2011 432 103.8 73.73
April 2, 2011 432 103.8 70.65
April 3, 2011 436 103.8 71.61
April 4,2011 440 103.8 71.91
April 5, 2011 444 103.8 71.92
April 6, 2011 443 103.8 68.56
April 7,2011 444 103.8 69.46
April 8, 2011 439 103.8 73.51
April 9, 2011 443 103.8 71.57
April 10, 2011 443 103.8 72.28
April 11, 2011 439 103.8 70.79
April 12, 2011 451 103.80 68.94
April 13, 2011 448 103.80 70.40
April 14, 2011 451 103.80 70.97
April 15, 2011 451 103.80 74.52
April 16, 2011 425 103.80 70.30
April 17, 2011 427 103.80 72.78
April 18, 2011 429 103.80 73.23
April 19, 2011 429 103.80 70.75
April 20, 2011 435 103.80 69.89
April 21,2011 432 103.80 70.42
April 22,2011 432 103.80 7191
April 23, 2011 432 103.80 71.87
April 24, 2011 432 103.80 72.90
April 25, 2011 438 103.80 73.40
April 26, 2011 437 103.80 72.32
April 27, 2011 438 103.80 70.05
April 28, 2011 435 103.80 72.12
April 29, 2011 435 103.80 71.08
April 30, 2011 440 103.80 73.39

PAST. DMI
30.07
33.15
32.19
31.89
31.88
35.24
3434
30.29
32.23
31.52
33.01
34.86
33.40
32.83
29.28
33.50
31.02
30.57
33.05
33.91
33.38
31.89
31.93
30.90
30.40
31.48
33.75
31.68
32.72
30.41

2906.40
2002.76

% DM FROM PAST

0.29
0.32
0.31
0.31
031
0.34
0.33
0.29
031
0.30
0.32
0.34
0.32
0.32
0.28
0.32
0.30
0.29
0.32
0.33
0.32
0.31
0.31
0.30
0.29
0.30
0.33
0.31
0.32
0.29

0.27

3 DAY AVG

031
0.31
031
0.32
0.33
0.32
031
0.30
031
0.32
0.33
0.32
031
0.31
0.30
031
0.30
0.31
0.32
0.32
031
0.30
0.30
0.30
031
0.31
0.32
0.30

7 DAY AVG

0.31
0.32
0.31
0.31
0.31
0.32
0.32
031
0.31
0.31
0.31
0.31
0.31
0.31
031
0.31
0.31
0.31
0.31
031
0.31
031
0.31
0.30



MONTH
DAY
TOT DAYS

DATE
05/01/11
05/02/11
05/03/11
05/04/11
05/05/11
05/06/11
05/07/11
05/08/11
05/09/11
05/10/11
05/11/11
05/12/11
05/13/11
05/14/11
05/15/11
05/16/11
05/17/11
05/18/11
05/19/11
05/20/11
05/21/11
05/22/11
05/23/11
05/24/11
05/25/11
05/26/11
05/27/11
05/28/11
05/29/11
05/30/11
05/31/11

11-May
23
31

COWS
441
440
438
419
418
419
419
419
421
423
423
423
423
422
423
424
423
423
421
424
424
316
428
432
431
428
431
429
430
428
427

MONTHLY PASTURE DRY MATTER INTAKE

MONTHLY AVG
HIGH MILK COW 420
DM BUDGET 103.80
DM ACTUAL 71.86
DM FROM PAST 31.94
% DM FROM PAST 0.31
BUD. DMI DMI FED
103.80 66.79
103.80 71.46
103.80 71.86
103.80 70.27
103.80 70.17
103.80 72.70
103.80 74.29
103.80 70.88
103.80 71.27
103.80 70.88
103.80 77.80
103.80 78.88
103.80 70.70
103.80 70.43
103.80 74.92
103.80 70.34
103.80 70.98
103.80 70.98
103.80 70.99
103.80 69.45
103.80 72.41
103.80 72.14
103.80 72.27
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00

PAST. DMI
37.01
3234
31.94
33.53
33.63

311
29.51
32.92
32.53
32.92

26
24.92

33.1
33.37
28.88
33.46
32.82
32.82
32.81
34.35
31.39
31.66
31.53

O 00000 OO0

% DM FROM PAST
0.36
0.31
0.31
0.32
0.32
0.30
0.28
0.32
0.31
0.32
0.25
0.24
0.32
0.32
0.28
0.32
0.32
0.32
0.32
0.33
0.30
0.31
0.30

#DIV/O!
#DIV/0!
#DIV/0!
#DIV/0!
#DIv/o!
#DIV/0!
#DIV/0!
#DIV/0!

3 DAY AVG

#DIV/0!
#DIV/0!
#DIV/O!
#DIV/0!
#DIV/0!
#DIV/0!
#DIV/0!
#DIV/0!

0.33
0.31
0.32
0.32
0.30
0.30
0.30
0.32
0.29
0.27
0.27
0.29
0.31
0.31
0.31
0.32
0.32
0.32
0.32
031
0.30

7 DAY AVG

0.32
0.31
0.31
031
0.30
0.29
0.29
0.30
0.29
0.29
0.29
0.30
031
0.31
0.31
0.32
031
#DIV/0!
#DIv/0!
#DIV/0!
#DIV/0!
#DIV/0!
#DIV/0!
#DIV/0!
#DIV/0}



SPARTAN DAIRY RATION EVALUATOR
MICHIGAN STATE UNIVERSITY

Lactating HOLSTEIN cow
Age: 41 months Lactation #: 3

COOPERATIVE EXTENSION SERVICE Body wt: 1550 1lbs Avg gain: 0.9 lbs/day
DEPARTMENT OF ANIMAL SCIENCE Milk prod: 55 lbs/day DIM: 220 days
Theo Lykos Milk Fat: 3.8% Milk Protein: 3.4%

Condition Score: 3.0 Temperature: 7@F

ORGANIC Shamrock LOW (36% Past) 2-14-11

DAIRY VISIONS, LLC.

File: C:\SPARTD2\DRT\ORGSHAM\L0821430.DRT 2/13/11

Mix Feed AsFed LbsDM DM NE1 CP UndegP NDF  EfNDF ADF

------------------------------------ %---Mcal/lb-%DM- - -%CP- - -%DM- - - -XDM- - -XDM- -
Sorghum Silage 20.60 5.86 29.¢ ©.57 7.e 25.6 57.6 48.5 35.0
Sudan Sil EARLY 0.00 ©0.00 44.0 ©.58 11.0 28.6 66.¢ 51.0 40.0
Pasture OAT\WHE\V 96.9¢ 14.46- 15.0 0.67 27.6 28.0 40.06 34.0 23.0
Alfalfa Hay 180 10.60 9.33.. 88.0 ©.64 22.5 25.0 36.0 32.4 28.0
Water 9.006 ©.09 1.0 ©.00 ©.06 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Cottonseed w lint ©.00 ©.60 92.6 ©0.90 22.0 45.0 44.0 22.0 34.0
Sudan Hay 6.00 ©0.00 92.0 0.5¢ 4.4 30.0 70.06 70.0 47.0
Alfalfa DRY Cow 6,00 5.40~ 9a.6 0.61 18.0 28.0 42.9 37.8 31.0
Corn grn ground 12.90 11.35 88.0 ©.91 9.5 56.6 9.0 2.3 3.0
Corn Flaked 85% .00 ©0.00 85.0 ©.93 9.5 55.6 9.0 2.3 3.0

““Soybean Meal 47.5 9.60 0.0 92, 9.92— 510 40:0— 8:1—2:0-—6-1
Sesame meal .00 ©0.00 92,0 ©.77 41.0 34.0 28.0 7.0 18.0
Canola Meal 6.06 ©0.00 92.0 ©.80 38.5 34.6 36.0 9.0 18.0
Shamr ORG Mineral 1.65 1.54 93.2 0.47 4.7 48.6 4.5 1.2 1.5

--1bs----1bs----%---Mcal/d--1b/d--1b/d--1b/d--1b/d---1b/d-

Totals by weight 156.15 47.91 3.7 33.28 8.5 2.6 15.8 13.6 1e.e
Requirements 47.88 ©.0 33.99 7.2 1.9 14.4 1.8 9.6
--differences-- 156.15 6.3 30.7 -0.71 1.3 0.7 1.4 2.3 0.4
==== DIET SUMMARY=============
Nutrient(unit) = Total Reqt Nutrient(unit) Total Reqt
CP(%DM) 17.77 15.25%  Starch(%DM) 21.68  ©.00
UndegP (%CP) 30.08 21.82 FermSt(XStarch) 69.44 0.00
DegP (%CP) 69.90 48.99 Lipid(%OM) 2.77 0.00
AbsP(XDM) 10.82 9.65 Animal(%Lipid) 0.00 0.90
SolP(%CP) 36.10  28.45 veg(%Lipid) 100.00  ©.00
BndP (%CP) 7.07 Inert(%Lipid) 0.00  ©0.00
NE1(Mcal/1lb) ©.69 8.71* Ash(%DM) 9.27 0.00
NEm(Mcal/1b) 0.73 Ca(%DM) 0.84  0.80*
NEg(Mcal/1b) 0.47 P(%DM) .36  0.31
TON(%DM) 69,23 0.00 Mg (%DM) 8.33 0.25*
ADF (%DM) 20.86 20.00* K{%DM) 2.24 0.90
NDF (%DM) 32.94 30.00 Na (X¥DM) 9.29 0.18
EFNDF (XNDF ) 82.65 75.00%* C1(%DM) 0.40 0.25
NFC(%DM) 37.22 0.00 S(%DM) 9.25 0.20
Co(ppm) 0.64 0.30*
Cu(ppm) 10.36 10.00 Cost($/day)
Fe(ppm) 32.65 50.00 Cost($/1bDM)
I(ppm) 0.45 0.60 AbsP(1b/d) 5.18 4.62
Mn(ppm) 39.85 40.00
Se(ppm) 0.19  ©0.30 VitA(KIU/d) 79.87 100.00*
Zn(ppm) 43.65 40.00 vitD(KIU/d) 15.97 25.00*
VitA(KIU/1b) 1.67 2.09* VitE(IU/d) 393.22 400.00*
VitD(KIU/1b) 0.33  ©.52*
VitE(IU/1b) 8.21  8.36*
———————————— RATIOS & RELATIONSHIPS ==
% Forage in diet DM : 72.9% DMI / Body Weight T 3.1%
Intake NDF / Body Weight 1.e% Forage NDF / Required NDF  :102.3%
Cation-Anion (meq/10@g DM) : 58.6 Ca/ P : 2.33




SPARTAN DATRY RATION EVALUATOR

MICHIGAN STATE UNIVERSITY
COOPERATIVE EXTENSION SERVICE
DEPARTMENT OF ANIMAL SCIENCE

Theo Lykos

Age: 41 months

Lactating HOLSTEIN cow

Lactation #: 3

0.9 lbs/day

3.4%

Body wt: 1550 lbs Avg gain:
Milk prod: 55 lbs/day DIM: 220 days
Milk Fat: 3.8% Milk Protein:
Condition Score: 3.0

Temperature: 76F

ORGANIC Shamrock

LOW (NO Past) 2-14-11

DAIRY VISIONS, LLC.

File: C:\SPARTD2\DRT\ORGSHAM\LO09214NP.DRT 2/13/11
Mix Feed AsFed LbsDM DM NEl. CP UndegP NDF  EfNDF ADF
------------------------------------ %---Mcal/lb-%DM---%CP---%DM- - - -%XDM- - -XDM- -
Sorghum Silage 20.00 5.80 29.0 .57 7.6 25.0 57.0 48.5 35.0
Sudan Sil EARLY 0.00 ©0.00 44.0 ©.58 11.0 28.9 60.0 51.0 40.0
Pasture OAT\WHE\V ©.00 ©.00 15.0 ©.67 27.0 28.0 40.¢ 34.0 23.0
Alfalfa Hay 1890 21.00 18.48 88.6 ©.64 22,5 25.0 36.0 32.4 28.0
Sunflower meal 0.00 ©.00 92.0 0.67 49.0 27.0 15.0 3.8 10.0
Water 9.00 ©.09 1.0 ©.006 ©.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Cottonseed w lint 0.00 ©0.00 92.0 0.90 22.0 45.0 44.0 22,0 34.0
Sudan Hay 0.00 ©0.00 92.0 0.50 4.4 30.0 70.0 70.0 47.0
Alfalfa DRY Cow l10.50 9.45 90.0 9.61 18.0 28.0 42.0 37.8 31.e
Corn grn ground 14.25 12.54 88.0 ©.91 9.5 50.6 9.0 2.3 3.0
Corn Flaked 85% 0.00 ©.00 85.0 .93 9.5 55.0 9.0 2.3 3.0
Soybean Meal 47.5 ° 0.00 0.00 92.0 0.92 51.0 40.0 8.1 2.0 6.1
Canola Meal 0.00 .00 92.0 .80 38.5 34.0 36.0 9.0 18.0
Shamr ORG Mineral 1.65 1.54 93.2 0.47 4,7 48.6 4.5 1.2 1.5
--1bs----1bs----%---Mcal/d--1b/d--1b/d--1b/d--1b/d---1b/d
Totals by weight 76.40 47.90 62.7 33.64 7.5 2,2 15.1 12.7 10.5
Requirements 47.88 0.0 33.99 7.2 1.9 14.4 10.8 9.6
--differences-- 76.40 ©.02 62.7 -0.95 ©.3 0.4 0.8 1.9 1.0
----------- DIET SUMMARY: =====sz=======
Nutrient (unit) Total Reqgt Nutrient(unit) Total Reqt
CP(%DM) 15.72  15.25% Starch(%DM) 24.28  ©.00
UndegP (%CP) 29.86 25.06 Fermst(%Starch) 69.50 0.00
DegP (%CP) 70.12 56.75 Lipid(%DM) 2.75 0.00
AbsP (%DM) 10.25 9.65 Animal(%Lipid) 0.00 0.00
SOL1P(%CP) 25.78 28.38 Veg(%Lipid) 100.00  ©.00
BndP (%CP) 8.78 Inert(¥%Lipid) 0.00 0.00
NE1(Mcal/lb) 0.69 0.71* Ash(%DM) 8.73 0.00
NEm(Mcal/1b) 0.69 Ca (%DM) 1.13 0.80*
NEg(Mcal/1lb) 0.43 P (%DM) 0.32 .31
TDN(%DM) 66.22  ©.00 Mg (%DM) 0.34  0.25%
ADF (%DM) 21.99  20.00* K (%DM) 1.88  ©.90
NDF (%DM) 31.58 30.00 Na (%DM) 0.30  ©.18
EFNDF (%¥NDF) 83.77 75.00* C1(%DM) 0.41 0.25
NFC(%DM) 41.20  ©0.00 S(%DM) 0.25 0.20
Co(ppm) 0.64 0.30%*
Cu(ppm) 10.36 10.00 Cost($/day)
Fe(ppm) 32.66 50.00 Cost($/1bDM)
I(ppm) 0.45  ©.60 AbsP(1b/d) 4,91  4.62
Mn(ppm) 39.86 40.00
se(ppm) 0.19 0.30 VitA(KIU/d) 79.87 100.00*
Zn(ppm) 43.66 40.00 vitD(KIu/d) 15.97 25.00%
VitA(KIU/1b) 1.67 2.09* VitE(IU/d) 393.22 400.00*
VitD(KIU/1b) 0.33  ©.52*
VitE(IU/1b) 8.21 8.36"
=== ====RATIOS & RELATIONSHIPS ===
% Forage in diet DM 1 70.4% DMI / Body Weight ¢ 3.1%
Intake NDF / Body Weight : 1.e% Forage NDF / Required NDF : 97.0%
Cation-Anion (meg/1eeg DM) : 49.5 Ca/ P 1 3.54
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MONTHLY PASTURE DRY MATTER INTAKE PEN 7
MONTH  11-Mar
DAY 22
TOT DAYS 31

MONTHLY AVG
LOW COwW 96
DM BUDGET 47.87 1053.14
DM ACTUAL 37.64 828.18
DM FROM PAST 10.23 224.96
% DM FROM PAST 0.21 0.21
DATE COws BUD. DMI DMI FED PAST. DMI % DM FROM PAST 3 DAY AVG 7 DAY AVG
03/01/11 87 23.00 23.00 0 0.00
03/02/11 87 50.71 50.71 0 0.00
03/03/11 79 48.26 48.26 0 0.00 0.00
03/04/11 79 47.87 50.20 -2.33 -0.05 -0.02
03/05/11 79 47.87 43.30 4.57 0.10 0.02
03/06/11 79 47.87 40.37 7.5 0.16 0.07
03/07/11 79 47.87 39.23 8.64 0.18 0.14 0.05
03/08/11 79 47.87 34.44 13.43 0.28 0.21 0.09
03/09/11 79 47.87 31.99 15.88 0.33 0.26 0.14
03/10/11 107 47.87 41.62 6.25 0.13 0.25 0.16
03/11/11 106 47.87 39.57 83 0.17 0.21 0.19
03/12/11 106 47.87 41.84 6.03 0.13 0.14 0.20
03/13/11 105 47.87 40.58 7.29 0.15 0.15 0.20
03/14/11 105 47.87 41.27 6.6 0.14 0.14 0.19
03/15/11 104 47.87 39.62 8.25 0.17 0.15 0.17
03/16/11 104 47.87 43.52 435 0.09 0.13 0.14
03/17/11 104 47.87 33.74 14.13 0.30 0.19 0.16
03/18/11 96 47.87 33.78 14.09 0.29 0.23 0.18
03/19/11 95 47.87 32.12 15.75 0.33 0.31 0.21
03/20/11 95 47.87 28.83 19.04 0.40 034 0.25
03/21/11 95 47.87 35.16 12.71 0.27 0.33 0.26
03/22/11 95 47.87 33.08 14.79 0.31 0.32 0.28
03/23/11 94 47.87 32.39 15.48 0.32 0.30 0.32
03/24/11 93 47.87 33.52 14.35 0.30 031 0.32
03/25/11 94 47.87 38.01 9.86 " 0.21 0.28 0.30
03/26/11 94 47.04 47.04 0 0.00 0.17 0.26
03/27/11 94 47.63 47.63 0 0.00 0.07 0.20
03/28/11 94 48.97 48.97 0 0.00 0.00 0.16
03/29/11 121 48.64 48.64 0 0.00 0.00 0.12
03/30/11 121 48.00 48.00 0 0.00 0.00 0.07
03/31/11 121 46.34 46.34 0 0.00 0.00 0.03

0.21



MONTH
DAY
TOT DAYS

DATE
04/01/11
04/02/11
04/03/11
04/04/11
04/05/11
04/06/11
04/07/11
04/08/11
04/09/11
04/10/11
04/11/11
04/12/11
04/13/11
04/14/11
04/15/11
04/16/11
04/17/11
04/18/11
04/19/11
04/20/11
04/21/11
04/22/11
04/23/11
04/24/11
04/25/11
04/26/11
04/27/11
04/28/11
04/29/11
04/30/11

11-Apr
28
30

COWs
119
119
119
119
119
119
109
108
108
108
107
107
107

94
94
131
131
130
130
130
123
123
123
123
124
124
124
119
119
118

MONTHLY PASTURE DRY MATTER INTAKE PEN 7 LOW COWS

MONTHLY AVG
LOW COWS 110
DM BUDGET 47.95
DM ACTUAL 3141
DM FROM PAST 16.55
% DM FROM PAST 0.35
BUD. DMI DMI FED
47.90 47.90
50.35 50.35
47.87 33.56
47.87 34.20
47.87 34.34
47.87 31.74
47.87 32.79
47.87 35.02
47.87 33.23
47.87 33.08
47.87 33.06
47.87 33.77
47.87 33.62
47.87 34.16
47.87 33.61
47.87 32.94
47.87 32.00
47.87 3347
47.87 3343
47.87 32.48
47.87 33.58
47.87 33.54
47.87 32.15
47.87 34.36
47.87 35.43
47.87 34.32
47.87 34.07
47.87 34.63
47.87 34.48
47.87 35.17

PAST. DMI
0.00
0.00
14.31
13.67
13.53
16.13
15.08
12.85
14.64
14.79
14.81
14.10
14.25
1371
14.26
14.93
15.87
14.40
14.44
15.39
14.29
1433
15.72
1351
12.44
13.55
13.80
13.24
13.39
12.70

% DM FROM PAST

0.00
0.00
0.30
0.29
0.28
0.34
0.32
0.27
031
0.31
0.31
0.29
0.30
0.29
0.30
031
0.33
0.30
0.30
0.32
0.30
0.30
0.33
0.28
0.26
0.28
0.29
0.28
0.28
0.27

0.29

3 DAY AVG

0.10
0.19
0.29
0.30
031
031
0.30
0.29
0.31
0.30
0.30
0.29
0.29
0.30
0.31
0.31
0.31
031
031
0.31
031
0.30
0.29
0.28
0.28
0.28
0.28
0.27

7 DAY AVG

0.22
0.26
0.30
0.30
0.30
031
0.30
0.30
0.30
0.30
0.30
0.30
0.30
031
031
0.31
0.31
0.30
0.30
0.30
0.29
0.29
0.29
0.28



MONTH
DAY
TOT DAYS

DATE
05/01/11
05/02/11
05/03/11
05/04/11
05/05/11
05/06/11
05/07/11
05/08/11
05/09/11
05/10/11
05/11/11
05/12/11
05/13/11
05/14/11
05/15/11
05/16/11
05/17/11
05/18/11
05/19/11
05/20/11
05/21/11
05/22/11
05/23/11
05/24/11
05/25/11
05/26/11
05/27/11
05/28/11
05/29/11
05/30/11
05/31/11

11-May
31
31

cows
118
116
116
141
141
131
131
131
130
130
130
126
126
126
126
126
126
126
119
119
119
113
119
119
119
113
113
113
113
113
113

MONTHLY PASTURE DRY MATTER INTAKE PEN 7

MONTHLY AVG
LOW COW
DM BUDGET
DM ACTUAL
DM FROM PAST
% DM FROM PAST

BUD. DMI
47.87
47.87
47.87
47.87
47.87
47.87
47.87
47.87
47.87
47.87
47.87
47.87
47.87
47.87
47.87
47.87
47.87
47.87
47.87
47.87
47.87
47.87
47.87
47.87
47.87
47.87
47.87
47.87
47.87
47.87
47.87

DMI FE
35.31
34.52
34.83
32.55
32.64
33.59
35.86
33.16
32.34
33.24
32.49
34.40
32.46
35.05
33.11
32.37
31.02
31.02
32.73
32.25
31.66
32.43
32.89
32.86
33.71
34.63
35.50
35.93
35.93
32.90
22.97

123
47.87
3311
14.76

0.31

D

PAST. DMI
12.56
13.35
13.04
15.32
15.23
14.28
12.01
14.71
15.53
14.63
15.38
13.47
1541
12.82
14.76

15.5
16.85
16.85
15.14
15.62
16.21
15.44
14.98
15.01
14.16
13.24
12.37
11.94
1194
14.97

249

% DM FROM PAST

0.26
0.28
0.27
0.32
0.32
0.30
0.25
0.31
0.32
0.31
0.32
0.28
0.32
0.27
0.31
0.32
0.35
0.35
0.32
0.33
0.34
0.32
031
031
0.30
0.28
0.26
0.25
0.25
0.31
0.52

0.31

3 DAY AVG

0.27
0.29
0.30
031
0.29
0.29
0.29
0.31
0.32
0.30
031
0.29
0.30
0.30
033
0.34
0.34
0.33
0.33
0.33
0.32
0.32
0.31
0.30
0.28
0.26
0.25
0.27
0.36

7 DAY AVG

0.29
0.29
0.30
0.30
0.30
0.30
0.30
0.30
0.30
0.30
0.31
0.32
0.32
0.32
0.33
0.33
0.33
0.33
0.32
0.31
0.30
0.29
0.28
0.28
0.31



FRESH JSick JLAME  Louws

Lactating HOLSTEIN cow

SPARTAN DAIRY RATION EVALUATOR

MICHIGAN STATE UNIVERSITY Age: 41 months Lactation #: 3
COOPERATIVE EXTENSION SERVICE Body wt: 1500 lbs Avg gain:
DEPARTMENT OF ANIMAL SCIENCE Milk prod: 75 lbs/day DIM: 120 days
Theo Lykos Milk Fat: 3.6% Milk Protein:

Condition Score: 2.8

ORGANIC Shamrock

DAIRY VISIONS, LLC.

File: C:\SPARTD2\DRT\ORGSHAM\HI®214NP.DRT 2/13/11
Mix Feed AsFed LbsDM DM NE1l CP UndegP NDF  EfNDF ADF
------------------------------------ %---Mcal/lb-%DM---%CP---XDM- - - -XDM- - -XDM- -
Sorghum Silage 17.0¢ 4.93 29.¢ ©.57 7.0 25.0 57.0 48.5 35.0
Sudan Sil EARLY 0.00 0.00 44.0 0.58 11.0 28.0 60.9 51.0 40.0
Pasture OAT\WHE\V ©.00 ©.00 15.0 .67 27.0 28.0 40.0 32.0 23.0
Alfalfa Hay 180 20.00 17.60 88.0 0.64 22.5 25.0 36.0 32.4 28.0
Water 10.00 0.10 1.0 ©.,00 0.0 0.0 0.9 0.0 0.0
Soybeans, ROASTED 2.90 91.0 ©.99 42.1 55.0 15.0 3.8 10.0
Cottonseed w lint ©.00 ©.00 92.0 0.90 22.0 45.0 44.90 22.0 34.0
Sudan Hay .00 ©.00 92.0 ©.50 4.4 30.0 70.90 70.0 47.0
Alfalfa DRY cow 9.25 8.32 90.0 0.61 18.0 28.0 42.0 37.8 31.0
Corn grn ground 17.75 15.62 88.6 0.91 9.5 5.0 9.0 2.3 3.e
Corn Flaked 85% 0.00 .00 85.0 0.93 9.5 55.0 9.0 2.3 3.0
Soybean Meal 47.5 0.00 0.00 92.0 ©.92 51.0 40.0 8.1 2.6 6.1
Canola Meal 0.00 0.00 92.0 0.80 38.5 34.0 36.90 9.8 18.0
Shamr ORG Mineral 3.00 2.80 93.2 0.47 4,7 48.6 4.5 1.2 1.5
--1bs----1bs----%---Mcal/d--1b/d--1b/d--1b/d--1b/d---1b/d-
Totals by weight 79.96 52.e1 65.1 37.31 8.5 2.9 14.6 11.7 10.0
Requirements 51.9¢ 0.0 36.13 8.8 2.5 15.6 11.7 10.4
--differences-- 79.96 ©.11 65.1 1.18 -8.3 .5 -1.0 0.0 -0.4
a== =D1lE| SUMMARY: 1 mmmoooooee———
Nutrient(unit) Total Reqt Nutrient(unit) Total Reqt
CP(%DM) 16.40  17.00* NFC(%DM) 42,73 0.00
UndegP(%CP) 34.15 28.81 Starch(%DM) 27.52 0.00
DegP (%CP) 65.82 55.86 FermSt(%Starch) 69.29 0.00
AbsP (%DM) 11.17 1e.5@ Lipid(%DM) 3.69 .00
SolP(%CP) 23.14 27.93 Animal(%Lipid) 0.00  ©0.00
BndP (%CP) 8.21 Veg(%Lipid) 100.00 0.00
NEl(Mcal/1lb) 0.72 0.70 Inert(XLipid) 0.00 0.00
NEm(Mcal/1lb) 0.73 Ash(%DM) 9.09 e.e0
NEg(Mcal/1lb) 0.46 Ca(%DM) 1.16 1.00%
TDN(%DM) 68.59  ©0.00 P(%DM) 0.37  ©.38*
ADF (%DM) 19.25 20.00% Mg (%DM) 0.38 0.25%
NDF (%DM) 28.01 30.00 K(%DM) 1.71 1.50%
EFNDF (¥NDF) 80.46 75.00% Na (%DM) 0.41 0.18
C1(%DM) e.41 .25 VitE(IU/1b) 13.74 14.45%
S(%DM) 0.25  ©.25*%
Co(ppm) 1.07 0.40* Cost($/day)
Cu(ppm) 17.35 15.00%* Cost(%/1bDM)
Fe(ppm) 54.67 50.00 AbsP(1b/d) 5.81 5.45
I(ppm) ©.75 0.60
Mn(ppm) 66.73 60,00%* VitA(Kivu/d) 145.21 130.00*
Sc(ppm) e.30 A.30 VitD(KIU/d) 29.A4  28.00*
Zn(ppm) 73.10 60.00*  VitE(IU/d) 714.87 750.00*
VitA(KIU/1b) 2.79  2.50*
VitD(KIU/1b) 0.56 ©.54*

% Forage in diet DM : 59.3%
Intake NDF / Body Weight 1.0%
Cation-Anion (meq/10eg DM) : 49.9

HIGH (NO Past) 2-14-11

0.7 1lbs/day

3.2%
Temperature: 70F

DMI / Body Weight
Forage NDF / Required NDF
Ca/ P
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INSPECTION WORK ORDER #9362

367184 LK Drrfoizig vy 2f ///

This Organic Inspection Record and supporting documentation must be submitted to QAI by the inspector within 10 e
business days after the completion of the inspection. /’//d/

Auditor name:
CPM name: John Joseph 858-792-3531 x148
Work Order number: #9362
Name of Certified Entity: Shamrock Farms Co. New [ ] Renewal X
Facility Name; Same CE ] AP[ | Location[]
Date assigned: February 15, 2011 Application #A0034710
To be completed by QAI:
Location (City, State): Stanfield, AZ
To be completed by auditor:
Location(s) visited by auditor: Stanfield, AZ
Preparation Time Total: 4.5 Hours Follow-up Time Total:

8:30 AM/8:00
Time arrived: | AM Time departed: | 8:30 PM/ Total:
Date(s) Audited: 5/19/11

Submitted: 3/21/11
Type of Compliance Plan:
(Producer, Processor, etc.) Dairy

John Voss, 48i-iii-i 4ii| 'rohn voss@shamrockfoods.com

Contact person: Cell Phone is

John Voss (Organic Dairy Herd Supervisor), Frank Boyce (General Manager),
Jim Whitehurst (Farming and Procurement)

Shamrock dairy is a vertically integrated company with a conventional and an
organic dairy farm, processing facility (in Phoenix) and distribution network.
The conventional dairy includes about 9,600 milk cows and the organic dairy
includes about 600. The operation has been working towards implementing a
grazing system for the organic herd, and have installed water lines and shade
structures to accommodate the cows needs.

Personnel (& titles) present:

Similarly, it was noted that the operation has focused on improving forage
production, which utilizes annual crops. The pasture season started 46 days
late, on December 14" due to planting and irrigation delays. Also, the grazing
season was interrupted due to a historic period of low temperatures (down
to16 degrees F) in December greatly impacted the state’s crop production. By
this time of the year, the applicant stated that they normally would have
already had 1 hay cutting but the new crop was just coming in af the time of

Brief narrative of operation
inspected (please be sure to

detail number of fields or
processing lines in production
and observed during audit, on-
site / off-site warehouses,
general & brief description of
production activities, types of

products grown or handled, etc):

inspection. The applicant provided pictures of the frost damage to the annual
pasture mix of oats, vetch and beardless wheat that was damaged by the frost
(see attached). These fields had recovered at the time of inspection and were
providing good forage for the cattle. Up until the time of inspection, average
DMI from pasture is below the 30% with about 58 days of access . With
another 60 days of the grazing season, the challenge will be to have enough
forage to exceed 30% pasture DMI so that on average the operation can be in

AESOP 10637; ISSUE 2; STATUS-PUBLISHED; EFFECTIVE 21 OCT 2010; AUTHORITY JACLYN BOWEN
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Printed: May 19, 2011

CE Name: Shamrock Farms Co
compliance. The applicant is aware of the June 2011 deadline and preparing a
strategy for coming into compliance for the next grazing season start in fall
2011.

All facilities were visited.

Section 1: SPECIFIC INSTRUCTIONS

Auditor: Please address each specific instruction appearing below. If the item has been addressed in any of the
sections below, please just indicate the relevant section and number where that issue is addressed. If completing
form by hand, please use extra sheets if required.

SPECIFIC INSTRUCTIONS

Has each specific instruction been adequately addressed
/ implemented / complied with?

If no, please explain the discrepancy.

If yes, please provide a brief statement (e.g., “no salt
used”, “verified”, “advised applicant”, etc); please also
identify any documents or methods used to verify the
SL

QAI contract to be verified by Auditor to be on
file if plant being inspected is deemed the
Corporate/Headquarters. (If CE BOX is
checked above then it is the corporate location)

On file and verified.

Please verify stocking rates for livestock and
include specific information in your inspection
report.

See Dairy OCP Section E

Please ensure that the client has current NOP
certificates and specification sheets for all
purchased feed on file and return copies to QAI
with your report.

See Dairy OCP Section C

Please comment on DMD and DMI
calculations. Please comment on the client’s
ability to comply with the 30% DMD from
pasture grazing requirement by 06/2011.

See Dairy OCP Section C

Please comment on the computerized feeding
system. Specifically, please describe how this
system calculates DMI and DMD, as well as
how justified the calculations are.

See Dairy OCP Section C

Please comment on the Saudi style bamns.
Specifically please veify whether they enclosed
and how they facilitate outdoor access. Please
comment on the animals ability to move freely,
engage in comfort behaviors, and exercise.

See Dairy OCP Section E

Please verify that buffer zones are not necessary
to protect organic pasture from contamination.

See Dairy OCP Section F

Please verify that purges and / or residue tests
are sufficient to verify the absence of sanitizers,
specifically mandate Plus.

See 2010 RFI #3

Please verify at what level residual chlorine is
present in effluent rinse water. Levels in the
water must not exceed the maximum residual
disinfectant limit allowed under the Safe
Drinking Water Act.

See Dairy OCP Section 1

. Please note that due to directives received from

the NOP, only verify pest control materials in
use on or around the milking parlor.

OK, See Dairy OCP Section J

11

Please verify that the information provided on
the Herd Pasture Profile is correct. Please

See Profile Section, Dairy Profiles, Dairy Herd Profile Form
and Livestock Farm Profile Form.

AESOP 10637; ISSUE 2; STATUS-PUBLISHED; EFFECTIVE 21 OCT 2010; AUTHORITY JACLYN BOWEN
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.

CE Name:

Shamrock Farms Co

initial or check the Inspector Use Only Section
on HHP for each point verified.

12.

Please verify that the information provided on
the Individual Feed Ration(s) is correct. Please
initial or check the Inspector Use Only Section
on IFR(s) for each point verified. **** If the
IFR’s are revised and/or new IFR’s submitted
please provide a clean copy with the report for
the client’s file.

See Profile Section , Dairy Profiles IFR

13.

Please verify that the information provided on
the Medical Input Profile(s) is correct. Please
initial or check the Inspector Use Only Section
on MIP(s) for each point verified. **** If the
MIPs are revised and/or new MIPs submitted
please provide a clean copy with the report for
the client’s file.

See Profile Section , Dairy Profiles MIP

. Please verify the information provided on the

Annual Input Record is correct. Please initial
or check the Inspector Use Only Section on
Annual Input Record for each point verified.

See Profile Section, Crop Profile AIR

15.

Please review all seed purchase documents to
verify organic status of the seeds. Perform an
audit for seeds planted/ per acre against
purchase invoices and seed tags to verify that
enough seed was purchased to plant the
numbers of acres.

See Crop OCP Section F, Seed audit

. If non-organic seeds have been used, please

submit documents with your inspection report
verifying that Non-GMO, Non-Treated seeds
have been used.

See Crop OCP Section F

17.

If non-organic seeds have been used, please
verify that the producer has the Commercial
Availability Worksheet retained in the audit
trail records, and that there is clear
documentation from suppliers of known organic
seeds in the types and varieties grown by the
producer verifying that organic seeds were not
available. Include documentation that the
producer is performing trials with organic
seeds, if applicable, and include the producer’s
future plans to plant only organic seeds.

See Crop OCP Section F

. Please verify that this is an optimal time of year

to inspect this client. If not, please identify what
time of the year would be best and why.

This is an optimal time for the inspection, but in order to
verify compliance to the pasture rule, it may be necessary to
in the future require an in season inspection and an end of
season inspection.

19.

Please verify information on the certificate and
Organic System Plan Summary (OSPS) is

correct. If applicable please note any changes.
Both you and the applicant must sign and date.

Both verified singed and dated. Acreage figures were
adjusted slightly per the LIFP.

20.

Please provide the total number of pasture acres
provided and please provide the total number of
animals that have access to that (those)
pasture(s); if access to pasture is restricted at
any time, please provide details regarding the
applicant's justification for temporary
confinement

See Dairy OCP Section E
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21.

Please conduct a complete audit of origin of
livestock for all dairy livestock, as follows: a).If
the dairy began operating as a 100% organic
feed transitional dairy, please include with your
inspection report a copy of the audit to verify
that the all dairy replacement animals have
completed a full one year of transitioning prior
to selling, labeling, or otherwise representing
the milk as ‘organic”. b) If the dairy began
operation under the former "80-20" feed
exemption rule, please include a copy of the
audit to verify that all replacement animals
were from animals raised as organic from last
3rd of gestation. ¢) If the dairy began operating
as an organic dairy after June 9, 2007, please
include a copy of the audit which verifies that
all replacement animals have been transitioned
for one year prior to selling, labeling, or
otherwise representing the milk as ‘organic”.

See Dairy OCP Section A

22.

Please conduct a complete audit of milk records
to verify that there is enough organic animals in
production to justify the sale of the organic milk
using a statistically accurate method for
determining days of production. Please include
the audit results with your inspection report.

See Dairy OCP Section

23.

If any form or documentation is updated during
your inspection, please include both your
initials and the client’s initials on the updated
document. This process will allow QAl to
update the documents on file at QAI. Please
inform the client that initialed changes will be
made to their Organic Plan on file at QAI for
them. If the client would rather update their
own documents, please include updates with
your inspection report.

OK

24.

Please conduct a trace-back audit using the
attached Sample Audit Worksheets. Return all
calculations with your report.

See Dairy OCP Section B, origin of livestock, and C, livestock
feed audit and L for the milk traceback and balance.

25.

Please conduct an input / output balance using
the attached Sample Audit Worksheets. Return
all calculations with your report.

See dairy OCP section C

26.

Please verify that a complaint log is in place
which has documented any incoming
complaints regarding organic compliance,
actions taken to correct any deficiencies with
products or services of the relevant standard
and that all complaints have been resolved.

P. 32 of the Dairy OSP indicates that a procedure is in place.
The applicant had a copy of the correspondence related to
their only complaint in October of 2008.

27.

As it is sometimes difficult to communicate a
discrepancy or observation in written form, it
may be helpful or necessary to photograph an
area, or areas, of an operation for sight review
at QAL If the client will not allow you to take
photographs, please make a note of this in your
report, providing the client’s explanation or
reasoning for lack of permission. If pictures are
not allowed, please do your best to fully explain

Pictures are attached.

AESOP 10637; ISSUE 2; STATUS-PUBLISHED; EFFECTIVE 21 OCT 2010; AUTHORITY JACLYN BOWEN
© Copyright QAI, Inc.

Page 4 of 20




Printed: May #9, 2011

CE Name: Shamrock Farms Co

Se

the discrepancy or observation without a
picture, and why you felt a picture would best
assist QAl in the review.”

28. Please provide photographs of pasture areas
including animals, barns, etc. with descriptions
of each photograph including the location of the

photograph.

Pictures are attached.

ction 2: PREVIOUS NON-COMPLIANCES

Please also include a description of the practices and

number where that issue was addressed. If completin,

Auditor: Please address each previous noncompliance below and verify whether or not they have been mitigated.

If the item has been addressed in another section above or below, please just indicate the relevant section and

documentation you observed in verifying their compliance.

g form by hand, please use extra sheets if required.

NON-COMPLIANCE ISSUES

Has the resolution to the previous non-compliances

been implemented effectively?

¢ If no, please explain the discrepancy.

e If yes, please provide a brief statement of how the
client mitigated the noncompliance; please also
identify any documents or methods used to verify
the non-compliance was mitigated.

Prior to Adding Fields

1. Please be advised that individual Field
Profiles (IFPs) for each field or farm parce!
must accurately represent the crops
produced under organic management. The
following discrepancies were noted with the
IFPs for Red River fields 1 and 2: a. A very
thin planting of alfalfa was noted during the
recent inspection, but section L of the IFP
did not include alfalfa. b. It was noted that
the crop rotation should be fallow in 2010
with annual pasture planned for 2011, but
this was not noted in section N of the IFP.
Please submit to QAI for review updated
IFPs, which include alf crops, pasture, and
crop rotations for all fields under organic
management. Alternatively, you may
confirm in writing that the specific changes
can be made by QAI staff as appropriate.

7 CFR 205.201(a)(2)

LFPs are discussed below and are consistent with the
ration’. A

Request for on

2. Please note that the following crops are
listed on the Producer Organic System
Plan Summary (OSPS), but are not listed
on any of the current Individual Field
profiles (IFPs): a. Hay b. Silage it was
noted that Hay may be Sudan Grass Hay
and that Silage may be Sorghum Silage
and so these would be duplicate listings.
Please verify in writing how these products
are to be listed on the Producer Organic
System Plan Summary.

7 CFR Part 205.201(a)(2)

3. Please be advised that sanitizers used on
food contact surfaces or utensils prior to
the handling of organic product must be

This is discussed below in the Dairy Organic Compliance

Plan section I,

AESOP 10637; ISSUE 2; STATUS-PUBLISHED; EFFECTIVE 21 OCT 2010; AUTHORITY JACLYN BOWEN
© Copyright QAL Inc.

Page 5 of 20



Printed: May 19, 2011

CE Name:

Shamrock Farms Co

listed on the National List of Allowed and
Prohibited Substances, 7 CFR Part
205.605. Alternatively, an intervening event
(rinse, purge, complete drainage/drying of
equipment) must be employed between the
sanitizing step and organic handling to
ensure no sanitizer residues are present on
surfaces that contact organic product.
Mandate Plus, which contains the active
ingredients, phosphoric acid, octanoic acid
and decanoic acid, is used without a rinse
on food contact surfaces prior to the
handling of organic milk. While this
sanitizer has been allowed in the past,
there is concern that there may be residues
of octanoic and/or decanoic acid on milk
handling equipment and that they may
contact the organic milk. It was noted in an
email from Shamrock Farms dated May 26,
2010 that SSOPs, which include rinse and
purge, are currently in place. Please
provide to QAI for review a copy of SSOPs
that document the measures in place to
protect organic milk from contamination by
the decanoic and octanoic acids in the
Mandate Plus sanitizer (such as an
appropriate rinse, drain, residue test or
purge).

7 CFR Part 205.272(a)

4.

Please be advised that your organic
compliance plan must accurately describe
the practices and materials used in your
facility. it was noted that an Addendum
Materials List was not completed to
supplement the Dairy Organic Compliance
Plan. Please submit an updated AML,
which includes all cleaners and sanitizers.
Alternatively, you may confirm in writing
that the specific changes can be made by
QAI staff as appropriate. Please include an
MSDS or specification sheet for each
material used.

7 CFR Part 205.201

The AML provided this year accurately lists materials used
in the milking operation.

5.

Please forward to QAI written confirmation
from aerial applicators that they have been
advised, in writing, that Shamrock Farms is
an organic operation.

7 CFR Part 205.201(a)(5)

6.

An audit trail must be in place to ensure
that all activities and transactions are
disclosed in sufficient detail as to be readily
understood and audited. During your
inspection, the following record keeping
deficiencies were noted: a. Barley: 380, 50-
Ib bags of Barley Nebula were purchased
from Helena Chemical Co.; 179 acres of

The letter was verified at the time of inspection as well.

See seed audit below.
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Red River fields RR 4, 5 and 6 were
planted with barley seed at rate of 130 lbs
per acre. i. 179 acres x 130 Ibs per acre =
23,270 lbs required - 19,000 Ibs purchased
= 4,270 Ib discrepancy. Please explain this
discrepancy. ii. The planting dates were not
noted in the field records. b. Oats: 360, 50-
Ib bags of Oat Cayuse from Helena
Chemical Co: i. The oat seed was used to
plant field Beryl 320 in February 2010, but
the exact planting date was not recorded. ii.
An invoice from Hart Brothers custom
operator confirms the number of acres
planted, but this was not documented by
Shamrock. ¢. Sudan Grass: 24,000-b
purchased from Tee Pee Seed Co. i. The
date of purchase and receipt was not
recorded. ii. 65 acres of Red River field 4
was planted in early May 2010, but the
exact date was not recorded. d. Clean
Down Affidavits: It was noted that Clean
Down Affidavits are completed for
equipment prior to usage by a contracted
operator on the Shamrock Organic Farm.
However, the Clean Down Affidavit from T
& K for the movement of manure to fields
was not completed on two separate
occasions. If Clean Down Affidavits are not
required for the movement of manure,
there should be some documentation on
file to account for this field activity. e. Field
Activity Log: Specific operational records
for crop production activities are not
recorded and maintained. Please establish
and maintain a field activity log, which
documents: - planting, inputs, weeding,
harvesting, efc. - dates and types of field
activities - the name of the operator doing
the specific field activity and whether they
are employees or custom. Once complete,
please send a sample of the field activity
log to QAI for review. In addition, please
notify QAl in writing, of how you intend to
improve your record keeping system so
that it meets the USDA NOP standards.

7 CFR Part 205.103(b)(2), 205.201(a)(1-3)

7.

Please send to QAIl copies of current
organic certification documentation for: a.
Organic Pasture Seed Mix from Lockwood
Seed b. Sudan Grass from Saddiehorn
Ranches Please verify in writing that you
will not use any seed or feed ingredient as
organic unless you have proof of organic
certification issued by a USDA-Accredited
certification agent on file.

7 CFR Part 205.103(b)(4)

See seed audit below.
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8. Please be advised that the Herd Pasture
Profile should represent your entire organic
herd, including milking cows, young stock,
and dry cows. Please clanfy the following
discrepancies noted with HPP on file: a.
The inspector noted 742 organic animals,
but the HPP accounts for 722 animals,
specifically: i. Dry Cows: the inspector
notes 66, but the HPP notes 22. ii. Milking
Cows: the inspector notes 626, but the
HPP notes 658. iii. The inspector notes 6
springing heifers and 2 bulls, which are not
noted on the HPP. b. The inspector noted
273 acres available for pasture: i. Section
C of the HPP notes that 334 acres are
available for pasture. ii. The Acreage of
Pasture Fields Provided column of the HPP
accounts for 285 acres. While it is
understood that there will some natural
small variation in the various sub-
populations of cows and the amount of
available pasture on a given day, if the
totals observed on the day of the inspection
represent a shift in your target numbers,
please submit to QAI an updated HPP,
which includes all of the fields and the
revised number of organic animals seeking
certification. Alternatively, you may confirm

in writing that the specific changes can be | The HPP has been replaced by new forms. Animal numbers

made by QA staff as appropriate. are provided in that and accurately describe the number of
7 CFR 205.201(a)(2), 205.201(a)(6) animals on site as of the day of inspection.

Prior to Annual Monitoring Date

9. Please be advised that your organic
compliance plan must accurately describe
the practices and materials used in your
facility. The response to section D7 of the
Dairy Organic Compliance Plan indicates
Not applicable, parasiticides are not
administered. However, 5.0 is listed on the
Medical Input Profile as an extemal
parasiticide. Please submit the updated
page of the Organic Compliance Plan and
Addendum as referenced above.
Alternatively, you may confirm in writing
that the specific changes can be made by

QAI staff as appropnate. This section of the plan was amended as requested, per
7 CFR Part 205.201 review of the plan during inspection. See below

10. Please be advised that the Medical Input
Profile (MIP) should provide an overview of
the medical inputs used, or intended to be
used, to manage health concems. The
following discrepancies were noted with the
MIP on file: a. Electroid 7 is noted as a
current input and a specification sheet is on

file, but is not listed on the 2010 MIP. b. The MIP is discussed below in the profile section of the
Calcium Gluconate is noted as a current report,
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input and a specification sheet is on file,
but is not listed on the 2010 MIP. c. Mineral
Oil is only to be used as lubricant, but the
reason for use noted on the 2010 MIP is
calving issues. Please submit to QAI for
review updated MIP, which includes all
Medical Inputs that are currently, or
intended to be, administered to livestock.
Please be sure to specify the accurate
reason for use. Alternatively, you may
confirm in writing that the specific changes
can be made by QAI staff as appropriate.
7 CFR 205.201(a)(2), 205.201(a)(6)

11. Please send a specification sheet and label
for the following medical inputs to QA for
review: a. Aspirin b. Mineral oil c. Copper
Sulfate d. Alcohol - Isopropanol e.

Hydrogen Peroxide
7 CFR Part 205.201(a)(2), 205.301, 205.605, Labels and spec sheets were included in the inspection
205.606 package and corresponded to the materials listed in the MIP.

Customer Service Advisement
12. Please provide your written procedure for

documenting and addressing customer
complaints relating to compliance with
organic standards.

1SO Guide 65 15(a}(b)(c) See SI section above,

13. Please be advised that, on 2/17/10, several

sections of the NOP were modified and
published. These changes directly affect all
certified organic livestock operations. The
revised Regulation is effective 6/17/10.
Currently certified livestock operations
must comply with this new Regulation by
6/17/2011. QAl is working with the NOP to
develop workable calculation worksheets
and is also developing new Organic
Compliance Plans and Profiles which will
be sent out to certified organic livestock
operations in the very near future. QA will
work with Shamrock Farms to ensure that
you understand the new requirements and
the new forms. Please contact your CPM if
you have any questions or concemns.
Please note that land used for pasture
must be managed under the organic crop
requirements of the NOP.

7 CFR 205.2, 205.237, 205.239 This aspect has been a central focus of the inspection.
Section 3: ORGANIC SYSTEM PLAN

Auditor: Please indicate any discrepancies or relevant inspector observations pertinent to the Application, OCP(s)
and Product Profile(s) by listing a reference number from the question then your description. If completing form
by hand, please use extra sheets if required.

A: Application

Ref # Description of Discrepancy/Relevant Observation 7
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B1: Product
Additions No changes
B2 & 3 Field
Number /
Acreage
Changes No changes
B: Compliance Plan
Ref # Description of Discrepancy /Relevant Observation
Producer Compliance Plan
A.) Overview
All of the crops grown on the farm are for the dairy organic dairy herd, whether it is
forage for pasture or in some cases, it may be harvested as a crop. The applicant stated
that it can be more cost effective for them to grow their own silage than purchase it
4 depending on the market price and freight.
5 The applicant provided a log that documented the reviews of the OSP.
B.) Product Protection
l 3 | Fences are either metallic or plastic, no wood.

C.)Soil Fertility and Crop Nutrient Management

Soils on the Beryl piece are poor but improvements have been noted from past
inspections. The applicant has started using legumes in the pasture mix and intensive
grazing should also help contribute to further improvements.

The poultry compost has not been used since the OCP was first filled out. They rely on
their own manure at this time.

Invoices for the Jenner 8 humic acid were tallied up and confirmed that a total of 2300
gallons were purchased. The applicant stated that this was applied in April and
September 2010, to the Beryl field (120 ac) so the rate of application came out at 19.16
gal/ac. The AIR lists Sgal/ac. We went to look at the bulk tank of the material and
confirmed that it was empty. The applicant confirmed that the material was only applied
to the Beryl field so the AIR was not correct. The applicant updated the AIR inspector

4 copy to show 20 gal/ac.

D.)Natural Resources and Water Quality

The farm is located in an arid region that supports agricultural enterprises via the
available irrigation. Natural habitat is very limited in the desert. Surrounding operations
consist of confined livestock producers, cotton and some grains/forages.

General
E.) Crop Pest, Weed and Disease Prevention

The main weeds in the pasture fields included mallow and mustards. These are not
controlled in any way other than pre planting cultivation, deep tillage and grazing.
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F.) Record Keeping and Audit Trail
SI 16 Non
GMO &
ic\)/:;;:g;filt?/l Non organic untreated Tee Pee variety Sudan grass seed was found in storage, purchased
Organic a couple of years back.. The ?pp!igant stated hc'a may use it this year and we discussed the
Certificates need to do a (fommercml availability search prior to doing so.
Organic hybrid Sorghum seed was seen on site.
Treatments
&
Inoculants
The Pasture mix seed planted in 2010 was audited:
Acres
Planted 351.8
Seed mix 39700
Seed rate 113
Ratein AIR | 114
S115: [Seed | The seed receipts from Lockwood were on file and confirmed the organic status of the Comment [S1]: Please review all non
Audit pasture mix used. Corn &ﬂﬁ?iﬁfﬂi"éﬁﬂ?ﬁm
A o vt st e
.JUvVerview enough seed was purchased to plant thi
1 LFP dated 1/10/2011 is on file and verified, See notes below. e at
The OSP includes an accurate map of the Beryl piece with regards to the location of
permanent fencing. The maps for the Red River pieces also include the main fences
4 though there are few as the operation relies on electric fencing.
B.)Origin of Livestock
The following animal numbers were recorded during the field visit and were used to
randomly verify origin of livestock and transition data in the DHI plus recordkeeping
system. The table includes the date when a heifer was brought into organic
management and when it had its first calf and the days it was under organic
management prior to providing milk. The location listed on the last column is where the
animal started the transition, either from AZ or from the organic certified dairy in
Oregon:
Animal # | Pen | OG Mgmt | 1stCalf | Days | Loc.
1643 3 2/2/09 6/3/10 | 486 | AZ
Y465 4 9/21/07 1/27/09 | 494 | AZ
T158 4 7/18/06 10/2/07 | 441 | OR
U765 4 11/20/06 12/14/07 | 389 | OR
R991 4 7/18/06 12/14/07 | 514 | OR
T999 4 9/1/06 12/18/07 | 473 | OR
7231 4 1/5/10 3/4/11 | 423 | AZ
1,121 - 2122 | 8 | 6/19/08 | 9/21/09 | 459 | Az
Replacement 1726 = 9/1/06 10/2/07 | 396 | OR Comment [S2]: Please conduct a
Stock |Audi T508 | 9 9/1/06 |  9/22/07 | 386 | OR | complete audit of origin of livestock for
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7195 9 1/5/10 2/25/11 | 416 | AZ
U653 7 11/20/06 1/19/08 | 425 | OR
4470 2 2/2/09 4/16/10 | 438 | AZ
R568 2 6/9/06 5/24/07 | 349 | OR
B422 2 12/16/10 | open heifer | na AZ

Note that cow R568 shows less than 365 days prior to her first lactation on 5/25/07. The
applicant provided a copy of the first load ticket that was delivered to the processing
plant and it shows that they started shipping milk on 6/11/2007. This means that the
milk from this particular fresh cow was bucketed and fed to calves, it was stated.

The applicant provided a document titled “Shamrock Farms Organic Animal Birth,
Death and Culling” and a document titled “Shamrock Farms Replacements”

2
Previously, the organic calves were tagged with a Z but now they are tagged witha W
and digits. During the inspection, no Z or W tagged animals were noted in the organic
3 herd.
C.) Livestock Feed

The feed mixing equipment was seen on site and verbally confirmed that it is dedicated to
the organic operation. A pull behind box and tractor were added to the operation
approximately 6 months ago and is now primarily used for the feed mixing and delivery.
2 The truck is a backup.

A document was provided during the inspection, titled “Shamrock Farms Organic — Total
Feed Ration Management”. This describes the processes utilized to manage and track
feed on the operation. Below is an analysis of these processes in more detail.

DHIA records were verified and showed average production right around 52 pounds/
Holstein cow for the past 4 months and a butterfat percent of 3.25. The operation milks
2x/day. (See milk audit below in section L)

DMD: The OSP does not include details on how the DMD and DMI are determined /
calculated as required in 205.237 (d)(4). The applicant provided a statement from the
nutritionist along with a description of the Spartan computer software used.

The applicant stated that a nutritionist retained by the company determines the DMD from
the “Spartan” computer software developed by Michigan State University from the NRC
method. The formulations are specific to the following cow groups:

High Producing Cows

Low Producing Cows

Far Off Dry cows :

Heifers (Open and bred are averaged)

The rations provided are calculated with consideration of pasture DMI and several
formulations are devised to accommodate the availability of forage, from no pasture, to
15% pasture and finally 30% pasture. The formulations assign a dry matter content to

3,6,7: SI4 | ingredients such as water and mineral, in order for them to show up in the formulation. Comment [$3]: Pleasc comment on
[DMI' The inclusi £ th d t sienifi lvi th 1t of the f lati N DMD and DMI calculations. Please
] The inclusion of these does not significantly impact the result of the formulation. New comment on the client's ability to comply
Calculations | rations are created each time there is a change in the available ingredients. Specifically, with the 30%1;[)0?;2{;’101"‘ pasture grazing
q y .

AESOP 10637; ISSUE 2; STATUS-PUBLISHED; EFFECTIVE 21 OCT 2010; AUTHORITY JACLYN BOWEN
© Copyright QAL Inc. Page 12 of 20



Printed: May 19, 2011

CE Name: Shamrock Farms Co

early in the grazing season they were using canola meal, then switched to dry roasted
beans and cotton seed in early summer. For the current Far Off Dry Cow, no pasture
ration where the applicant changed per nutritionist recommendations the 4 pounds of
alfalfa/head to 2 pounds of alfalfa and 2 pounds of Sudan hay per head to address milk
fever problems.

An MS Excel workbook was created during the last pasture season and was finalized as of
the inspection and updated to include data from the start of the pasture season on
December 14™. It is used to track pasture DMI based off of the actual amount fed and the
DMD from the nutritionist’s rations. The workbook is built for each pen from data on the
daily feed sheets that list all of the pens and numbers of cows/pen, generated from the
Feedwatch program on the mix truck. The pen summaries for the month for each pen are
tallied on the spreadsheets.

Based on the above spreadsheet, actual pasture DMI for the days that the animals were actually on
pasture this year were as follows:

Dec Jan Feb Mar
Days| % | Days | % | Days | % | Days | %
High Cows 17 | 26 14 31 11 9 12 14
Low Cows 17 | 31 14 31 11 2 12 16
Dry cows 14 | 31 1 0 28 0 15 0
Heifers 18 | 31 31 53 7 0 13 45

Pastures are now providing up to 2T/ac based on tests and plans are to shift to the 30% pasture
ration from here on out.

The rest of the season: Two more months of grazing will help them get close or slightly above the
120 day minimum. As long as pastures recover sufficiently between grazing, there should be
enough biomass to meet the herd’s needs.

Animals were kept off of pasture from November 1* to December 14" because of fieldwork and
the timing of irrigations. The calendar field log pages of which are attached from mid September
to December. This shows that by the time Beryl and the RR fields were planted and irrigated, they
had barely 1 month to grow in order to meet the target date of November 1* to tum cows out. The
applicant stated that realistically, to hit this target, it would be necessary to start field operations
and planting sooner to capture the longer days and have at least 10” of forage to graze. Inorder
to hit the 30% minimum he also stated that the forage should be about 18” tall.

Plans for coming into compliance:

Based on the DHP and as confirmed during the inspection, the operation has reduced the number
of animals to match these to the available pasture. The herd size is now stable.

The upcoming grazing season may be extended in the fall by planting forages in late summer that
can tolerate the heat and be grazed in the fall.

The LFP defines the grazing season as 137 days. The applicant is re-evaluating this and may
shorten or redefine the grazing season based on when crops are available. The need to update the
OSP to reflect any changes in that regard was discussed.

Request from the Nutritionist rations higher than 30% DM from pasture.
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See the feed audit below for the validation of the above-mentioned spreadsheet to feed rations and
availability of corn.

3: SIfj-

Feed Audit

Whole corn for the month of February was audited. The company maintains running
inventories of all commodities handled. Com can be difficult because it is received
whole, ground on site (dedicated grinder) and placed in piles, which are difficult to
inventory. Therefore, inventories are reconciled and adjusted when there is no corn left.
The amount used is generated from the Feed watch computer system for each of the
rations and used to obtain the ending inventory. This explains why in the table below, the
amount available exactly matches the used amount:

2/1/2011 BI 459,455.00
2/28/2011 El 573,186.00
Purchase 382,020.00
Available 268,289.00
Usage 268,289.00

Purchase documentation for the corn confirmed that the vendors are consistent with those
on the approved list, that the corn was organic and that the quantity in the calculation was
correct. Note that the quantity used in the calculations is the quantity that the vendor bills
on based on their weight tickets. In both instances, the weights on the Shamrock Farms
tickets were different than the ones on the vendor’s tickets. If one were to use the
Shamrock weight tickets, the total purchased would be 10,940 pounds higher than what is
recorded.

Based on an average of 88% dry matter in the whole corn or 236,094 pounds, the above
usage was validated using the feed rations and amounts fed during the month of February.
This was accomplished using the daily total dry mater intake for each pen from the
Pasture Dry Matter workbook described above. Several of the groups were fed a “no
pasture” ration while others got a 15% pasture ration. Taking this number and multiplying
by the average number of head fed during that time generated the total amount of DM fed
for the whole month. The % of dry matter from com was determined based on the specific
rations provided to each pen.

Pen 14-H | 5-H 3-CQu | 2-D 7-1 8-H 9-H 4-Fr Total #
TMR NP 365 653 749 771 805 902 926 1,265
Corn % DM 0.08 0.08 0.26 0.07 0.26 0.30 0.30 0.30
#/head 27.63 | 52.26 | 196.11 | 56.61 | 210.94 | 270.96 | 278.01 | 379.80
Head 11500 | 64.00 | 45.00 | 67.00 95 | 216.00 | 190.00 35.00

3,177 | 3344 | 9,609 | 3,793 | 20,039 | 58,527 | 52,822 [ 13,292 | 164,606

TMR 15% 423.54 | 521.67 | 522.73
Corn% DM 0.25 0.31 0.31
#/head 106.95 | 160.37 | 160.70
Head 110.00 | 212.00 | 185.00
11,764 | 33,999 [ 29,729 75,493
Tot 240,099

AESOP 10637; ISSUE 2; STATUS-PUBLISHED; EFFECTIVE 21 OCT 2010; AUTHORITY JACLYN BOWEN

© Copyright QAL Inc.

Page 14 of 20

Comment [S4]: Please comment on
the computerized feeding system.
Specifically. please describe how this
system calculates DMI and DMD, as well
as how justified the calculations are.




Printed: May 19, 2011

CE Name: Shamrock Farms Co

The above calculation validates the amount of corn used, as well as the pasture DM tables
used to track the amount of feed derived from pasture and fed. The numbers are not exact
because the actual amount of dry matter in the corn could vary, etc.

SI3 JFeed
Certificates
and
Specification
Sheets

Certificates were provided in the inspection file and were all current. The IFR list
provided in the inspection package was out dated so a more recent one, approved by the
CPM was provided and is attached. Certificates for Grain Millers and Saddlehorn
Ranches are attached because they were not provided in the inspection package.

Milk cow mineral is provided by Modesto Milling, a certificate for which was included in

| the inspection package.

The applicant provided a document titled “Shamrock Farms Organic Receiving” which
describes the process of receiving organic commodities and the records generated from
this process. The generation of these records was confirmed during the verification of the
receiving records for the corn during the audit.

Comment [S$5]: Please ensure that the
client has current NOP certificates and
specification sheets for all purchased feed
on file and return copies to QAI with
your report.

D.)Health Care

The applicant provided a document titled “Shamrock Farms Organic Administration of
Medications Protocol”. During the inspection, we met with the herdsman and visual
verification of medicines on hand at the organic barn confirmed that these procedures are
carried out as described.

o lr—

No docked tails or other alterations were noted in the herd.

5/6

The applicant provided a document titled “Shamrock Farms Organic Herd Health
Protocols” which describes the typical ailments experienced by the herd and their
treatments. The ailments listed are consistent with those mentioned by the applicant
during the interview and noted during the inspection of the hospital/fresh cow pen
(mastitis and foot problems). It was noted that the treatments listed are consistent with
those included on the MIP and found on site.

Health treatments are chronologically documented in a 3 ring binder and include the use
of oxytocin, vaccines and milk fever treatments (calcium gluconate). Because the records
are chronological, it is not feasible to audit the treatments provided to a cow throughout
its life.

‘When the professional hoof trimer treats animals for foot problems, trims hoofs etc, if the
infection is bad enough, he may apply copper sulfate to the wound prior to wrapping. The
use of the copper sulfate in this instance is not documented in the health log.

7

Pyganic use: The log was on file and verification confirmed the it is used for tail head
lice in June and October predominantly. An invoice for the pyganic purchased was
verified.

9

There were no antibiotics found in the medicine room of the organic operation.

E.) Living Conditions

1- 1l

The Saudi style barns are steel structures (with no stalls), open on all sides. Industrial style
fans automatically track the sun’s progress and shade and provide ample airflow
throughout the facility. Similarly, curtains on the W. side of the barn automatically lower
so that at sunset, when the sun’s angle is low, the cows are still in the shade. See attached
pictures. A document titled “Livestock Living Conditions” describes the maintenance of
the loafing areas in the Saudi Style barns. The activities described within that document
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Comment [S6]: Please comment on

" | the Saudi style barns, Specifically please

veify whether they enclosed and how
they facilitate outdoor access, Please
comment on the animals ability to move
freely, engage in comfort behaviors, and
exercise.




Printed: May 19, 2011

CE Name: Shamrock Farms Co

were confirmed during the inspection.

As noted above, pasture access is restricted based on the availability of forage. In
addition, the OSP describes how pasture access is denied during the off season/summer
months when it is too hot for the cows to graze them.

The document provided in the OSP application titled “Proposed Pasture SOP for
Shamrock Farms Organic Dairy” w/ a fax date of 11/19/2008 and in response to a PAMD
request, is now out of date and along with the Organic Pasture Log — Lactating, and
Organic Pasture Log — Dry Cows, and Organic Pasture Log — Heifers, is marked for
removal from the file. This was replaced by “Shamrock Farms Organic Pasture
Management” description which lists, rain/ Irrigation, Frost, High Day time temperatures
and inclement weather as reason for confinement of animals off of pasture. This is
accompanied by a pasture log that shows the date, the pen, the paddock, time in, time out
and signature. The completed pasture logs were verified to be consistently used. For the
frost period, the applicant made notes on daily temperatures (see attached copies).

Accompanying this is the Temporary Confinement Log which lists the date, the Cow ID,
the Pen and the reason for confinement.

Currently, animals are on pasture up to 6 hours from about 9 AM to 3 PM as noted on RR
5. They may adjust milk times to capture more of the cooler temperatures as the weather
heats up.

Water risers were installed on RR 5 for watering troughs at each paddock. Animals on the
W. end of Beryl are provided with water at the freestall barn. However, feed stanchions

2,3: [Pasture A
Restrictiond | 2 locked out so they are forced to go back out to pasture after hydration.
It was confirmed during the inspection that dry manure is spread over concrete walkways,
in areas where the cows bed down, etc. No straw or other plant matter or sand is used as
4: Bedding bedding.

F.) Pasture Management Plan

Intensive rotational grazing is utilized on the 2 acre paddocks on the RR pieces and
continuous type of grazing is used on the Beryl pasture which is broken down into larger
areas of 15-30 acres. The company is discussing the possibility of changing the
configuration of the center pivot to allow some flood irrigation on the E. end of Beryl.
This would allow them to implement rotational grazing in this section.

It was noted that the pastures are being very carefully managed to avoid over grazing. As
such, DM intake from pasture for various groups this grazing season ranged from zero
during certain portions of the month to 20% as stated above.

Forage quantities are determined using the following method; it consists of taking 3x1’
square samples, cutting @ 3” high, drying it down to determine the weight of the dry
matter in the samples. This is converted to an acre figure. (Weight of sample in pounds/3
samples x % DM x 43,560 = pounds DM/ac).

Based on visual observation, during the inspection, some of the pastures approximately
had between 1 and 2 T/ ac of dry matter biomass. See attached photographs.

2: B2

Overall, there are 688 head of livestock that are eligible for grazing (excludes the hospital |

Comment [$7]: Please provide the
total number of pasture acres provided
and please provide the total number of
animals that have access to that (those)
pasture(s); if access to pasture is
restricted at any time, please provide
details regarding the applicant's
justification for temporary confinement
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Printed: May 19, 2011

CE Name: Shamrock Farms Co

CERTIFIED ORGANIC

Stocking
Rates]

/fresh cows and the close-up cows). There are 351 acres of available pasture as of the
| inspection date, so it excludes RR 1 and 2 which are fallow. On average, that gives 1.96
head/acre of grazing.

|

rates for livestock and include specific

Comment [S8]: Please verify stocking
information in your inspection report.

G.)Pasture/Crop land

All of the certified fields/pastures were visited and it was confirmed that none are directly
adjacent to conventional production; Fields are separated by roads, field roads, and large

(

buffer zones are not necessary to protect

Comment [S9]: Please verify that
organic pasture from contamination.

2, S1 M dry, uncultivated areas from conventional agriculture.
2, |
H.)Product Protection
The applicant provided a letter dated 12/1/2010 that addressed the cleaning and sanitation
2 of all milk tankers by the Phoenix AZ plant.

1) Cleaning & Sanitation

The applicant provided a document titled “Shamrock Farms Organic Milking Procedure”
which was confirmed during the inspection. Teat dips used are those listed in the OSP.
The Ecolab Ecoplus 100 listed on the OSP is not currently used but it is a back up in case
they encounter wet conditions.

2 s1hl

The Ecolab cleaning materials listed in the Addendum Materials List were found on site.
The sodium hypochlorite it was stated, is used not only for sanitizing the towels but also
to boost the caustic Conquest CIP cleaner.

3

The sanitation log and the pH meter described in the OCP were both seen on site and
confirmed that they are being used.

J.) Pest management

No traps or bait stations were noted near the milk parlor. Sticky fly strips and fly bait

Comment [S10]: Please verify at
what level residual chlorine is present in
effluent rinse water. Levels in the water
must not exceed the maximum residual
disinfectant limit allowed under the Safe
Drinking Water Act.

1 traps may be used in the summer.
K.)Water
(2 | Confirmed water is from the on site wells. |
L.) Records
Milk production for the month of February was audited using the sight glass from the
milk tanks as the beginning inventory and the settlement summary from Sharmrock Dairy
processing plant.
February Milk Production
2/1/2011 Bl 49,550
Shipped 925,760
Produced 876,210
Per day 31,293
# head 531
#/head 59
The pounds per head are higher here than in the DHIA testing sheets because it was stated
those are derived from a snapshot of 1 day sampling in a month. The pounds were
corroborated with the desk calendar maintained in the milk barn where animal numbers
and pounds/head average are jotted down every day. The number of head milking is an
2: SI22: average that was derived from the pick up summary. It was noted that that number is
Milk JAudi{ | lower than what is in the updated DHP which actually is a snapshot of 3/15/2011. Weight |

AESOP 10637; ISSUE 2; STATUS-PUBLISHED; EFFECTIVE 21 OCT 2010; AUTHORITY JACLYN BOWEN
© Copyright QAI, Inc.

Page 17 of 20

=

Comment [S11]: Please conduct a
complete audit of milk records




Printed: May 19, 2011

CE Name: Shamrock Farms Co

tickets for all of the pick ups were also on file and used to validate the figures in the pick
up summary.
C: Product Profile(s)
Crop Profiles
Ref # Description of Discrepancy /Relevant Observation
The acreage for RR4 was 65 acres in 2010, it is now listed as 66. The acreage for RR5 was 63 ac in 2010
and it is now 64.7 ac. The applicant confirmed that these figures are accurate and it was noted durin the
LIFP inspection, that no land was added to the operation.
2: AIR, SI Jl4l The DeLaval Feedtech silage inoculant was fond on site and the label confirmed OMRI compliance. Comment [S12]: Please verify the
Dairvy Profil information provided on the Annual Input
alryf ol1les Record is correct, Please initial or check
Ref # the Inspector Use Only Section on
Annual Input Record for each point
1: SIW- | verified. )
IFR The IFR lists the milk cow mineral mixed into the TMR as “Animal Feed Dairy”. | Comment [S13]: Please verify that
= s " - - , the information provided on the
This information is now included on the Livestock Farm Profile Form and the Dairy Herd Individual Feed Ration(s) is correct.
2: SIfi Profile Form. The livestock LFP lists 475.8 acres which does not include the 40 ac of dry Please initial or check the Inspector Use
1 - Only Section on IFR(s) for each point
HPP corners on the Beryl piece. verified. **** If the IFR's are revised
The materials listed in the MIP are consistent with those found on site. A total of 4x50# and/or new IFR's submilled please
X . provide a clean copy with the report for
bags of copper sulfate are used in footbaths every week. The applicant stated that they | the client's file. ]
had not noted any build-up of copper in their soils as a result. { Comment [s14]: )
There were no emollients on site, such as bag balm etc. The applicant stated that they did
not need these in this climate and that he felt that they contribute to the spread of mastitis
4: SI llBl MIP | in the herd. The teat dips have emollients in them. Comment [S15]: Please verify that

Section 4: ATTACHMENTS

Please list attachments to your report below.

Photographs

Crop Production Records, calendar

E-mail from John Voss to John Joseph alerting him of the frost and some of the implications.

Pasture logs showing frost conditions.

E-mail communication and description of DMD calculation from the Nutritionist, Theo Lykos

Feed Rations from Theo Lykos

Sample Daily Recipe sheets from Feedwatch for 3/16/11

Monthly Pasture Dry Matter Intake sheets since the beginning of the grazing season.

w|oo[xo [l a[w o

._Organic Certs for Saddlehorn Ranches and Grain Millers

10. Updated IFR

11. Updated DHP

12. Replacements Policy

13. Birth, death and culling policy

14. Total feed ration policy

15. Feed ingredient receiving policy

16. Pasture management policy

17. Administration of medications protocol

18. Herd health protocols

19. Vaccinations protocols

20. Pasture Log
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the information provided on the Medical
Input Profile(s) is correct. Please initial
or check the Inspector Use Only Section
on MIP(s) for each point verified. **** If
the MIPs are revised and/or new MIPs
submitted please provide a clean copy
with the report for the client's file.
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CE Name: Shamrock Farms Co

21. Temporary confinement log

22, Living conditions description

23. Milk Tanker cleaning procedure from the plant

24. Milking procedure
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CE Name: Shamrock Farms Co

Section 5: Applicant Authorization: NOP 205.403(a)(2)

I, the client, hereby acknowledge that I have reviewed and accept these observations of the Auditor and that all
information is true and correct to the best of my knowledge. I understand that additional unannounced visits by QAI may
be required, for which I hereby give my permission. I hereby acknowledge that all corrective actions noted by the
auditor are recommendations only and may be overturned or added to by QAI, and that I will implement
corrective actions only after receiving formal notification from QAL

5/19/11
APPLICANT SIGNATURE ' DATE

Section 6: Auditor Authorization:

Under penalty of perjury, I swear that I have reviewed the application and its supporting documents; and that all of the
information I have collected and submitted with this audit package is true to the best of my knowledge. I understand that
if I fraudulently misrepresent information, or violate the terms and conditions of the Audit Agreement, I am liable for all
damages rendered by a court of law. I further indemnify and hold harmless Quality Assurance International, its agents
and all others from liability for mistakes I knowingly commit. In addition, I attest to the following (please initial):

1. - I understand that neither I nor an immediate family member are currently providing consulting
services or in any way involved commercially with this operation. Furthermore, I understand that neither I nor an
immediate family member may engage in such activities within the next 12 months without first informing QAI.

: |_I attest that I have not accepted payment, gifts, or favors of any kind from the operation audited.

. _I understand that I am required to submit my audit report to QAI within 7 days of audit. If 1 am
not able to submit my report in the allotted time frame it must be approved by QAI or my audit fee will be subject
to a delayed payment penalty of 30 days.

: I attest that I am an active member of a recognized auditor/inspector training organization IQIA
. I attest that I have not inspected this operation for more than four consecutive years.
! __I attest that neither I nor an immediate family member have provided consulting services for, or

had a commercial interest in, the applicant/operation ( within the last (24) twenty-four months).

2

AUDITOR SIGNATURE DATE

Section 7: Report Copy:
A copy of this completed report will be provided to you by QAI per NOP 205.403(¢e)(2).
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From: Schmale, Valerie

To: "Randolph. Alexis"
Subject: RE: Shamrock Visit
Date: Tuesday, April 05, 2011 6:29:20 AM
Attachments: Schmale Valerie3.vcf
image001.ipa

Great thanks Alexis! See you there.

National Organic Program - Organic Integrity from Farm to Table, Consumers Trust the Organic Label
The NOP facilitates trade and ensures integrity of organic agricultural products by consistently implementing organic standards and
enforcing compliance with the regulations throughout the world.

Want to be an Organic Insider? Sign up here: http://bit.ly/NOPOrganiclnsiderRegistration
“The true measure of a man is how he treats someone who can do him absolutely no good.” Ann Landers

“If you don’t have the courage to confront, you don’t have the right to complain. Don’t wait for anger to give you the courage.” —
Unknown

From: Randolph, Alexis [mailto:Randolph@qai-inc.com]
Sent: Monday, April 04, 2011 5:25 PM

To: Schmale, Valerie

Subject: RE: Shamrock Visit

Val,

Yes, that is the correct address. The contact is John Voss and his phone number is 480-988-1452.

Alexis

From: Schmale, Valerie [mailto:Valerie.Schmale@ams.usda.gov]
Sent: Monday, April 04, 2011 8:45 AM

To: Randolph, Alexis

Subject: RE: Shamrock Visit

Hi Alexis,

Awesome, that works. We’ll probably do the grab and go lunch from the Hertz
counter, but I’ll let you know for sure when | know more. Let me verify that the
location is: 40034 W Clayton, Stanfield, Arizona 852727

Thanks,


mailto:/O=USDA/OU=AMSWASHINGTON/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=VALERIE.SCHMALE
mailto:Randolph@qai-inc.com
http://bit.ly/NOPOrganicInsiderRegistration
http://thinkexist.com/quotation/the_true_measure_of_a_man_is_how_he_treats/12707.html
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Schmale, Valerie
Compliance & Enforcement

Ag. Marketing Spec. Regulatory
noP

+1(202) 720-3252Work
Valerie. Schmale@arms.usda.gov
1400 Independence Ave., S.W.
Room 2646-5, STOP 0268
Washington, DC 20250-0268





Val

National Organic Program - Organic Integrity from Farm to Table, Consumers Trust the Organic Label
The NOP facilitates trade and ensures integrity of organic agricultural products by consistently implementing organic standards and
enforcing compliance with the regulations throughout the world.

Want to be an Organic Insider? Sign up here: http://bit.ly/NOPQrganiclnsiderRegistration
“The true measure of a man is how he treats someone who can do him absolutely no good.” Ann Landers

“If you don’t have the courage to confront, you don’t have the right to complain. Don’t wait for anger to give you the courage.” —
Unknown

From: Randolph, Alexis [mailto:Randolph@qai-inc.com]
Sent: Monday, April 04, 2011 11:40 AM

To: Schmale, Valerie

Subject: RE: Shamrock Visit

Hi Valerie,

Thanks for the update. Let’s plan to meet at Shamrock between 2:45 and 3:00pm. My plane actually
arrives a bit earlier than yours and I'm not sure which rental car company I'll be using under our
corporate rates. So | will make my own way and probably pick-up some lunch.

Feel free to call me once you are on route if you'll be arriving earlier than that. Otherwise I'll see you
there.

Alexis

From: Schmale, Valerie [mailto:Valerie.Schmale@ams.usda.gov]
Sent: Monday, April 04, 2011 3:41 AM

To: Randolph, Alexis; Randolph, Alexis

Subject: Shamrock Visit

Alexis,

Good morning. There has to be a slight change of plans with our visit. | received word
from our travel office that we cannot carry non-government employees on travel status
in the rental car with us, it is in violation of the regulations. So, | have to rescind our
offer of a ride from and to the airport. Can we plan to meet at the car rental location
and then travel in tandem to the site?


http://bit.ly/NOPOrganicInsiderRegistration
http://thinkexist.com/quotation/the_true_measure_of_a_man_is_how_he_treats/12707.html

Please give me a call if you have any questions.
(202) 205-7804 — direct line.

Thanks,
Val

National Organic Program - Organic Integrity from Farm to Table, Consumers Trust the Organic Label
The NOP facilitates trade and ensures integrity of organic agricultural products by consistently implementing organic standards and
enforcing compliance with the regulations throughout the world.

Want to be an Organic Insider? Sign up here: http://bit.ly/NOPQrganiclnsiderRegistration

“The true measure of a man is how he treats someone who can do him absolutely no good.” Ann Landers

“If you don’t have the courage to confront, you don’t have the right to complain. Don’t wait for anger to give you the courage.” —
Unknown


http://bit.ly/NOPOrganicInsiderRegistration
http://thinkexist.com/quotation/the_true_measure_of_a_man_is_how_he_treats/12707.html
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l. INTRODUCTION

The Compliance & Enforcement (C&E) Division of the National Organic Program (NOP) is
responsible for investigating complaints filed under the Organic Foods Production Act of 1990
(7 USC 6501 et seq.) and its related laws and regulations.

On October 14, 2008, C&E received a complaint through David Trykowski, Director,
Agricultural Marketing Service (AMS) Compliance and Analysis Branch regarding alleged
violations of the NOP at Shamrock Farms Dairy (Shamrock) facility in Phoenix, Arizona (AZ)
(Exhibit 1). Mr. Will Fantle, Director of Research, The Cornucopia Institute, Cornucopia,
Wisconsin (WI) made the complaint.

On October 21, 2008, Valerie Schmale, Agricultural Marketing Specialist (Regulatory) C & E,
contacted Joe Smillie, of Quality Assurance International (QAI), Shamrock’s certifying agent, to
begin an investigation into the allegations (Exhibit 9Y). The case was referred to Maria
DeVincenzo, Quality Specialist, QAI, for further investigation.

An investigation was conducted and the results of the investigation are contained in this report.
Significant terms:

Center-pivot irrigation (sometimes called central pivot irrigation), also called circle
irrigation — is a method of crop irrigation in which equipment rotates around a pivot.

Dry cow — A cow that will no longer give milk.

Feed — Edible materials which are consumed by livestock for their nutritional value. Feed may
be concentrates (grains) or roughages (fodder, hay, silage). The term, “feed” encompasses all
agricultural commodities, including pasture ingested by livestock for nutritional purposes.

Feed additive — A substance added to feed in micro quantities to fulfill a specific nutritional
need; i.e. essential nutrients in the form of amino acids, minerals, and vitamins.

Feed supplement — A combination of feed nutrients added to livestock feed to improve the
nutrient balance or performance of the total ration and intended to be: (1) Diluted with other fees
when fed to livestock; (2) Offered free choice with other parts of the ration if separately
available; or (3) Further diluted and mixed to produce a complete feed.

Field — An area of land identified as a discrete unit within a production operation.

Forage — Vegetative material in a fresh, dried, or ensiled state (pasture, hay, or silage), which is
fed to livestock.

Heifer — A young female cow before she has had her first calf.



Pasture — Land used for livestock grazing that is managed to provide feed value and maintain or
improve soil, water, and vegetative resources.

Records — Any information in written, visual, or electronic form that documents the activities
undertaken by a producer, handler, or certifying agent to comply with the Act and regulations in
this part.

Saudi Barn - an open styled barn designed by the University of Arizona for use in the Saudi
Arabian desert. The barn consists of a feed line under a shaded area, which allows the animals to
be handled in the headlocks while eating. In other words, lean-to’s with a concrete floor where
the air temperature is controlled with fans and misters.

Split operation — An operation that produces or handles both organic and nonorganic
agricultural products.

Springer — A female that is about to give birth to a calf.
BACKGROUND

Shamrock Dairy is a split operation with a total of about 10,000 cows, 1,000 of which were
certified organic in June 2007. Shamrock is the only organic dairy in Arizona. Milk is shipped
to its plant in Phoenix where it is bottled as fluid milk and processed into sour cream.

Shamrock has been certified with QAI for crops and livestock since March 2, 2007

(Exhibit 5C). Shamrock was certified to handle silage on April 5, 2007 and dairy products on
April 23, 2007. Shamrock’s organic dairy herd was started in June 2007 using a group of
heifers that were transitioned in Oregon (Exhibit 5D). Two more groups of heifers entered the
herd in 2007. One group entered the herd on June 5, 2007 and is known as the X group. The
second group entered the herd on September 21, 2007 and is known as the Y group. Records
indicate that there are 119 head accounted for in the X herd and 129 head accounted for in the Y
herd. On January 2, 2009, Shamrock became a certified producer of crops for livestock feed
(barley, hay, pasture, oats, sorghum, and Sudan Grass).

Shamrock’s Dairy Organic Compliance Plan (OCP) (Exhibit 6E) for livestock management
covers the Shamrock Farms Company in Stanfield, Arizona (AZ). According to Shamrock’s
OCP Herd Pasture Profile (HPP), dated November 15, 2008, there are 998 head of organic dairy
cattle and 160 acres of organic pasture at Shamrock (Exhibit 6F — last page). Shamrock is
certified for crops, handling, and livestock. Crops grown for the organic operations include
permanent pasture, alfalfa, and winter forage. There are no outside sales of crops; all crops
harvested are used for on-farm feed.

As of November 18, 2008, Shamrock’s OCP Item A6 indicates there are 750 milk cows managed
organically. The HPP dated November 15, 2008 indicates that the number of organic pasture
acres is 160 total. The HPP indicates the breakdown of the organic herd as follows in the chart

below.
Table 1
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Herd Pasture Profile

Age Group |# of Production |Pasture Fields |Acreage of [Number of Estimated Number
Animals in |Status Provided to Pasture Feed Units Fed |of Pasture Units
Age Group this Age Group|Fields to each Age Fed to each Age

Provided |Group per day |Group per day

16 months 125 Heifers Berl 320 160 20 1 acre*

22 months  [123 Springers  |Berl 320 160 24 1.25 acres*

24+ months {200 Dry Cows |Berl 320 160 24 2.5 acres*

24+ months  [550 Milking Berl 320 160 20 5.5 acres*

*Note: Figures as shown are not accurate. Figures should be reported as 1.28 acres per cow, 1.30 acres per cow, 0.80 acres per cow,
and 0.29 acres per cow respectively by dividing the acreage by the number of cows.

The inspector’s report dated November 20, 2008 (Exhibit 8H), indicates that there were
120 acres of available pasture on Beryl 320, not 160 acres as stated on the HPP above.
The report also states on page 6 of 18 that alfalfa fields, which were scheduled to
complete transition in 2009, were planted with treated seed. The error significantly
impacted the operations’ ability to implement the intended pasture plan.

On page 7 of 18, Item 4, the November 20, 2008 report states that the 130 acres included
in Red River 4, 5, and 6 were not used for the organic herd in the 2008 summer. The
alfalfa was worked up and the fields were being planted to cereal grain at the time of
inspection.

On page 8 of 18, Item A4 states, ““1. ...The 160 acres on the E side is where the current
pasture is...(b) The applicant convinced the Arizona Water Board to allow them to move
the water right to the E side of the parcel, which had never been farmed before. (c) As a
result the quality of the ground on which the current pasture resides is a heavy ‘caliche’
type soil, heavy clay but very poor in nutrients. (d) The applicant boosted nutrient
contents initially by applying composted chicken manure. They have planted two cycles
of annuals/year, including a small grain cereal (usually oats) in the winter and sorghum
in the summer. Cattle manure from the feed area is spread on the field each year and the
cows graze the field.”

Page 13 of 18, Item E1) Living conditions states that, ““The cows are in what is called a
‘Saudi Barn’ which consists of leetos with a concrete floor. Air temperature is controlled
with fans and misters.”

Page 13 of 18, Item E2/S11 number 1. states, ““For the 2008 winter, the 120 acres of
pasture on Beryl 320 was the extent of available land.”” Number 2. states, ““The applicant
states this first year of providing pasture to cows at Shamrock dairy was not very
successful for the lactating cows but as far as the heifers and the dry cows, they did
benefit from this access. Overall:...b. Milk cows were curious about having the gates
open and ventured into oats, in the first 1/3" of the pasture closest to the feed area and
ate that down pretty well and quickly. After that, the cows lost interest and stayed in the
shade of the feed area where they were provided with a complete ration at 100%. i. In
essence, the applicant provided access to pasture but did not force them by limiting the
feed and putting them out to eat.”



Shamrock’s Proposed Pasture SOP for the Organic Dairy (page 48, Exhibit 8H) indicates that
animals shall have access to pasture except for the reasons of:
e Pasture development (irrigation, planting, manure application)
e Inclement weather (Daily temperature exceeding 90°F, severe monsoon storms)
e Health Issues (dry animals, heifers in the last 30 days of gestation, fresh animals less
than 45 days in milk, animals that are weak or sick and in need of close monitoring)

The Proposed Pasture SOP does not indicate the number of acres available per cow, or the total
number of acres available for pasture. Irrigation on the Beryl 320 parcel is accomplished
through center-pivot irrigation. Irrigation for the Red River parcels is accomplished through
flooding. Cattle cannot be pastured during times of irrigation because of damage created by the
animals’ hooves in the soft ground.

In a December 1, 2008 letter to Shamrock (Exhibit 9M), QAI indicated the inspector had noted
that for the winter of 2008, the extent of pasture for the dairy was 140 acres. QAI requested that
Shamrock provide a written plan to provide adequate pasture for its organic livestock. The plan
was to include acreage, forage description, the timing of the cropping cycles such that there
would always be ground available for grazing, animal numbers, and the duration/frequency of
their stay on the pasture as well as an assessment of the pasture’s ability to provide substantive
nutritive value to the animals pastured. There is no evidence that QAI followed up on the
noncompliances noted in the December 1, 2008 letter.

On December 15, 2009, (Exhibit 8G) QAI performed an unannounced inspection at Shamrock
Farms Dairy. The report stated that this inspection took place in the middle of a transition
between two annual crop plantings and animals were not seen on the pastures. The inspector did
note that permanent fences were present on Beryl and Red River (RR) 4 and an electric fence
was noted on RR4.

The inspector noted that it is clear from the field inspection that animals do graze the fields due
to the compacted areas in the lanes and where the water troughs are located. Beryl 320 and RR4
were seen planted in barley and oats respectively. RR5 and RR6 are being used for crops and are
planned for harvest in May 2010. The Beryl West pasture is being used exclusively for milk
cows since it adjoins their housing area.
e From 11/19/08-1/21/09 (63 days — 43 days in 2008; 20 days in 2009) all of Beryl 320 was
not available for grazing because the crop was just getting established.
e From 1/21/09-4/30/09 access was provided except during irrigation cycles.
0 1/29-31/09 — 2/3/09 access denied due to irrigation (6 days)
0 2/17/09 access denied due to rain (1 day)
0 2/21-28/09 — 3/2/09 access denied due to irrigation (10 days)
0 3/17-24/09 access denied due to irrigation (8 days)
O 4/6-13/09 access denied due to irrigation (8 days)
e 5/1/09 Sudan was planted and it got to hot according to the inspection report. Access was
denied for pasture development from May 1-31, 2009 (31 days) according to pasture
logs.
e 6/1-16/09 (16 days) pasture was denied for pasture development.
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6/18-30/09 (13 days) pasture was denied for irrigation and heat.

7/1-31/09 (31 days) pasture was denied for heat and crops.

8/1-10/09 (10 days)pasture was denied for crops.

8/11-31/09 (21 days) pasture was denied for pasture development.

9/1/09 — 12/15/09 (106 days) pasture was denied for pasture development.

Based on the figures above obtained from pasture logs on December 15, 2009, Shamrock cows
were denied pasture 281 days during the period of January 1, 2009 — December 15, 2009 or 81
percent of the 349 days documented. The report stated that each pen has access for 12 hours.
The 12-hour access is based on three paddocks available for six corrals of milking cows. Based
upon the milking schedule it works out to 12 hours per cow. The report states that there are
about 750 cows on any given day for the 80 acres available on Beryl (0.11 acre/head). A Herd
Pasture Profile was included with the report with updated figures and is recreated below as

Table 2.
Table 2
Herd Pasture Profile
Dated 12/15/09

Age Group |# of Production |Pasture Fields |Acreage of [Number of Estimated Number
Animals in |Status Provided to Pasture Feed Units Fed |of Pasture Units
Age Group this Age Group |Fields to each Age Fed to each Age

Provided |Group per day |Group per day

16 months |85 Heifers Berl 320, RR 4 |145 20 1.23 acres/head™

22 months (32 Springers  |Berl 320, RR 4 |145 24 1.23 acres/head*

24+ months 172 Dry Cows |Berl 320 80 24 0.46 acres/head™

24+ months (860 Milking Berl 320 80 20 0.11 acres/head*

*Note: Figures as shown are not accurate. Figures should read 1.71 acres/head, 4.53 acres/head, 0.47 acres/head, and 0.093
acres/head respectively by dividing the acreage by the number of cows.

e The report states that silage was harvested from Beryl 320 but there was no time for it to
be grazed due to the very hot summer.

e In the fall Beryl 320 had to be replanted from oats to barley because of poor germination,
which was caused by crusting of the soil.

o0 The soil on Beryl is very low in organic matter and heavy in clay since it has not been
farmed for very long.

0 Manure is being used to improve this but it will take time because too much manure
would create a salt problem, which is closely monitored by soil testing (not verified
by the inspector)

e Shamrock stated that they have a lack of permanent pasture.



1. ALLEGATIONS

The Cornucopia Institute (Cornucopia) broadly alleges violations of the National Organic
Program’s (NOP) regulatory standards governing dairy cows and access to pasture provisions.

Allegation 1: Cornucopia contends that Shamrock’s feedlot facility does not provide sufficient
pasture for its dairy herd of approximately 11,000 cows, of which approximately 700-1,000 cows
are managed organically.

Allegation 2: Cornucopia contends that Shamrock’s cows were confined to feedlots and not
pastured for weeks.

Allegation 3: Cornucopia contends that geographic or climatic conditions, which make pasture
impractical or not cost-effective, cannot be used to justify year-round noncompliance with the
pasture rule.

I. METHODOLOGY

In response to the October 14, 2008 (Exhibit 1) initial complaint, On October 21, 2008
(Exhibit 9Y), Valerie Schmale with NOP C & E requested that QAI conduct an investigation
into the allegations consistent with C&E procedures for certified operations. Ms. Schmale also
requested QAI respond back to NOP with their findings by November 27, 2008; and a
description of corrective action with a timeline for implementation.

On October 28, 2008 (Exhibit 9X), C&E Branch Chief, Ruihong Guo sent Cornucopia
correspondence to request more information and evidence to support its allegations against
Shamrock. C&E requested more information from Mr. Fantle because the initial complaint
lacked sufficient evidentiary support to warrant a C&E investigation. Mr. Mark Kastel,
Cornucopia, responded on November 3, 2008 that he was traveling and could not put the
evidence together until his return; no specific date was proposed.

In a November 7, 2008 (Exhibit 9W), response to C&E’s request, QAI indicated that a review of
the inspection report from an April 1, 2008 inspection did not indicate any questions as to the
organic integrity of the operation. QAI indicated that if a full investigation was not completed
by January 30, 2009, it would submit an update on the current progress to the USDA. In a
November 10, 2008 response, the NOP stated that complaints were time sensitive and must be
investigated promptly. NOP responded that a full report was expected by November 27, 2008.
QAU responded on November 26, 2008 that it had conducted an investigation on November 19
and 20, 2008. QA stated that they would be issuing Shamrock a noncompliance letter on
December 1, 2008 (Exhibit 9U).

On December 1, 2008, QAI sent Shamrock, a Notice of Noncompliance (Exhibit 9U) to address
deficiencies found during the November 19-20, 2008 inspection. QAI indicated the inspector
had noted that for the winter of 2008, the extent of pasture for the dairy was 140 acres. QAI
requested that Shamrock provide a written plan to provide adequate pasture for its organic
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livestock. The plan was to include acreage, forage description, the timing of the cropping cycles
such that there would always be ground available for grazing, animal numbers, and the
duration/frequency of their stay on the pasture as well as an assessment of the pasture’s ability to
provide substantive nutritive value to the animals pastured. Additionally, QAI stated that
Shamrock would have to complete Individual Field Profile (IFP) Sheets for Red River 1, 2, and 3
fields that would be eligible for organic use in the autumn of 2009.

On December 10, 2008 (Exhibit 4), QAI sent a letter to Barbara C. Robinson, Acting Director
National Organic Program, addressing the allegations of the complaint. In that letter, QAI stated
that it believed Shamrock was complying with NOP regulations as currently written. QAI also
addressed each allegation.

On September 17, 2009 (Exhibit 2), Schmale and Compliance Specialist Tammie Wilburn
conducted a telephone interview with Mr. Will Fantle and Mr. Mark Kastel of the Cornucopia
Institute. The telephone interview was conducted as a final attempt to collect evidence to
support Cornucopia’s complaint prior to moving to case closure. Schmale and Wilburn
summarized the interview in a memorandum of telephone conversation, which was affirmed by
all interview participants.

On December 4, 2009 (Exhibit 9M), Schmale requested and received from QAI, Shamrock’s
response to the December 1, 2009, Notice of Noncompliance.

On December 11, 2009 (Exhibit 9L), Schmale requested QAI perform an unannounced
inspection. The inspection was scheduled for December 15, 2009. On December 15, 2009, an
unannounced inspection was conducted at Shamrock. That report was received by C & E on
January 4, 2010. The findings of that inspection are contained in this report.

The following findings of fact are supported by:

(1) QAI’s November 20, 2008 inspector’s report submitted to C&E (Exhibit 8H),

(2) QAI’s December 1, 2008 Notice of Noncompliance to Shamrock (Exhibit 9U),

(3) QAI’s December 10, 2008 response to allegations (Exhibit 4),

(4) Shamrock’s response to the Notice of Noncompliance (Exhibit 3B),

(5) C&E’s September 17, 2009 Memo of Interview with the Cornucopia Institute
(Exhibit 2),

(6) QAI’s December 15, 2009 inspector’s report submitted to C & E (Exhibit 8G), and

(7) Additional information as requested of QAI and the Cornucopia Institute
(Exhibits 91-Y).



IV.  FINDINGS OF FACT

Allegation 1: Cornucopia contends that Shamrock’s feedlot facility does not provide sufficient
pasture for its dairy herd of approximately 11,000 cows, of which approximately 700-1000 cows
are managed organically.

In its December 10, 2008 (Exhibit 4) letter, QAI responded that until the NOP finalizes the
pasture rule, it will not require a certain number of cows per acre nor a certain quantity of feed
from pasture/grazing. QAI findings indicate that access to the outdoors was provided aside from
the instances related to inclement weather, animals’ stage of production, or risk to soil or water
quality. The reasons for confinement were consistent with NOP regulations. QAI findings
indicate that pasture has been available, consistent with NOP regulations despite setbacks related
to suitable pasture.

QA inspector findings indicate that Shamrock is transitioning land near the dairy and an
intensive grazing plan is being implemented. QAI reported that Shamrock has just converted an
additional 194 acres for grazing. For the 2008 winter, spring, and fall, the only available pasture
was the 160 acres known as Beryl 320. For the 2008 winter, 140 acres of pasture on Beryl 320
was the extent of available land. The findings indicated that as soon as the winter planting of
oats in the newly transitioned Red River 4, 5, and 6 is established, the acreage will increase
significantly and thus increasing the available grazing configuration.

Findings indicated that pastures were split into paddocks. It was reported that the milk cows
were curious about having the gates open and ventured into oats in the first 1/3" of the pasture
closest to the feed areas and ate it down pretty well and quickly. The cows lost interest after that
and stayed in the shade of the feed area where they were provided with a complete ration at
100%. Shamrock provided access to pasture, but did not force the cows by limiting the feed and
putting them out to eat. Dry cows and heifers were used to eat up all of the remaining pasture
that was in oats and they did a good job of it. Oats were a good choice of forage, but sorghum
was not. The cows did not have an interest in the sorghum. The heifers did forage in the
sorghum, however, they lost weight in the process and were removed.

A feed audit revealed that a total of less than 6 Tons per acre of sorghum silage was harvested.
Locally, it was stated that yields go from 10 to 20 Tons/acre, which shows that the cows were
foraging in the stand.

Shamrock plans to use Brown Midrib Sudan sorghum hybrid, which has a success of being used
to graze in the south, instead of Sudan grass which when stressed puts out prussic acid that
imparts a bad taste to the milk and is not healthy for the cows.

QA provided a table (Page 14 of 18 of the November 20, 2008 Inspection report (Exhibit 8H);
titled Table 3, Grazing Season Figures for this report) explaining the grazing season in relation to
animal numbers and acres available for pasture (MC = Milking Cows, DR = Dry Cows, H =
Heifers). Table 3 is being utilized for the response to all allegations contained in this report:

10



Table 3
Grazing Season Figures (2008)

Animal # Acres Available
Month MC DR H Cow DC&H Crop
February 743 4 253 100 20 Oats
March 730 16 367 100 20 Oats
April 701 43 365 0 120 Oats
May 15" 701 24 365 0 120 Oats
May 16" On  |701 24 365 0 0 Crop Switch
June 663 88 471 0 0 Crop Switch
July 624 184  |398 0 120 Sorghum
August 627 195 (374 0 0 Sorghum
September 635 179  |365 0 0 Sorghum
October 672 189 |308 0 0 Sorghum
November 672 189 |308 0 0 Crop Switch
Average # 679 103 |358
Total [1140

Specific notes to the table indicate (1) that grazing of the oats started in mid to end of January
and (2) the heifers tried to graze the sorghum for about 10 days in July.

Inspection records indicate that Shamrock dairy is a split operation with a total of about 10,000
cows, 1,000 of which are managed organically. QAI documented on its November 20, 2008
Inspection Report (Exhibit 8H) that Shamrock has not provided sufficient access to pasture for
its organic dairy herd. QAI indicated the inspector had noted that for the winter of 2008, the
extent of pasture for the dairy was 140 acres.

QAU requested that Shamrock provide a written plan to provide adequate pasture for its organic
livestock. The plan was to include acreage, forage description, the timing of the cropping cycles
such that there would always be ground available for grazing, animal numbers, and the
duration/frequency of their stay on the pasture as well as an assessment of the pasture’s ability to
provide substantive nutritive value to the animals pastured. Additionally, QAI stated that
Shamrock would have to complete Individual Field Profile (IFP) Sheets for Red River 1, 2, and 3
fields that would be eligible for organic use in the autumn of 2009. Copies of QAI’s inspection
records dated November 20, 2008, are in Exhibit 8H.

The December 15, 2009 Unannounced Inspection (Exhibit 8G) disclosed that Shamrock
admitted it did not have permanent pasture. Shamrock also provided documentation that it had
1,149 cows being managed organically on available pasture of 80-145 acres Table 2 page 7 of
this report. Additionally, through documentation obtained from the December 15, 2009
Unannounced Inspection (Exhibit 8G), it was determined that Shamrock denied its organic herd
access to pasture 281 days out of 349 days documented for heat, irrigation, and pasture
development.
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Allegation 2: Cornucopia contends that Shamrock’s cows were confined to feedlots and not
pastured for weeks.

In its December 10, 2008 letter, QAI responded that findings indicate that access to the outdoors
was provided aside from the instances related to inclement weather, animals’ stage of
production, or risk to soil or water quality. The reasons for confinement were consistent with
NOP regulations. QAI findings indicate that pasture has been available, consistent with NOP
regulations. QAI provided a table (see page 10 of this report, Table 3 Grazing Season Figures)
explaining the grazing season in relation to animal numbers and acres available for pasture.

The QAI inspector reviewed pasture logs from April 1-30, 2008 and July 1-31, 2008

(Exhibit 8H). The April pasture log shows the herd was denied pasture from April 5-8, 2008
due to irrigation of the field. The July pasture log shows the herd was denied pasture from July
1-31, 2008 due to ambient temperatures exceeding 90°F. The Inspector’s Report dated
November 20, 2008 (Exhibit 8H), states on page 2, item 3 that heifers and dry cows did not need
supplemental feed during the winter when they were grazing the oats. Item 5 of the report states
that the only available pasture was 160 acres known as Beryl 320. The report states that as soon
as the winter planting of oats in the newly transitioned Red River Fields 4, 5, and 6 is
established, the acreage will increase significantly and so will the configuration of the available
grazing.

The December 15, 2009 Unannounced Inspection (Exhibit 8G) revealed that during 20009,
Shamrock denied access to pasture to its organic dairy herd 281 days out of 349 days
documented due to heat, irrigation, and pasture development.

Allegation 3: Cornucopia contends that geographic or climatic conditions, which make pasture
impractical or not cost-effective, cannot be used to justify year-round noncompliance with the
pasture rule.

In its December 10, 2008 letter (Exhibit 4), QAI responded that until the NOP finalizes the
pasture rule, it will not require a certain number of cows per acre nor a certain quantity of feed
from pasture/grazing. QAI findings indicate that access to the outdoors was provided aside from
the instances related to inclement weather, animals’ stage of production, or risk to soil or water
quality. The reasons for confinement were consistent with NOP regulations. QAI findings
indicate that pasture has been available, consistent with NOP regulations. QAI provided a table
(see page 10, Table 3 Grazing Season Figures) explaining the grazing season in relation to
animal numbers and acres available for pasture.

Specific notes to the table indicate (1) that grazing of the oats started in mid to end of January
and (2) the heifers tried to graze the sorghum for about 10 days in July.

Additionally, a QAI inspector reviewed pasture logs from April 1-30, 2008 and July 1-31, 2008.
The April pasture log shows the herd was denied pasture from April 5-8, 2008 due to irrigation
of the field. The July pasture log shows the herd was denied pasture from July 1-31, 2008 due to
ambient temperatures exceeding 90°F. The Inspector’s Report dated November 20, 2008
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(Exhibit 8H), states on page 2, item 3 that heifers and dry cows did not need supplemental feed
during the winter when they were grazing the oats. Item 5 of the report states that the only
available pasture was 160 acres known as Beryl 320. The report states that as soon as the winter
planting of oats in the newly transitioned Red River Fields 4, 5, and 6 is established, the acreage
will increase significantly and so will the configuration of the available grazing.

The December 15, 2009 Unannounced Inspection (Exhibit 8G) revealed that during 2009,
Shamrock denied access to pasture to its organic dairy herd 281 days out of 349 days
documented due to heat, irrigation, and pasture development.

Quality Assurance International (QAI)
Records indicate QA initially certified Shamrock March 2, 2007 for Livestock and Crop
(Producer).
e On April 5, 2007, QAI certified Shamrock for Livestock Feed (Silage).
e On April 23, 2007, QAI then certified Shamrock for Dairy Cows (not for slaughter) and
Milk (Raw).
e OnJanuary 2, 2009, QAI certified Shamrock for Livestock Feed (Barley, Hay, Oats,
Pasture, Sorgum, and Sudan Grass)
e Records indicate that Shamrock was certified by QAI for a total of 354 acres although the
breakdown of acreage for each crop is not specified by the certification.

Records indicate that no permanent pasture was available at the initial certification of Shamrock
for dairy operations in 2007. Section 205.239 (a) The producer of an organic livestock operation
must establish and maintain livestock living conditions, which accommodate the health and
natural behavior of animals including: (2) Access to pasture for ruminants.

Records indicate that QAI performed an announced inspection on November 19-20, 2008
(Exhibit 8H) in response to a complaint filed on October 14, 2008. QAI also considered this
inspection as an annual monitoring inspection. During the inspection, QAI noted several
noncompliances and contacted Shamrock farms in a letter dated December 1, 2008

(Exhibit 9U)specifying a response was required within 30 days of receipt of said letter.
Shamrock Farms responded to the letter within the 30 days. However, QA failed to follow up
on the proposed corrections for the noncompliances during 20009.

QAU did not perform another inspection until December 15, 2009 (Exhibit 8G). QAI performed
an unannounced inspection at that time only at the urging of the USDA NOP. During that
inspection, several noncompliances were found and Shamrock was notified in a Combined
Notice of Noncompliance and Proposed Suspension dated January 8, 2010 (Exhibit 9J).
Shamrock responded to the Combined Notice of Noncompliance and Proposed Suspension on
January 22, 2010 (Exhibit 3A). QAI acknowledged Shamrock’s corrective action response to
the Combined Notice of Noncompliance and Proposed Suspension. QAI determined the
corrective action response was inadequate and responded to Shamrock on February 5, 2010
(Exhibit 91) that suspension would be effective March 5, 2010 unless there was a request for
mediation or an appeal was filed.
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V. CONCLUSION & RECOMMENDATION

Allegation 1: Cornucopia contends that Shamrock’s feedlot facility does not provide sufficient
pasture for its dairy herd of approximately 11,000 cows, of which approximately 700-1000 cows
are managed organically.

Regulatory Requirements: 7 CFR Section 205.237(a)

The producer of an organic livestock operation must provide livestock with a total feed ration
composed of agricultural products, including pasture and forage, that are organically produced
and, if applicable, organically handled: Except, that, nonsynthetic substances and synthetic
substances allowed under §205.603 may be used as feed additives and supplements.

Conclusion & Recommendation:

Violation 1: Shamrock has not provided sufficient organic pasture for its organic dairy herd.

QA findings from an announced inspection on November 19-20, 2008 (Exhibit 8H) indicate
apparent violations to 7 CFR Section 205.237(a). Documents contained in the report dated
November 20, 2008, clearly show that pasture was not available from May 16-June 30, 2008 and
from August 1 through November 19-20, 2008. Documents contained in the December 15, 2009
Inspection Report (Exhibit 8G) clearly show that Shamrock does not provide sufficient pasture
for its organic dairy herd. Documents indicated that Shamrock did not provide pasture to its
organic dairy herd for 281 days out of the 349 documented days. QAI has been in conversation
with Shamrock about its pasture availability and approved a plan submitted by Shamrock in
January 2009 to adapt its operations to meet regulatory guidelines.

C & E concludes that sufficient permanent organic pasture was not established prior to Shamrock
becoming certified as an organic operation. It is evident from inspection reports that Shamrock
still does not have sufficient permanent organic pasture established. While the regulations do
make allowances for extreme weather conditions, those allowances are not to be used as a
continual means to violate § 205.237, which clearly states,...operation must provide livestock
with a total feed ration composed of agricultural products, including pasture and forage, that
are organically produced and, if applicable, organically handled. It is evident from the
inspection reports that Shamrock has violated § 205.237, and has willfully used exemptions in
the regulations to justify doing so.

We concur that Shamrock has not increased the amount of pasture available to its organic herd.
As a result, Shamrock has attempted to graze more animals than is justifiable for the climatic
conditions given the limited quantity and quality of the organic pasture it has available.

Allegation 2: Cornucopia contends that Shamrock’s cows were confined to feedlots and not
pastured for weeks.
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Requlatory Requirements: 7 CFR Section 205.238(a)(3) and (4) and 205.239 (a) (1) (2)
(b)(1)(2)(3)(4)

(a) The producer of an organic livestock operation must establish and maintain livestock living
conditions which accommodate the health and natural behavior of animals, including: (1)
Access to the outdoors, shade, shelter, exercise areas, fresh air, and direct sunlight suitable to
the species, its stage of production, the climate, and the environment; (2) Access to pasture for
ruminants; (b) The producer of an organic livestock operation may provide temporary
confinement for an animal because of: (1) Inclement weather; (2) The animal’s stage of
production; (3) Conditions under which the health, safety, or well-being of the animal could be
jeopardized; or (4) Risk to soil or water quality.

Conclusion & Recommendation:

The November 20, 2008 inspection report (Exhibit 8H) indicates the QAI inspector reviewed
pasture logs from April 1-30, 2008 and July 1-31, 2008. The April pasture log shows the herd
was denied pasture from April 5-8, 2008 due to irrigation of the field. The July pasture log
shows the herd was denied pasture from July 1-31, 2008 due to ambient temperatures exceeding
90°F. The report also states on page 2, item 3 that heifers and dry cows did not need
supplemental feed during the winter when they were grazing the oats. Item 5 of the report states
that the only available pasture was 160 acres known as Beryl 320. The report stated that as soon
as the winter planting of oats in the newly transitioned Red River Fields 4, 5, and 6 is
established, the acreage would increase significantly and so would the configuration of the
available grazing. Table 3, page 10 of this report, clearly shows that Shamrock had no organic
pasture available from May 16-June 30, 2008, and from August 1, 2008 through November 20,
2008. Table 3 also indicates that although there were 120 acres of pasture available, the cows
were denied access.

The December 15, 2009 Inspection Report (Exhibit 8G) revealed that Shamrock denied its
organic dairy herd access to pasture for 281 days out of 349 documented days. The reasons for
the denial of access to pasture were due to heat (30 days), irrigation (46 days), and crop
development (213 days). Of the 281 days denied pasture, 181 of these were consecutive days.
While the regulations permit denial of pasture for (1) Inclement weather; (2) The animal’s stage
of production; (3) Conditions under which the health, safety, or well-being of the animal could
be jeopardized; or (4) Risk to soil or water quality, it is not the intent of the regulations for
operations to use these exemptions to continually deny pasture to animals.

C & E contends that denying access to pasture for 281 days out of 349 (81 % if the year)
documented days is willful abuse of the regulations and therefore Shamrock is in violation of
8§ 205.239(b)(1)(2)(3) and (4).

Allegation 3: Cornucopia contends that geographic or climatic conditions, which make pasture

impractical or not cost-effective, cannot be used to justify year-round noncompliance with the
pasture rule.
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Requlatory Requirements: 7 CFR Section 205.239(a)(b)

(a) The producer of an organic livestock operation must establish and maintain livestock living
conditions which accommodate the health and natural behavior of animals, including: (1)
Access to the outdoors, shade, shelter, exercise areas, fresh air, and direct sunlight suitable to
the species, its stage of production, the climate, and the environment; (2) Access to pasture for
ruminants;...(b)The producer of an organic livestock operation may provide temporary
confinement for an animal because of: (1) inclement weather; (2) The animal’s stage of
production; (3) Conditions under which the health, safety, or well being of the animal could be
jeopardized; or (4) Risk to soil or water quality.

Conclusion & Recommendation:

C & E concludes that the regulations state,...The producer of an organic livestock operation may
provide temporary confinement for an animal because of...the key is the word temporary. C & E
contends that denying access to pasture for 281 days out of 349 documented days is well outside
the definition of the term temporary and therefore represents a willful abuse of the regulations.
Additionally, the documents show that in 2008, the organic dairy herd did not have organic
pasture available for 9 months of the year. C & E contends that therefore Shamrock is in
violation of 8 205.239(b). C & E concurs with the Notice of Noncompliance and Proposed
Suspension issued by QAI on January 8, 2010 (Exhibit 9J).

QA Actions

While C & E concurs with the actions taken by QAI on January 8, 2010 with the issuance of the
Combined Notice of Noncompliance and Proposed Suspension, C & E contends that QAI did not
perform its due diligence as an Accredited Certifying Agent. QAI had in its possession,
documentation obtained from November 19-20, 2008 Inspection (Exhibit 8H), that proved
Shamrock had not provided organic pasture to its organic dairy herd for a period of 9 months.

C & E must further conclude that QAL has failed to practice its due diligence as an accredited
certifying agent by certifying Shamrock, an operation with insufficient organic pasture to sustain
its organic herd, and failing to monitor the operation to ensure continued compliance thus failing
to comply with 8 205.402 Review of application.

(a)(2)Determine by a review of the application materials whether the applicant appears to
comply or may be able to comply with the applicable requirements of subpart C of this part.

As stated in § 205.403(2)(ii), The Administrator or State organic program’s governing State
official may require that additional inspections be performed by the certifying agent for the
purpose of determining compliance with the Act and the regulations of this part.
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C & E further contends that QA failed to follow up on initial noncompliances to ensure that they
were corrected in conjunction with NOP regulations.
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REPORT OF INVESTIGATION
. INTRODUCTION

The Compliance & Enforcement (C&E) Division of the National Organic Program (NOP) is
responsible for investigating complaints filed under the Organic Foods Production Act of 1990
(7 USC 6501 et seq.) and its related laws and regulations.

On October 14, 2008, C&E received a complaint through David Trykowski, Director,
Agricultural Marketing Service (AMS) Compliance and Analysis Branch regarding alleged
violations of the NOP at Shamrock Farms Dairy (Shamrock) facility in Phoenix, Arizona (AZ)
(Exhibit 1). Mr. Will Fantle, Director of Research, The Cornucopia Institute, Cornucopia,
Wisconsin (WI) made the complaint.

On October 21, 2008, Valerie Schmale, Agricultural Marketing Specialist (Regulatory) C & E,
contacted Joe Smillie, of Quality Assurance International (QAI), Shamrock’s certifying agent, to
begin an investigation into the allegations (Exhibit 9Y). The case was referred to Maria
DeVincenzo, Quality Specialist, QAI, for further investigation.

An investigation was conducted and the results of the investigation are contained in this report.
Significant terms:

Center-pivot irrigation (sometimes called central pivot irrigation), also called circle
irrigation — is a method of crop irrigation in which equipment rotates around a pivot.

Dry cow — A cow that will no longer give milk.

Feed — Edible materials which are consumed by livestock for their nutritional value. Feed may
be concentrates (grains) or roughages (fodder, hay, silage). The term, “feed” encompasses all
agricultural commodities, including pasture ingested by livestock for nutritional purposes.

Feed additive — A substance added to feed in micro quantities to fulfill a specific nutritional
need; i.e. essential nutrients in the form of amino acids, minerals, and vitamins.

Feed supplement — A combination of feed nutrients added to livestock feed to improve the
nutrient balance or performance of the total ration and intended to be: (1) Diluted with other fees
when fed to livestock; (2) Offered free choice with other parts of the ration if separately
available; or (3) Further diluted and mixed to produce a complete feed.

Field — An area of land identified as a discrete unit within a production operation.

Forage — Vegetative material in a fresh, dried, or ensiled state (pasture, hay, or silage), which is
fed to livestock.

Heifer — A young female cow before she has had her first calf.
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Pasture — Land used for livestock grazing that is managed to provide feed value and maintain or
improve soil, water, and vegetative resources.

Records — Any information in written, visual, or electronic form that documents the activities
undertaken by a producer, handler, or certifying agent to comply with the Act and regulations in
this part.

Saudi Barn - an open styled barn designed by the University of Arizona for use in the Saudi
Arabian desert. The barn consists of a feed line under a shaded area, which allows the animals to
be handled in the headlocks while eating. In other words, lean-to’s with a concrete floor where
the air temperature is controlled with fans and misters.

Split operation — An operation that produces or handles both organic and nonorganic
agricultural products.

Springer — A female that is about to give birth to a calf.
BACKGROUND

Shamrock Dairy is a split operation with a total of about 10,000 cows, 1,000 of which were
certified organic in June 2007. Shamrock is the only organic dairy in Arizona. Milk is shipped
to its plant in Phoenix where it is bottled as fluid milk and processed into sour cream.

Shamrock has been certified with QAI for crops and livestock since March 2, 2007

(Exhibit 5C). Shamrock was certified to handle silage on April 5, 2007 and dairy products on
April 23, 2007. Shamrock’s organic dairy herd was started in June 2007 using a group of
heifers that were transitioned in Oregon (Exhibit 5D). Two more groups of heifers entered the
herd in 2007. One group entered the herd on June 5, 2007 and is known as the X group. The
second group entered the herd on September 21, 2007 and is known as the Y group. Records
indicate that there are 119 head accounted for in the X herd and 129 head accounted for in the Y
herd. On January 2, 2009, Shamrock became a certified producer of crops for livestock feed
(barley, hay, pasture, oats, sorghum, and Sudan Grass).

Shamrock’s Dairy Organic Compliance Plan (OCP) (Exhibit 6E) for livestock management
covers the Shamrock Farms Company in Stanfield, Arizona (AZ). According to Shamrock’s
OCP Herd Pasture Profile (HPP), dated November 15, 2008, there are 998 head of organic dairy
cattle and 160 acres of organic pasture at Shamrock (Exhibit 6F — last page). Shamrock is
certified for crops, handling, and livestock. Crops grown for the organic operations include
permanent pasture, alfalfa, and winter forage. There are no outside sales of crops; all crops
harvested are used for on-farm feed.

As of November 18, 2008, Shamrock’s OCP Item A6 indicates there are 750 milk cows managed
organically. The HPP dated November 15, 2008 indicates that the number of organic pasture
acres is 160 total. The HPP indicates the breakdown of the organic herd as follows in the chart
below.



Table 1
Herd Pasture Profile

Age Group |# of Production |Pasture Fields |Acreage of [Number of Estimated Number
Animals in |Status Provided to Pasture Feed Units Fed |of Pasture Units
Age Group this Age Group|Fields to each Age Fed to each Age

Provided |Group per day |Group per day

16 months 125 Heifers Berl 320 160 20 1 acre*

22 months  [123 Springers  |Berl 320 160 24 1.25 acres*

24+ months {200 Dry Cows |Berl 320 160 24 2.5 acres*

24+ months  [550 Milking Berl 320 160 20 5.5 acres*

*Note: Figures as shown are not accurate. Figures should be reported as 1.28 acres per cow, 1.30 acres per cow, 0.80 acres per cow,
and 0.29 acres per cow respectively by dividing the acreage by the number of cows.

The inspector’s report dated November 20, 2008 (Exhibit 8H), indicates that there were
120 acres of available pasture on Beryl 320, not 160 acres as stated on the HPP above.
The report also states on page 6 of 18 that alfalfa fields, which were scheduled to
complete transition in 2009, were planted with treated seed. The error significantly
impacted the operations’ ability to implement the intended pasture plan.

On page 7 of 18, Item 4, the November 20, 2008 report states that the 130 acres included
in Red River 4, 5, and 6 were not used for the organic herd in the 2008 summer. The
alfalfa was worked up and the fields were being planted to cereal grain at the time of
inspection.

On page 8 of 18, Item A4 states, ““1. ...The 160 acres on the E side is where the current
pasture is...(b) The applicant convinced the Arizona Water Board to allow them to move
the water right to the E side of the parcel, which had never been farmed before. (c) As a
result the quality of the ground on which the current pasture resides is a heavy ‘caliche’
type soil, heavy clay but very poor in nutrients. (d) The applicant boosted nutrient
contents initially by applying composted chicken manure. They have planted two cycles
of annuals/year, including a small grain cereal (usually oats) in the winter and sorghum
in the summer. Cattle manure from the feed area is spread on the field each year and the
cows graze the field.”

Page 13 of 18, Item E1) Living conditions states that, ““The cows are in what is called a
‘Saudi Barn’ which consists of leetos with a concrete floor. Air temperature is controlled
with fans and misters.”

Page 13 of 18, Item E2/S11 number 1. states, ““For the 2008 winter, the 120 acres of
pasture on Beryl 320 was the extent of available land.”” Number 2. states, ““The applicant
states this first year of providing pasture to cows at Shamrock dairy was not very
successful for the lactating cows but as far as the heifers and the dry cows, they did
benefit from this access. Overall:...b. Milk cows were curious about having the gates
open and ventured into oats, in the first 1/3" of the pasture closest to the feed area and
ate that down pretty well and quickly. After that, the cows lost interest and stayed in the
shade of the feed area where they were provided with a complete ration at 100%. i. In
essence, the applicant provided access to pasture but did not force them by limiting the
feed and putting them out to eat.”



Shamrock’s Proposed Pasture SOP for the Organic Dairy (page 48, Exhibit 8H) indicates that
animals shall have access to pasture except for the reasons of:
e Pasture development (irrigation, planting, manure application)
e Inclement weather (Daily temperature exceeding 90°F, severe monsoon storms)
e Health Issues (dry animals, heifers in the last 30 days of gestation, fresh animals less
than 45 days in milk, animals that are weak or sick and in need of close monitoring)

The Proposed Pasture SOP does not indicate the number of acres available per cow, or the total
number of acres available for pasture. Irrigation on the Beryl 320 parcel is accomplished
through center-pivot irrigation. Irrigation for the Red River parcels is accomplished through
flooding. Cattle cannot be pastured during times of irrigation because of damage created by the
animals’ hooves in the soft ground.

In a December 1, 2008 letter to Shamrock (Exhibit 9M), QAI indicated the inspector had noted
that for the winter of 2008, the extent of pasture for the dairy was 140 acres. QAI requested that
Shamrock provide a written plan to provide adequate pasture for its organic livestock. The plan
was to include acreage, forage description, the timing of the cropping cycles such that there
would always be ground available for grazing, animal numbers, and the duration/frequency of
their stay on the pasture as well as an assessment of the pasture’s ability to provide substantive
nutritive value to the animals pastured. There is no evidence that QAI followed up on the
noncompliances noted in the December 1, 2008 letter.

On December 15, 2009, (Exhibit 8G) QAI performed an unannounced inspection at Shamrock
Farms Dairy. The report stated that this inspection took place in the middle of a transition
between two annual crop plantings and animals were not seen on the pastures. The inspector did
note that permanent fences were present on Beryl and Red River (RR) 4 and an electric fence
was noted on RR4.

The inspector noted that it is clear from the field inspection that animals do graze the fields due
to the compacted areas in the lanes and where the water troughs are located. Beryl 320 and RR4
were seen planted in barley and oats respectively. RR5 and RR6 are being used for crops and are
planned for harvest in May 2010. The Beryl West pasture is being used exclusively for milk
cows since it adjoins their housing area.
e From 11/19/08-1/21/09 (63 days — 43 days in 2008; 20 days in 2009) all of Beryl 320 was
not available for grazing because the crop was just getting established.
e From 1/21/09-4/30/09 access was provided except during irrigation cycles.
0 1/29-31/09 — 2/3/09 access denied due to irrigation (6 days)
0 2/17/09 access denied due to rain (1 day)
0 2/21-28/09 — 3/2/09 access denied due to irrigation (10 days)
0 3/17-24/09 access denied due to irrigation (8 days)
O 4/6-13/09 access denied due to irrigation (8 days)
e 5/1/09 Sudan was planted and it got to hot according to the inspection report. Access was
denied for pasture development from May 1-31, 2009 (31 days) according to pasture
logs.
e 6/1-16/09 (16 days) pasture was denied for pasture development.
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6/18-30/09 (13 days) pasture was denied for irrigation and heat.

7/1-31/09 (31 days) pasture was denied for heat and crops.

8/1-10/09 (10 days)pasture was denied for crops.

8/11-31/09 (21 days) pasture was denied for pasture development.

9/1/09 — 12/15/09 (106 days) pasture was denied for pasture development.

Based on the figures above obtained from pasture logs on December 15, 2009, Shamrock cows
were denied pasture 281 days during the period of January 1, 2009 — December 15, 2009 or 81
percent of the 349 days documented. The report stated that each pen has access for 12 hours.
The 12-hour access is based on three paddocks available for six corrals of milking cows. Based
upon the milking schedule it works out to 12 hours per cow. The report states that there are
about 750 cows on any given day for the 80 acres available on Beryl (0.11 acre/head). A Herd
Pasture Profile was included with the report with updated figures and is recreated below as

Table 2.
Table 2
Herd Pasture Profile
Dated 12/15/09

Age Group |# of Production |Pasture Fields |Acreage of [Number of Estimated Number
Animals in |Status Provided to Pasture Feed Units Fed |of Pasture Units
Age Group this Age Group |Fields to each Age Fed to each Age

Provided |Group per day |Group per day

16 months |85 Heifers Berl 320, RR 4 |145 20 1.23 acres/head™

22 months (32 Springers  |Berl 320, RR 4 |145 24 1.23 acres/head*

24+ months 172 Dry Cows |Berl 320 80 24 0.46 acres/head™

24+ months (860 Milking Berl 320 80 20 0.11 acres/head*

*Note: Figures as shown are not accurate. Figures should read 1.71 acres/head, 4.53 acres/head, 0.47 acres/head, and 0.093
acres/head respectively by dividing the acreage by the number of cows.

e The report states that silage was harvested from Beryl 320 but there was no time for it to
be grazed due to the very hot summer.

e In the fall Beryl 320 had to be replanted from oats to barley because of poor germination,
which was caused by crusting of the soil.

o0 The soil on Beryl is very low in organic matter and heavy in clay since it has not been
farmed for very long.

0 Manure is being used to improve this but it will take time because too much manure
would create a salt problem, which is closely monitored by soil testing (not verified
by the inspector)

e Shamrock stated that they have a lack of permanent pasture.



1. ALLEGATIONS

The Cornucopia Institute (Cornucopia) broadly alleges violations of the National Organic
Program’s (NOP) regulatory standards governing dairy cows and access to pasture provisions.

Allegation 1: Cornucopia contends that Shamrock’s feedlot facility does not provide sufficient
pasture for its dairy herd of approximately 11,000 cows, of which approximately 700-1,000 cows
are managed organically.

Allegation 2: Cornucopia contends that Shamrock’s cows were confined to feedlots and not
pastured for weeks.

Allegation 3: Cornucopia contends that geographic or climatic conditions, which make pasture
impractical or not cost-effective, cannot be used to justify year-round noncompliance with the
pasture rule.

I. METHODOLOGY

In response to the October 14, 2008 (Exhibit 1) initial complaint, On October 21, 2008
(Exhibit 9Y), Valerie Schmale with NOP C & E requested that QAI conduct an investigation
into the allegations consistent with C&E procedures for certified operations. Ms. Schmale also
requested QAI respond back to NOP with their findings by November 27, 2008; and a
description of corrective action with a timeline for implementation.

On October 28, 2008 (Exhibit 9X), C&E Branch Chief, Ruihong Guo sent Cornucopia
correspondence to request more information and evidence to support its allegations against
Shamrock. C&E requested more information from Mr. Fantle because the initial complaint
lacked sufficient evidentiary support to warrant a C&E investigation. Mr. Mark Kastel,
Cornucopia, responded on November 3, 2008 that he was traveling and could not put the
evidence together until his return; no specific date was proposed.

In a November 7, 2008 (Exhibit 9W), response to C&E’s request, QAI indicated that a review of
the inspection report from an April 1, 2008 inspection did not indicate any questions as to the
organic integrity of the operation. QAI indicated that if a full investigation was not completed
by January 30, 2009, it would submit an update on the current progress to the USDA. In a
November 10, 2008 response, the NOP stated that complaints were time sensitive and must be
investigated promptly. NOP responded that a full report was expected by November 27, 2008.
QAU responded on November 26, 2008 that it had conducted an investigation on November 19
and 20, 2008. QA stated that they would be issuing Shamrock a noncompliance letter on
December 1, 2008 (Exhibit 9U).

On December 1, 2008, QAI sent Shamrock, a Notice of Noncompliance (Exhibit 9U) to address
deficiencies found during the November 19-20, 2008 inspection. QAI indicated the inspector
had noted that for the winter of 2008, the extent of pasture for the dairy was 140 acres. QAI
requested that Shamrock provide a written plan to provide adequate pasture for its organic
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livestock. The plan was to include acreage, forage description, the timing of the cropping cycles
such that there would always be ground available for grazing, animal numbers, and the
duration/frequency of their stay on the pasture as well as an assessment of the pasture’s ability to
provide substantive nutritive value to the animals pastured. Additionally, QAI stated that
Shamrock would have to complete Individual Field Profile (IFP) Sheets for Red River 1, 2, and 3
fields that would be eligible for organic use in the autumn of 2009.

On December 10, 2008 (Exhibit 4), QAI sent a letter to Barbara C. Robinson, Acting Director
National Organic Program, addressing the allegations of the complaint. In that letter, QAI stated
that it believed Shamrock was complying with NOP regulations as currently written. QAI also
addressed each allegation.

On September 17, 2009 (Exhibit 2), Schmale and Compliance Specialist Tammie Wilburn
conducted a telephone interview with Mr. Will Fantle and Mr. Mark Kastel of the Cornucopia
Institute. The telephone interview was conducted as a final attempt to collect evidence to
support Cornucopia’s complaint prior to moving to case closure. Schmale and Wilburn
summarized the interview in a memorandum of telephone conversation, which was affirmed by
all interview participants.

On December 4, 2009 (Exhibit 9M), Schmale requested and received from QAI, Shamrock’s
response to the December 1, 2009, Notice of Noncompliance.

On December 11, 2009 (Exhibit 9L), Schmale requested QAI perform an unannounced
inspection. The inspection was scheduled for December 15, 2009. On December 15, 2009, an
unannounced inspection was conducted at Shamrock. That report was received by C & E on
January 4, 2010. The findings of that inspection are contained in this report.

The following findings of fact are supported by:

(1) QAI’s November 20, 2008 inspector’s report submitted to C&E (Exhibit 8H),

(2) QAI’s December 1, 2008 Notice of Noncompliance to Shamrock (Exhibit 9U),

(3) QAI’s December 10, 2008 response to allegations (Exhibit 4),

(4) Shamrock’s response to the Notice of Noncompliance (Exhibit 3B),

(5) C&E’s September 17, 2009 Memo of Interview with the Cornucopia Institute
(Exhibit 2),

(6) QAI’s December 15, 2009 inspector’s report submitted to C & E (Exhibit 8G), and

(7) Additional information as requested of QAI and the Cornucopia Institute
(Exhibits 91-Y).



IV.  FINDINGS OF FACT

Allegation 1: Cornucopia contends that Shamrock’s feedlot facility does not provide sufficient
pasture for its dairy herd of approximately 11,000 cows, of which approximately 700-1000 cows
are managed organically.

In its December 10, 2008 (Exhibit 4) letter, QAI responded that until the NOP finalizes the
pasture rule, it will not require a certain number of cows per acre nor a certain quantity of feed
from pasture/grazing. QAI findings indicate that access to the outdoors was provided aside from
the instances related to inclement weather, animals’ stage of production, or risk to soil or water
quality. The reasons for confinement were consistent with NOP regulations. QAI findings
indicate that pasture has been available, consistent with NOP regulations despite setbacks related
to suitable pasture.

QA inspector findings indicate that Shamrock is transitioning land near the dairy and an
intensive grazing plan is being implemented. QAI reported that Shamrock has just converted an
additional 194 acres for grazing. For the 2008 winter, spring, and fall, the only available pasture
was the 160 acres known as Beryl 320. For the 2008 winter, 140 acres of pasture on Beryl 320
was the extent of available land. The findings indicated that as soon as the winter planting of
oats in the newly transitioned Red River 4, 5, and 6 is established, the acreage will increase
significantly and thus increasing the available grazing configuration.

Findings indicated that pastures were split into paddocks. It was reported that the milk cows
were curious about having the gates open and ventured into oats in the first 1/3" of the pasture
closest to the feed areas and ate it down pretty well and quickly. The cows lost interest after that
and stayed in the shade of the feed area where they were provided with a complete ration at
100%. Shamrock provided access to pasture, but did not force the cows by limiting the feed and
putting them out to eat. Dry cows and heifers were used to eat up all of the remaining pasture
that was in oats and they did a good job of it. Oats were a good choice of forage, but sorghum
was not. The cows did not have an interest in the sorghum. The heifers did forage in the
sorghum, however, they lost weight in the process and were removed.

A feed audit revealed that a total of less than 6 Tons per acre of sorghum silage was harvested.
Locally, it was stated that yields go from 10 to 20 Tons/acre, which shows that the cows were
foraging in the stand.

Shamrock planned to use Brown Midrib Sudan sorghum hybrid, which has a success of being
used to graze in the south, instead of Sudan grass which when stressed puts out prussic acid that
imparts a bad taste to the milk and is not healthy for the cows.

QA provided a table (Page 14 of 18 of the November 20, 2008 Inspection report (Exhibit 8H);
titled Table 3, Grazing Season Figures for this report) explaining the grazing season in relation to
animal numbers and acres available for pasture (MC = Milking Cows, DR = Dry Cows, H =
Heifers). Table 3 is being utilized for the response to all allegations contained in this report:
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Table 3
Grazing Season Figures (2008)

Animal # Acres Available
Month MC DR H Cow DC&H Crop
February 743 4 253 100 20 Oats
March 730 16 367 100 20 Oats
April 701 43 365 0 120 Oats
May 15" 701 24 365 0 120 Oats
May 16" On  |701 24 365 0 0 Crop Switch
June 663 88 471 0 0 Crop Switch
July 624 184  |398 0 120 Sorghum
August 627 195 (374 0 0 Sorghum
September 635 179  |365 0 0 Sorghum
October 672 189 |308 0 0 Sorghum
November 672 189 |308 0 0 Crop Switch
Average # 679 103 |358
Total [1140

Specific notes to the table indicate (1) that grazing of the oats started in mid to end of January
and (2) the heifers tried to graze the sorghum for about 10 days in July.

Inspection records indicate that Shamrock dairy is a split operation with a total of about 10,000
cows, 1,000 of which are managed organically. QAI documented on its November 20, 2008
Inspection Report (Exhibit 8H) that Shamrock has not provided sufficient access to pasture for
its organic dairy herd. QAI indicated the inspector had noted that for the winter of 2008, the
extent of pasture for the dairy was 140 acres.

Pasture logs for January 1 through December 31, 2008 specifically showed that during the
months of October through April (The stated grazing season according to documentation
provided by QAI and Shamrock) the cows were denied pasture a total of 123 days out of the 244
documented days, or 50 percent of the time the cows were denied pasture.

QA requested that Shamrock provide a written plan to provide adequate pasture for its organic
livestock. The plan was to include acreage, forage description, the timing of the cropping cycles
such that there would always be ground available for grazing, animal numbers, and the
duration/frequency of their stay on the pasture as well as an assessment of the pasture’s ability to
provide substantive nutritive value to the animals pastured. Additionally, QAI stated that
Shamrock would have to complete Individual Field Profile (IFP) Sheets for Red River 1, 2, and 3
fields that would be eligible for organic use in the autumn of 2009. Copies of QAI’s inspection
records dated November 20, 2008, are in Exhibit 8H.

The December 15, 2009 Unannounced Inspection (Exhibit 8G) disclosed that Shamrock
admitted it did not have permanent pasture. Shamrock also provided documentation that it had
1,149 cows being managed organically on available pasture of 80-145 acres Table 2 page 7 of
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this report. Additionally, through documentation obtained from the December 15, 2009
Unannounced Inspection (Exhibit 8G), it was determined that Shamrock denied its organic herd
access to pasture 281 days out of 349 days documented for heat, irrigation, and pasture
development.

Allegation 2: Cornucopia contends that Shamrock’s cows were confined to feedlots and not
pastured for weeks.

In its December 10, 2008 letter, QAI responded that findings indicate that access to the outdoors
was provided aside from the instances related to inclement weather, animals’ stage of
production, or risk to soil or water quality. The reasons for confinement were consistent with
NOP regulations. QAI findings indicate that pasture has been available, consistent with NOP
regulations. QAI provided a table (see page 10 of this report, Table 3 Grazing Season Figures)
explaining the grazing season in relation to animal numbers and acres available for pasture.

The QAI inspector reviewed pasture logs from April 1-30, 2008 and July 1-31, 2008

(Exhibit 8H). The April pasture log shows the herd was denied pasture from April 5-8, 2008
due to irrigation of the field. The July pasture log shows the herd was denied pasture from July
1-31, 2008 due to ambient temperatures exceeding 90°F. The Inspector’s Report dated
November 20, 2008 (Exhibit 8H), states on page 2, item 3 that heifers and dry cows did not need
supplemental feed during the winter when they were grazing the oats. Item 5 of the report states
that the only available pasture was 160 acres known as Beryl 320. The report states that as soon
as the winter planting of oats in the newly transitioned Red River Fields 4, 5, and 6 is
established, the acreage will increase significantly and so will the configuration of the available
grazing.

The December 15, 2009 Unannounced Inspection (Exhibit 8G) revealed that during 20009,
Shamrock denied access to pasture to its organic dairy herd 281 days out of 349 days
documented due to heat, irrigation, and pasture development.

Allegation 3: Cornucopia contends that geographic or climatic conditions, which make pasture
impractical or not cost-effective, cannot be used to justify year-round noncompliance with the
pasture rule.

In its December 10, 2008 letter (Exhibit 4), QAI responded that until the NOP finalizes the
pasture rule, it will not require a certain number of cows per acre nor a certain quantity of feed
from pasture/grazing. QAI findings indicate that access to the outdoors was provided aside from
the instances related to inclement weather, animals’ stage of production, or risk to soil or water
quality. The reasons for confinement were consistent with NOP regulations. QAI findings
indicate that pasture has been available, consistent with NOP regulations. QAI provided a table
(see page 10, Table 3 Grazing Season Figures) explaining the grazing season in relation to
animal numbers and acres available for pasture.

Specific notes to the table indicate (1) that grazing of the oats started in mid to end of January
and (2) the heifers tried to graze the sorghum for about 10 days in July.
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Additionally, a QALI inspector reviewed pasture logs from April 1-30, 2008 and July 1-31, 2008.
The April pasture log shows the herd was denied pasture from April 5-8, 2008 due to irrigation
of the field. The July pasture log shows the herd was denied pasture from July 1-31, 2008 due to
ambient temperatures exceeding 90°F. The Inspector’s Report dated November 20, 2008
(Exhibit 8H), states on page 2, item 3 that heifers and dry cows did not need supplemental feed
during the winter when they were grazing the oats. Item 5 of the report states that the only
available pasture was 160 acres known as Beryl 320. The report states that as soon as the winter
planting of oats in the newly transitioned Red River Fields 4, 5, and 6 is established, the acreage
will increase significantly and so will the configuration of the available grazing.

The December 15, 2009 Unannounced Inspection (Exhibit 8G) revealed that during 2009,
Shamrock denied access to pasture to its organic dairy herd 281 days out of 349 days
documented due to heat, irrigation, and pasture development.

Quality Assurance International (QAI)
Records indicate QA initially certified Shamrock March 2, 2007 for Livestock and Crop
(Producer).
e On April 5, 2007, QAI certified Shamrock for Livestock Feed (Silage).
e On April 23, 2007, QAI then certified Shamrock for Dairy Cows (not for slaughter) and
Milk (Raw).
e OnJanuary 2, 2009, QAI certified Shamrock for Livestock Feed (Barley, Hay, Oats,
Pasture, Sorgum, and Sudan Grass)
e Records indicate that Shamrock was certified by QAI for a total of 354 acres although the
breakdown of acreage for each crop is not specified by the certification.

Records indicate that no permanent pasture was available at the initial certification of Shamrock
for dairy operations in 2007. Section 205.239 (a) The producer of an organic livestock operation
must establish and maintain livestock living conditions, which accommodate the health and
natural behavior of animals including: (2) Access to pasture for ruminants.

Records indicate that QAI performed an announced inspection on November 19-20, 2008
(Exhibit 8H) in response to a complaint filed on October 14, 2008. QAI also considered this
inspection as an annual monitoring inspection. During the inspection, QAI noted several
noncompliances and contacted Shamrock farms in a letter dated December 1, 2008

(Exhibit 9U)specifying a response was required within 30 days of receipt of said letter.
Shamrock Farms responded to the letter within the 30 days. However, QAI failed to follow up
on the proposed corrections for the noncompliances during 20009.

QAU did not perform another inspection until December 15, 2009 (Exhibit 8G). QAI performed
an unannounced inspection at that time only at the urging of the USDA NOP. During that
inspection, several noncompliances were found and Shamrock was notified in a Combined
Notice of Noncompliance and Proposed Suspension dated January 8, 2010 (Exhibit 9J).
Shamrock responded to the Combined Notice of Noncompliance and Proposed Suspension on
January 22, 2010 (Exhibit 3A). QAI acknowledged Shamrock’s corrective action response to
the Combined Notice of Noncompliance and Proposed Suspension. QAI determined the
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corrective action response was inadequate and responded to Shamrock on February 5, 2010
(Exhibit 91) that suspension would be effective March 5, 2010 unless there was a request for
mediation or an appeal was filed.

V. CONCLUSION & RECOMMENDATION

Allegation 1: Cornucopia contends that Shamrock’s feedlot facility does not provide sufficient
pasture for its dairy herd of approximately 11,000 cows, of which approximately 700-1000 cows
are managed organically.

Reqgulatory Requirements: 7 CFR Section 205.237(a)

The producer of an organic livestock operation must provide livestock with a total feed ration
composed of agricultural products, including pasture and forage, that are organically produced
and, if applicable, organically handled: Except, that, nonsynthetic substances and synthetic
substances allowed under §205.603 may be used as feed additives and supplements.

Conclusion & Recommendation:

Violation 1: Shamrock has not provided sufficient organic pasture for its organic dairy herd.

QA findings from an announced inspection on November 19-20, 2008 (Exhibit 8H) indicate
apparent violations to 7 CFR Section 205.237(a). Documents contained in the report dated
November 20, 2008, clearly show that pasture was not available from May 16-June 30, 2008 and
from August 1 through November 19-20, 2008. Documents contained in the December 15, 2009
Inspection Report (Exhibit 8G) clearly showed that Shamrock did not provide sufficient pasture
for its organic dairy herd. QAI has been in conversation with Shamrock about its pasture
availability and approved a plan submitted by Shamrock in January 2009 to adapt its operations
to meet regulatory guidelines. However, pasture logs showed that Shamrock did not provide
sufficient access to pasture in 2009. The pasture logs showed that for 2009, Shamrock denied
access to its dairy cows 160 days out of 227 documented days in the period from January — May
and October — December. The logs also showed that if the grazing season is from January —
April and November — December, Shamrock still denied access to its organic herd 98 out of 165
documented days in 2009, which is 59 percent of the total.

Pasture logs submitted on May 12, 2010 for 2008 and 2009 show the following information for
the period of October through May, which would cover the 8 months listed in the OCP as the
grazing season.

Table 4
8-month grazing period
Month/Days—| January |February| March April May | October [November|December| Totals | Percent
Year ¥ (31) |[(280r29)| (31) (30) (31) (31) (30) (31) Denied
2008 7 0/29 4 4 16 31 30 31 123/244 | 50.4
2009 23 12/28 10 8 31 31 30 31 176/243 72.4
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The information could also be limited to November through April with the following results:

Table 5
6-month grazing period
Month/Days— | January | February | March April |[November|December| Totals | Percent
Year ¥ (31) (28 or 29) (31) (30) (30) (31) Denied
2008 7 0/29 4 4 30 31 76/182 42%
2009 23 12/28 10 8 30 31 114/181 63%

C & E concludes, based on the documentation provided, sufficient permanent organic pasture
was not established prior to Shamrock becoming certified as an organic operation. It is evident
from inspection reports that Shamrock does not have sufficient permanent organic pasture
established. While the regulations do make allowances for extreme weather conditions, those
allowances are not to be used as a continual means to violate § 205.237, which clearly
states,...operation must provide livestock with a total feed ration composed of agricultural
products, including pasture and forage, that are organically produced and, if applicable,
organically handled. It is evident from the inspection reports and pasture logs that Shamrock has
violated § 205.237, and has used exemptions in the regulations to justify doing so.

We concur that Shamrock has not increased the amount of pasture available to its organic herd.
As a result, Shamrock has attempted to graze more animals than is justifiable for the climatic
conditions given the limited quantity and quality of the organic pasture it has available. During
2008 and 2009 Shamrock failed to improve the quantity and quality of its organic pasture
available to its organic herd. Records show that Shamrock stated pasture access was restricted
from Mid-June through September due to extreme heat.

Allegation 2: Cornucopia contends that Shamrock’s cows were confined to feedlots and not
pastured for weeks.

Reqgulatory Requirements: 7 CFR Section 205.238(a)(3) and (4) and 205.239 (a) (1) (2)
(b)(1)(2)(3)(4)

(a) The producer of an organic livestock operation must establish and maintain livestock living
conditions which accommodate the health and natural behavior of animals, including: (1)
Access to the outdoors, shade, shelter, exercise areas, fresh air, and direct sunlight suitable to
the species, its stage of production, the climate, and the environment; (2) Access to pasture for
ruminants; (b) The producer of an organic livestock operation may provide temporary
confinement for an animal because of: (1) Inclement weather; (2) The animal’s stage of
production; (3) Conditions under which the health, safety, or well-being of the animal could be
jeopardized; or (4) Risk to soil or water quality.

Conclusion & Recommendation:

The November 20, 2008 inspection report (Exhibit 8H) indicates the QAI inspector reviewed
pasture logs from April 1-30, 2008 and July 1-31, 2008. The April pasture log shows the herd
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was denied pasture from April 5-8, 2008 due to irrigation of the field. The July pasture log
shows the herd was denied pasture from July 1-31, 2008 due to ambient temperatures exceeding
90°F. The report also states on page 2, item 3 that heifers and dry cows did not need
supplemental feed during the winter when they were grazing the oats. Item 5 of the report states
that the only available pasture was 160 acres known as Beryl 320. The report stated that as soon
as the winter planting of oats in the newly transitioned Red River Fields 4, 5, and 6 is
established, the acreage would increase significantly and so would the configuration of the
available grazing. Table 3, page 10 of this report, clearly shows that Shamrock had no organic
pasture available from May 16-June 30, 2008, and from August 1, 2008 through November 20,
2008. Table 3 also indicates that although there were 120 acres of pasture available, the cows
were denied access. Shamrocks OCP shows that the grazing season is from October through
May, or an 8-month period of ideal grazing weather for dairy cattle. During mediation,
Shamrock

The December 15, 2009 Inspection Report (Exhibit 8G) revealed that Shamrock denied its
organic dairy herd access to pasture for 281 days out of 349 documented days. The reasons for
the denial of access to pasture were due to heat (30 days), irrigation (46 days), and crop
development (213 days). Of the 281 days denied pasture, 181 of these were consecutive days.
While the regulations permit denial of pasture for (1) Inclement weather; (2) The animal’s stage
of production; (3) Conditions under which the health, safety, or well-being of the animal could
be jeopardized; or (4) Risk to soil or water quality, it is not the intent of the regulations for
operations to use these exemptions to continually deny pasture to animals.

C & E contends that denying access to pasture for 281 days out of 349 (81 % if the year)
documented days is willful abuse of the regulations and therefore Shamrock is in violation of
§ 205.239(b)(1)(2)(3) and (4).

Allegation 3: Cornucopia contends that geographic or climatic conditions, which make pasture
impractical or not cost-effective, cannot be used to justify year-round noncompliance with the
pasture rule.

Regulatory Requirements: 7 CFR Section 205.239(a)(b)

(a) The producer of an organic livestock operation must establish and maintain livestock living
conditions which accommodate the health and natural behavior of animals, including: (1)
Access to the outdoors, shade, shelter, exercise areas, fresh air, and direct sunlight suitable to
the species, its stage of production, the climate, and the environment; (2) Access to pasture for
ruminants;...(b)The producer of an organic livestock operation may provide temporary
confinement for an animal because of: (1) inclement weather; (2) The animal’s stage of
production; (3) Conditions under which the health, safety, or well being of the animal could be
jeopardized; or (4) Risk to soil or water quality.

Conclusion & Recommendation:
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C & E concludes that the regulations state,...The producer of an organic livestock operation may
provide temporary confinement for an animal because of...the key is the word temporary. C & E
contends that denying access to pasture for 281 days out of 349 documented days is well outside
the definition of the term temporary and therefore represents a willful abuse of the regulations.
Additionally, the documents show that in 2008, the organic dairy herd did not have organic
pasture available for 9 months of the year. C & E contends that therefore Shamrock is in
violation of 8 205.239(b). C & E concurs with the Notice of Noncompliance and Proposed
Suspension issued by QAI on January 8, 2010 (Exhibit 9J).

QAI Actions

While C & E concurs with the actions taken by QAI on January 8, 2010 with the issuance of the
Combined Notice of Noncompliance and Proposed Suspension, C & E contends that QAI did not
perform its due diligence as an Accredited Certifying Agent. QAI had in its possession,
documentation obtained from November 19-20, 2008 Inspection (Exhibit 8H), that proved
Shamrock had not provided organic pasture to its organic dairy herd for a period of 9 months.

C & E must further conclude that QAL has failed to practice its due diligence as an accredited
certifying agent by certifying Shamrock, an operation with insufficient organic pasture to sustain
its organic herd, and failing to monitor the operation to ensure continued compliance thus failing
to comply with 8 205.402 Review of application.

(a)(2)Determine by a review of the application materials whether the applicant appears to
comply or may be able to comply with the applicable requirements of subpart C of this part.

As stated in § 205.403(2)(ii), The Administrator or State organic program’s governing State
official may require that additional inspections be performed by the certifying agent for the
purpose of determining compliance with the Act and the regulations of this part.

C & E further contends that QA failed to follow up on initial noncompliances to ensure that they
were corrected in conjunction with NOP regulations.
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REPORT OF INVESTIGATION
l. INTRODUCTION

The Compliance & Enforcement (C&E) Division of the National Organic Program (NOP) is
responsible for investigating complaints filed under the Organic Foods Production Act of 1990
(7 USC 6501 et seq.) and its related laws and regulations.

On October 14, 2008, C&E received a complaint through David Trykowski, Director,
Agricultural Marketing Service (AMS) Compliance and Analysis Branch regarding alleged
violations of the NOP at Shamrock Farms Dairy (Shamrock) facility in Phoenix, Arizona (AZ).
Mr. Will Fantle, Director of Research, The Cornucopia Institute, Cornucopia, Wisconsin (WI)
made the complaint.

On October 21, 2008, Valerie Schmale, Agricultural Marketing Specialist (Regulatory) C & E,
contacted Joe Smillie, of Quality Assurance International (QAI), Shamrock’s certifying agent, to
begin an investigation into the allegations. The case was referred to Maria DeVincenzo, Quality
Specialist, QAI, for further investigation.

An investigation was conducted and the results of the investigation are contained in this report.

Significant terms:

Center-pivot irrigation (sometimes called central pivot irrigation), also called circle
irrigation — is a method of crop irrigation in which equipment rotates around a pivot.

Dry cow — A cow that will no longer give milk.

Feed — Edible materials which are consumed by livestock for their nutritional value. Feed may
be concentrates (grains) or roughages (fodder, hay, silage). The term, “feed” encompasses all
agricultural commodities, including pasture ingested by livestock for nutritional purposes.

Feed additive — A substance added to feed in micro quantities to fulfill a specific nutritional
need; i.e. essential nutrients in the form of amino acids, minerals, and vitamins.

Feed supplement — A combination of feed nutrients added to livestock feed to improve the
nutrient balance or performance of the total ration and intended to be: (1) Diluted with other fees
when fed to livestock; (2) Offered free choice with other parts of the ration if separately
available; or (3) Further diluted and mixed to produce a complete feed.

Field — An area of land identified as a discrete unit within a production operation.

Forage — Vegetative material in a fresh, dried, or ensiled state (pasture, hay, or silage), which is
fed to livestock.

Heifer — A young female cow before she has had her first calf.

Pasture — Land used for livestock grazing that is managed to provide feed value and maintain or
improve soil, water, and vegetative resources.

Records — Any information in written, visual, or electronic form that documents the activities
undertaken by a producer, handler, or certifying agent to comply with the Act and regulations in
this part.




Split operation — An operation that produces or handles both organic and nonorganic
agricultural products.
Springer — A female that is about to give birth to a calf.

BACKGROUND

Shamrock Dairy is a split operation with a total of about 10,000 cows, 1,000 of which were
certified organic in June 2007. Shamrock is the only organic dairy in Arizona. Milk is shipped
to its plant in Phoenix where it is bottled as fluid milk and processed into sour cream.

Shamrock has been certified with QAI for crops and livestock since March 2, 2007. Shamrock
was certified to handle silage on April 5, 2007 and dairy products on April 23, 2007. On
January 2, 2009, Shamrock became a certified producer of crops for livestock feed (barley, hay,
pasture, oats, sorghum, and Sudan Grass). Shamrock’s organic dairy herd was started in June
2007 using a group of heifers that were transitioned in Oregon. Two more groups of heifers
entered the herd in 2007. One group entered the herd on June 5, 2007 and is known as the X
group. The second group entered the herd on September 21, 2007 and is known as the Y group.
Records indicate that there are 119 head accounted for in the X herd and 129 head accounted for
in the Y herd.

Shamrock’s Dairy Organic Compliance Plan (OCP) for livestock management covers the
Shamrock Farms Company in Stanfield, Arizona (AZ). According to Shamrock’s OCP Herd
Pasture Profile (HPP), dated November 15, 2008, there are 998 head of organic dairy cattle on
120-140 acres of organic pasture at Shamrock. Shamrock is certified for crops, handling, and
livestock. Crops grown for the organic operations include permanent pasture, alfalfa, and winter
forage. There are no outside sales of crops; all crops harvested are used for on-farm feed.

As of November 18, 2008, Shamrock’s OCP Item A6 indicates there are 750 milk cows managed
organically. The HPP dated November 15, 2008 indicates that the number of organic pasture
acres is 160 total. The HPP indicates the breakdown of the organic herd as follows in the chart
below.

Age Group |# of Production |Pasture Fields |[Acreage of |Number of Estimated Number
Animals in|Status Provided to Pasture Feed Units Fed |of Pasture Units
Age this Age Group |Fields to each Age Fed to each Age
Group Provided |Group per day |Group per day

16 months  |125 Heifers Berl 320 160 20 1 acre

22 months  [123 Springers Berl 320 160 24 1.25 acres

24+ months {200 Dry Cows Berl 320 160 24 2.5 acres

24+ months  [550 Milking Berl 320 160 20 5.5 acres

The inspector’s report dated November 19-20, 2008, indicates that there were 120 acres of
available pasture on Beryl 320.



Shamrock’s Proposed Pasture SOP for the Organic Dairy indicates that animals shall have access
to pasture except for the reasons of:
e Pasture development (irrigation, planting, manure application)
e Inclement weather (Daily temperature exceeding 90°F, severe monsoon storms)
e Health Issues (dry animals, heifers in the last 30 days of gestation, fresh animals less than
45 days in milk, animals that are weak or sick and in need of close monitoring)

The Proposed Pasture SOP does not indicate the number of acres available per cow, or the total
number of acres available for pasture. Irrigation on the Beryl 320 parcel is accomplished
through center-pivot irrigation. Irrigation for the Red River parcels is accomplished through
flooding. Cattle cannot be pastured during times of irrigation because of damage created by the
animals’ hooves in the soft ground.

In a December 1, 2008 letter to Shamrock, QAI indicated the inspector had noted that for the
winter of 2008, the extent of pasture for the dairy was 140 acres. QAI requested that Shamrock
provide a written plan to provide adequate pasture for its organic livestock. The plan was to
include acreage, forage description, the timing of the cropping cycles such that there would
always be ground available for grazing, animal numbers, and the duration/frequency of their stay
on the pasture as well as an assessment of the pasture’s ability to provide substantive nutritive
value to the animals pastured.

1. ALLEGATIONS

The Cornucopia Institute (Cornucopia) broadly alleges violations of the National Organic
Program’s (NOP) regulatory standards governing dairy cows and access to pasture provisions.’

Allegation 1: Cornucopia contends that Shamrock’s feedlot facility does not provide sufficient
pasture for its dairy herd of approximately 11,000 cows, of which approximately 700-1,000 cows
are managed organically.

Allegation 2: Cornucopia contends that Shamrock’s cows were confined to feedlots and not
pastured for weeks.

Allegation 3: Cornucopia contends that geographic or climatic conditions which make pasture
impractical or not cost-effective, cannot be used to justify year-round noncompliance with the
pasture rule.

1.  METHODOLOGY

In response to the October 14, 2008 initial complaint, On October 21, 2008, Valerie Schmale
with NOP C & E requested that QAI conduct an investigation into the allegations consistent with
C&E procedures for certified operations. Ms. Schmale also requested QAI respond back to NOP
with their findings by November 27, 2008; and a description of corrective action with a timeline
for implementation.



On October 28, 2008, C&E Branch Chief, Ruihong Guo sent Cornucopia correspondence to
request more information and evidence to support its allegations against Shamrock. C&E
requested more information from Mr. Fantle because the initial complaint lacked sufficient
evidentiary support to warrant a C&E investigation. Mr. Mark Kastel, Cornucopia, responded on
November 3, 2008 that he was traveling and could not put the evidence together until his return;
no specific date was proposed.

In a November 7, 2008, response to C&E’s request, QAI indicated that a review of the inspection
report from an April 1, 2008 inspection did not indicate any questions as to the organic integrity
of the operation. QAI indicated that if a full investigation was not completed by January 30,
2009, it would submit an update on the current progress to the USDA. In a November 10, 2008
response, the NOP stated that complaints were time sensitive and must be investigated promptly.
NOP responded that a full report was expected by November 27, 2008.

On December 1, 2008, QAI sent Shamrock, a Notice of Noncompliance to address deficiencies
found during the November 19-20, 2008 inspection. QAI indicated the inspector had noted that
for the winter of 2008, the extent of pasture for the dairy was 140 acres. QAI requested that
Shamrock provide a written plan to provide adequate pasture for its organic livestock. The plan
was to include acreage, forage description, the timing of the cropping cycles such that there
would always be ground available for grazing, animal numbers, and the duration/frequency of
their stay on the pasture as well as an assessment of the pasture’s ability to provide substantive
nutritive value to the animals pastured. Additionally, QAI stated that Shamrock would have to
complete Individual Field Profile (IFP) Sheets for Red River 1, 2, and 3 fields that would be
eligible for organic use in the autumn of 2009.

On December 10, 2008, QAI sent a letter to Barbara C. Robinson, Acting Director National
Organic Program, addressing the allegations of the complaint. In that letter, QAI stated that it
believed Shamrock was complying with NOP regulations as currently written.

On September 17, 2009, Schmale and Compliance Specialist Tammie Wilburn conducted a
telephone interview with Mr. Will Fantle and Mr. Mark Kastel of the Cornucopia Institute. The
telephone interview was conducted as a final attempt to collect evidence to support Cornucopia’s
complaint prior to moving to case closure. Schmale and Wilburn summarized the interview in a
memorandum of telephone conversation, which was affirmed by all interview participants.

On December 4, 2009, Schmale requested and received from QAI, Shamrock’s response to the
December 1, 2009, Notice of Noncompliance.

The following findings of fact are supported by:

(1) QAI’'s November 20, 2008 inspector’s report submitted to C&E,
(2) QAI’s December 1, 2008 Notice of Noncompliance to Shamrock,
(3) QAI’s December 10, 2008 response to allegations,

(4) Shamrock’s response to the Notice of Noncompliance
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(5) C&E’s September 17, 2009 Memo of Interview with the Cornucopia Institute , and
(6) Additional information as requested of QAI and the Cornucopia Institute.

IV.  FINDINGS OF FACT

Allegation 1: Cornucopia contends that Shamrock’s feedlot facility does not provide sufficient
pasture for its dairy herd of approximately 11,000 cows, of which approximately 700-1000 cows
are managed organically.

Inspection records indicate that Shamrock dairy is a split operation with a total of about 10,000
cows, 1,000 of which are managed organically. QAI documented on its November 20, 2008
Inspection Report that Shamrock has not provided sufficient access to pasture for its organic
dairy herd. QAI indicated the inspector had noted that for the winter of 2008, the extent of
pasture for the dairy was 140 acres. QAI requested that Shamrock provide a written plan to
provide adequate pasture for its organic livestock. The plan was to include acreage, forage
description, the timing of the cropping cycles such that there would always be ground available
for grazing, animal numbers, and the duration/frequency of their stay on the pasture as well as an
assessment of the pasture’s ability to provide substantive nutritive value to the animals pastured.
Additionally, QAI stated that Shamrock would have to complete Individual Field Profile (IFP)
Sheets for Red River 1, 2, and 3 fields that would be eligible for organic use in the autumn of
2009. Copies of QAI’s inspection records dated November 20, 2008, are in the exhibits section
of this report.

Allegation 2: Cornucopia contends that Shamrock’s cows were confined to feedlots and not
pastured for weeks.

The QAI inspector reviewed pasture logs from April 1-30, 2008 and July 1-31, 2008. The April
pasture log shows the herd was denied pasture from April 5-8, 2008 due to irrigation of the field.
The July pasture log shows the herd was denied pasture from July 1-31, 2008 due to ambient
temperatures exceeding 90°F. The Inspector’s Report dated November 20, 2008, states on page
2, item 3 that heifers and dry cows did not need supplemental feed during the winter when they
were grazing the oats. Item 5 of the report states that the only available pasture was 160 acres
known as Beryl 320. The report states that as soon as the winter planting of oats in the newly
transitioned Red River Fields 4, 5, and 6 is established, the acreage will increase significantly
and so will the configuration of the available grazing.

Cornucopia provided no facts to support this allegation.
Allegation 3: Cornucopia contends that geographic or climatic conditions, which make pasture
impractical or not cost-effective, cannot be used to justify year-round noncompliance with the

pasture rule.

The QAI inspector reviewed pasture logs from April 1-30, 2008 and July 1-31, 2008. The April
pasture log shows the herd was denied pasture from April 5-8, 2008 due to irrigation of the field.
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The July pasture log shows the herd was denied pasture from July 1-31, 2008 due to ambient
temperatures exceeding 90°F. The Inspector’s Report dated November 20, 2008, states on page
2, item 3 that heifers and dry cows did not need supplemental feed during the winter when they
were grazing the oats. Item 5 of the report states that the only available pasture was 160 acres
known as Beryl 320. The report states that as soon as the winter planting of oats in the newly
transitioned Red River Fields 4, 5, and 6 is established, the acreage will increase significantly
and so will the configuration of the available grazing.

Cornucopia provided no facts to support this allegation.

V. CONCLUSION & RECOMMENDATION
Allegation 1: Cornucopia contends that Shamrock’s feedlot facility does not provide sufficient
pasture for its dairy herd of approximately 11,000 cows, of which approximately 700-1000 cows

are managed organically.

Regulatory Requirements: 7 CFR Section 205.237(a)

The producer of an organic livestock operation must provide livestock with a total feed ration
composed of agricultural products, including pasture and forage, that are organically produced
and, if applicable, organically handled: Except, that, nonsynthetic substances and synthetic
substances allowed under §205.603 may be used as feed additives and supplements.

Conclusion & Recommendation:

QA findings from an announced inspection on November 19-20, 2008 indicate apparent
violations to 7 CFR Section 205.237(a). QAI has been in conversation with Shamrock about its
pasture availability and approved a plan submitted by Shamrock in January 2009 to adapt its
operations to meet regulatory guidelines.

We concur that Shamrock has not increased the amount of pasture available to its organic herd.
As a result, Shamrock has attempted to graze more animals than is justifiable for the climatic
conditions given the limited organic pasture it has available.

As stated in § 205.403(2)(ii), The Administrator or State organic program’s governing State
official may require that additional inspections be performed by the certifying agent for the
purpose of determining compliance with the Act and the regulations of this part.

Allegation 2: Cornucopia contends that Shamrock’s cows were confined to feedlots and not
pastured for weeks.



Reqgulatory Requirements: 7 CFR Section 205.238(a)(3) and (4) and 205.239 (a) (1) (2)
(b)(1)(2)(3)(4)

(@) The producer of an organic livestock operation must establish and maintain livestock living
conditions which accommaodate the health and natural behavior of animals, including: (1) Access
to the outdoors, shade, shelter, exercise areas, fresh air, and direct sunlight suitable to the
species, its stage of production, the climate, and the environment; (2) Access to pasture for
ruminants; (b) The producer of an organic livestock operation may provide temporary
confinement for an animal because of: (1) Inclement weather; (2) The animal’s stage of
production; (3) Conditions under which the health, safety, or well-being of the animal could be
jeopardized; or (4) Risk to soil or water quality.

Conclusion & Recommendation:

The QAI inspector reviewed pasture logs from April 1-30, 2008 and July 1-31, 2008. The April
pasture log shows the herd was denied pasture from April 5-8, 2008 due to irrigation of the field.
The July pasture log shows the herd was denied pasture from July 1-31, 2008 due to ambient
temperatures exceeding 90°F. The Inspector’s Report dated November 20, 2008, states on page
2, item 3 that heifers and dry cows did not need supplemental feed during the winter when they
were grazing the oats. Item 5 of the report states that the only available pasture was 160 acres
known as Beryl 320. The report states that as soon as the winter planting of oats in the newly
transitioned Red River Fields 4, 5, and 6 is established, the acreage will increase significantly
and so will the configuration of the available grazing. Based on the inspector’s report, C & E
concludes that the herd was denied pasture for the reasons set forth in § 205.239(b). C & E
recommends Shamrock increase the acreage of available organic pasture for its herd. C & E also
recommends a physical visit to Shamrock by C & E investigators.

As stated in § 205.403(2)(ii), The Administrator or State organic program’s governing State
official may require that additional inspections be performed by the certifying agent for the
purpose of determining compliance with the Act and the regulations of this part.

Allegation 3: Cornucopia contends that geographic or climatic conditions which make pasture
impractical or not cost-effective, cannot be used to justify year-round noncompliance with the
pasture rule.

Reqgulatory Requirements: 7 CFR Section 205.239(a)(b)

(a) The of an organic livestock operation must establish and maintain livestock living conditions
which accommodate the health and natural behavior of animals, including: (1) Access to the
outdoors, shade, shelter, exercise areas, fresh air, and direct sunlight suitable to the species, its
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stage of production, the climate, and the environment; (2) Access to pasture for
ruminants;...(b)The producer of an organic livestock operation may provide temporary
confinement for an animal because of: (1) inclement weather; (2) The animal’s stage of
production; (3) Conditions under which the health, safety, or well being of the animal could be
jeopardized; or (4) Risk to soil or water quality.

Conclusion & Recommendation:

The QAI inspector reviewed pasture logs from April 1-30, 2008 and July 1-31, 2008. The April
pasture log shows the herd was denied pasture from April 5-8, 2008 due to irrigation of the field.
The July pasture log shows the herd was denied pasture from July 1-31, 2008 due to ambient
temperatures exceeding 90°F. The Inspector’s Report dated November 20, 2008, states on page
2, item 3 that heifers and dry cows did not need supplemental feed during the winter when they
were grazing the oats. Item 5 of the report states that the only available pasture was 160 acres
known as Beryl 320. The report states that as soon as the winter planting of oats in the newly
transitioned Red River Fields 4, 5, and 6 is established, the acreage will increase significantly
and so will the configuration of the available grazing. Again, based on the inspector’s report, C
& E concludes that the herd was denied pasture for the reasons set forth in § 205.239(b).
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REPORT OF INVESTIGATION
l. INTRODUCTION

The Compliance & Enforcement (C&E) Division of the National Organic Program (NOP) is
responsible for investigating complaints filed under the Organic Foods Production Act of 1990
(7 USC 6501 et seq.) and its related laws and regulations.

On October 14, 2008, C&E received a complaint through David Trykowski, Director,
Agricultural Marketing Service (AMS) Compliance and Analysis Branch regarding alleged
violations of the NOP at Shamrock Farms Dairy (Shamrock) facility in Phoenix, Arizona (AZ).
Mr. Will Fantle, Director of Research, The Cornucopia Institute, Cornucopia, Wisconsin (WI)
made the complaint.

On October 21, 2008, Valerie Schmale, Agricultural Marketing Specialist (Regulatory) C & E,
contacted Joe Smillie, of Quality Assurance International (QAI), Shamrock’s certifying agent, to
begin an investigation into the allegations. The case was referred to Maria DeVincenzo, Quality
Specialist, QAL, for further investigation. An investigation was conducted and the results of the
investigation are contained in this report.

Significant terms:

Center-pivot irrigation (sometimes called central pivot irrigation), also called circle
irrigation — is a method of crop irrigation in which equipment rotates around a pivot.

Dry cow — A cow that will no longer give milk.

Feed — Edible materials which are consumed by livestock for their nutritional value. Feed may
be concentrates (grains) or roughages (fodder, hay, silage). The term, “feed” encompasses all
agricultural commodities, including pasture ingested by livestock for nutritional purposes.

Feed additive — A substance added to feed in micro quantities to fulfill a specific nutritional
need,; i.e. essential nutrients in the form of amino acids, minerals, and vitamins.

Feed supplement — A combination of feed nutrients added to livestock feed to improve the
nutrient balance or performance of the total ration and intended to be: (1) Diluted with other fees
when fed to livestock; (2) Offered free choice with other parts of the ration if separately
available; or (3) Further diluted and mixed to produce a complete feed.

Field — An area of land identified as a discrete unit within a production operation.

Forage — Vegetative material in a fresh, dried, or ensiled state (pasture, hay, or silage), which is
fed to livestock.

Heifer — A young female cow before she has had her first calf.

Pasture — Land used for livestock grazing that is managed to provide feed value and maintain or
improve soil, water, and vegetative resources.

Records — Any information in written, visual, or electronic form that documents the activities
undertaken by a producer, handler, or certifying agent to comply with the Act and regulations in
this part.




Saudi Barn - an open styled barn designed by the University of Arizona for use in the Saudi
Arabian desert. The barn consists of a feed line under a shaded area, which allows the animals to
be handled in the headlocks while eating.

Split operation — An operation that produces or handles both organic and nonorganic
agricultural products.

Springer — A female that is about to give birth to a calf.

BACKGROUND

Shamrock Dairy is a split operation with a total of about 10,000 cows, 1,000 of which were
certified organic in June 2007. Shamrock is the only organic dairy in Arizona. Milk is shipped
to its plant in Phoenix where it is bottled as fluid milk and processed into sour cream.

Shamrock has been certified with QAI for crops and livestock since March 2, 2007. Shamrock
was certified to handle silage on April 5, 2007 and dairy products on April 23, 2007. On
January 2, 2009, Shamrock became a certified producer of crops for livestock feed (barley, hay,
pasture, oats, sorghum, and Sudan Grass). Shamrock’s organic dairy herd was started in June
2007 using a group of heifers that were transitioned in Oregon. Two more groups of heifers
entered the herd in 2007. One group entered the herd on June 5, 2007 and is known as the X
group. The second group entered the herd on September 21, 2007 and is known as the Y group.
Records indicate that there are 119 head accounted for in the X herd and 129 head accounted for
in the Y herd.

Shamrock’s Dairy Organic Compliance Plan (OCP) for livestock management covers the
Shamrock Farms Company in Stanfield, Arizona (AZ). According to Shamrock’s OCP Herd
Pasture Profile (HPP), dated November 15, 2008, there are 998 head of organic dairy cattle on
120-140 acres of organic pasture at Shamrock. Shamrock is certified for crops, handling, and
livestock. Crops grown for the organic operations include permanent pasture, alfalfa, and winter
forage. There are no outside sales of crops; all crops harvested are used for on-farm feed.

As of November 18, 2008, Shamrock’s OCP Item A6 indicates there are 750 milk cows managed
organically. The HPP dated November 15, 2008 indicates that the number of organic pasture
acres is 160 total. The HPP indicates the breakdown of the organic herd as follows in the chart
below.

Age Group |# of Production |Pasture Fields |[Acreage of |[Number of Estimated Number
Animals in|Status Provided to Pasture Feed Units Fed |of Pasture Units
Age this Age Group|Fields to each Age Fed to each Age
Group Provided |Group per day |Group per day

16 months 125 Heifers Berl 320 160 20 1 acre

22 months  [123 Springers Berl 320 160 24 1.25 acres

24+ months {200 Dry Cows Berl 320 160 24 2.5 acres

24+ months  [550 Milking Berl 320 160 20 5.5 acres




The inspector’s report dated November 19-20, 2008, indicates that there were 120 acres of
available pasture on Beryl 320.

Shamrock’s Proposed Pasture SOP for the Organic Dairy indicates that animals shall have access
to pasture except for the reasons of:
e Pasture development (irrigation, planting, manure application)
e Inclement weather (Daily temperature exceeding 90°F, severe monsoon storms)
e Health Issues (dry animals, heifers in the last 30 days of gestation, fresh animals less than
45 days in milk, animals that are weak or sick and in need of close monitoring)

The Proposed Pasture SOP does not indicate the number of acres available per cow, or the total
number of acres available for pasture. Irrigation on the Beryl 320 parcel is accomplished
through center-pivot irrigation. Irrigation for the Red River parcels is accomplished through
flooding. Cattle cannot be pastured during times of irrigation because of damage created by the
animals’ hooves in the soft ground.

In a December 1, 2008 letter to Shamrock, QAI indicated the inspector had noted that for the
winter of 2008, the extent of pasture for the dairy was 140 acres. QAI requested that Shamrock
provide a written plan to provide adequate pasture for its organic livestock. The plan was to
include acreage, forage description, the timing of the cropping cycles such that there would
always be ground available for grazing, animal numbers, and the duration/frequency of their stay
on the pasture as well as an assessment of the pasture’s ability to provide substantive nutritive
value to the animals pastured.

1. ALLEGATIONS

The Cornucopia Institute (Cornucopia) broadly alleges violations of the National Organic
Program’s (NOP) regulatory standards governing dairy cows and access to pasture provisions.’

Allegation 1: Cornucopia contends that Shamrock’s feedlot facility does not provide sufficient
pasture for its dairy herd of approximately 11,000 cows, of which approximately 700-1,000 cows
are managed organically.

Allegation 2: Cornucopia contends that Shamrock’s cows were confined to feedlots and not
pastured for weeks.

Allegation 3: Cornucopia contends that geographic or climatic conditions which make pasture
impractical or not cost-effective, cannot be used to justify year-round noncompliance with the
pasture rule.

1. METHODOLOGY

In response to the October 14, 2008 initial complaint, On October 21, 2008, Valerie Schmale
with NOP C & E requested that QAI conduct an investigation into the allegations consistent with
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C&E procedures for certified operations. Ms. Schmale also requested QAI respond back to NOP
with their findings by November 27, 2008; and a description of corrective action with a timeline
for implementation.

On October 28, 2008, C&E Branch Chief, Ruihong Guo sent Cornucopia correspondence to
request more information and evidence to support its allegations against Shamrock. C&E
requested more information from Mr. Fantle because the initial complaint lacked sufficient
evidentiary support to warrant a C&E investigation. Mr. Mark Kastel, Cornucopia, responded on
November 3, 2008 that he was traveling and could not put the evidence together until his return;
no specific date was proposed.

In a November 7, 2008, response to C&E’s request, QAI indicated that a review of the inspection
report from an April 1, 2008 inspection did not indicate any questions as to the organic integrity
of the operation. QAI indicated that if a full investigation was not completed by January 30,
2009, it would submit an update on the current progress to the USDA. In a November 10, 2008
response, the NOP stated that complaints were time sensitive and must be investigated promptly.
NOP responded that a full report was expected by November 27, 2008.

On December 1, 2008, QAI sent Shamrock, a Notice of Noncompliance to address deficiencies
found during the November 19-20, 2008 inspection. QA indicated the inspector had noted that
for the winter of 2008, the extent of pasture for the dairy was 140 acres. QAI requested that
Shamrock provide a written plan to provide adequate pasture for its organic livestock. The plan
was to include acreage, forage description, the timing of the cropping cycles such that there
would always be ground available for grazing, animal numbers, and the duration/frequency of
their stay on the pasture as well as an assessment of the pasture’s ability to provide substantive
nutritive value to the animals pastured. Additionally, QAI stated that Shamrock would have to
complete Individual Field Profile (IFP) Sheets for Red River 1, 2, and 3 fields that would be
eligible for organic use in the autumn of 2009.

On December 10, 2008, QAI sent a letter to Barbara C. Robinson, Acting Director National
Organic Program, addressing the allegations of the complaint. In that letter, QAI stated that it
believed Shamrock was complying with NOP regulations as currently written. QAI also
addressed each allegation.

On September 17, 2009, Schmale and Compliance Specialist Tammie Wilburn conducted a
telephone interview with Mr. Will Fantle and Mr. Mark Kastel of the Cornucopia Institute. The
telephone interview was conducted as a final attempt to collect evidence to support Cornucopia’s
complaint prior to moving to case closure. Schmale and Wilburn summarized the interview in a
memorandum of telephone conversation, which was affirmed by all interview participants.

On December 4, 2009, Schmale requested and received from QAI, Shamrock’s response to the
December 1, 2009, Notice of Noncompliance.

The following findings of fact are supported by:
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(1) QAI’s November 20, 2008 inspector’s report submitted to C&E,

(2) QAI’s December 1, 2008 Notice of Noncompliance to Shamrock,

(3) QAI’s December 10, 2008 response to allegations,

(4) Shamrock’s response to the Notice of Noncompliance,

(5) C&E’s September 17, 2009 Memo of Interview with the Cornucopia Institute, and
(6) Additional information as requested of QAI and the Cornucopia Institute.

IV.  FINDINGS OF FACT

Allegation 1: Cornucopia contends that Shamrock’s feedlot facility does not provide sufficient
pasture for its dairy herd of approximately 11,000 cows, of which approximately 700-1000 cows
are managed organically.

In its December 10, 2008 letter, QAI responded that until the NOP finalizes the pasture rule, it
will not require a certain number of cows per acre nor a certain quantity of feed from
pasture/grazing. QAI findings indicate that access to the outdoors was provided aside from the
instances related to inclement weather, animals’ stage of production, or risk to soil or water
quality. The reasons for confinement were consistent with NOP regulations. QAI findings
indicate that pasture has been available, consistent with NOP regulations. QAI provided a table
explaining the grazing season in relation to animal numbers and acres available for pasture (MC
= Milking Cows, DR = Dry Cows, H = Heifers):

Animal # Acres Available
Month MC DR H Cow DC&H Crop
February 743 4 253 100 20 Oats
March 730 16 367 100 20 Oats
April 701 43 365 0 120 Oats
May 15" 701 24 365 0 120 Oats
May 16" On  |701 24 365 0 0 Crop Switch
June 663 88 471 0 0 Crop Switch
July 624 184 |398 0 120 Sorghum
August 627 195 (374 0 0 Sorghum
September 635 179 |365 0 0 Sorghum
October 672 189 |308 0 0 Sorghum
November 672 189 |308 0 0 Crop Switch
Average # 679 103 |358
Total [1140

Specific notes to the table indicate (1) that grazing of the oats started in mid to end of January
and (2) the heifers tried to graze the sorghum for about 10 days in July.



Inspection records indicate that Shamrock dairy is a split operation with a total of about 10,000
cows, 1,000 of which are managed organically. QAI documented on its November 20, 2008
Inspection Report that Shamrock has not provided sufficient access to pasture for its organic
dairy herd. QAI indicated the inspector had noted that for the winter of 2008, the extent of
pasture for the dairy was 140 acres. QAI requested that Shamrock provide a written plan to
provide adequate pasture for its organic livestock. The plan was to include acreage, forage
description, the timing of the cropping cycles such that there would always be ground available
for grazing, animal numbers, and the duration/frequency of their stay on the pasture as well as an
assessment of the pasture’s ability to provide substantive nutritive value to the animals pastured.
Additionally, QAI stated that Shamrock would have to complete Individual Field Profile (IFP)
Sheets for Red River 1, 2, and 3 fields that would be eligible for organic use in the autumn of
2009. Copies of QAI’s inspection records dated November 20, 2008, are in the exhibits section
of this report.

Allegation 2: Cornucopia contends that Shamrock’s cows were confined to feedlots and not
pastured for weeks.

In its December 10, 2008 letter, QAI responded that findings indicate that access to the outdoors
was provided aside from the instances related to inclement weather, animals’ stage of
production, or risk to soil or water quality. The reasons for confinement were consistent with
NOP regulations. QAI findings indicate that pasture has been available, consistent with NOP
regulations. QAI provided a table explaining the grazing season in relation to animal numbers
and acres available for pasture (MC = Milking Cows, DR = Dry Cows, H = Heifers):

Animal # Acres Available
Month MC DR H Cow DC&H Crop
February 743 4 253 100 20 Oats
March 730 16 367 100 20 Oats
April 701 43 365 0 120 Oats
May 15" 701 24 365 0 120 Oats
May 16" On  |701 24 365 0 0 Crop Switch
June 663 88 471 0 0 Crop Switch
July 624 184 |398 0 120 Sorghum
August 627 195 (374 0 0 Sorghum
September 635 179  |365 0 0 Sorghum
October 672 189 |308 0 0 Sorghum
November 672 189 |308 0 0 Crop Switch
Average # 679 103|358
Total 1140

Specific notes to the table indicate (1) that grazing of the oats started in mid to end of January
and (2) the heifers tried to graze the sorghum for about 10 days in July.



The QAI inspector reviewed pasture logs from April 1-30, 2008 and July 1-31, 2008. The April
pasture log shows the herd was denied pasture from April 5-8, 2008 due to irrigation of the field.
The July pasture log shows the herd was denied pasture from July 1-31, 2008 due to ambient
temperatures exceeding 90°F. The Inspector’s Report dated November 20, 2008, states on page
2, item 3 that heifers and dry cows did not need supplemental feed during the winter when they
were grazing the oats. Item 5 of the report states that the only available pasture was 160 acres
known as Beryl 320. The report states that as soon as the winter planting of oats in the newly
transitioned Red River Fields 4, 5, and 6 is established, the acreage will increase significantly
and so will the configuration of the available grazing.

Cornucopia provided no facts to support this allegation.

Allegation 3: Cornucopia contends that geographic or climatic conditions, which make pasture
impractical or not cost-effective, cannot be used to justify year-round noncompliance with the
pasture rule.

In its December 10, 2008 letter, QAI responded that until the NOP finalizes the pasture rule, it
will not require a certain number of cows per acre nor a certain quantity of feed from
pasture/grazing. QAI findings indicate that access to the outdoors was provided aside from the
instances related to inclement weather, animals’ stage of production, or risk to soil or water
quality. The reasons for confinement were consistent with NOP regulations. QAI findings
indicate that pasture has been available, consistent with NOP regulations. QAI provided a table
explaining the grazing season in relation to animal numbers and acres available for pasture (MC
= Milking Cows, DR = Dry Cows, H = Heifers):

Animal # Acres Available
Month MC DR H Cow DC &H Crop
February 743 4 253 100 20 Oats
March 730 16 367 100 20 Oats
April 701 43 365 0 120 Oats
May 15" 701 24 365 0 120 Oats
May 16" On  |701 24 365 0 0 Crop Switch
June 663 88 471 0 0 Crop Switch
July 624 184 |398 0 120 Sorghum
August 627 195 (374 0 0 Sorghum
September 635 179  |365 0 0 Sorghum
October 672 189 |308 0 0 Sorghum
November 672 189 |308 0 0 Crop Switch
Average # 679 103 |358
Total [1140

Specific notes to the table indicate (1) that grazing of the oats started in mid to end of January
and (2) the heifers tried to graze the sorghum for about 10 days in July.
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Additionally, a QAI inspector reviewed pasture logs from April 1-30, 2008 and July 1-31, 2008.
The April pasture log shows the herd was denied pasture from April 5-8, 2008 due to irrigation
of the field. The July pasture log shows the herd was denied pasture from July 1-31, 2008 due to
ambient temperatures exceeding 90°F. The Inspector’s Report dated November 20, 2008, states
on page 2, item 3 that heifers and dry cows did not need supplemental feed during the winter
when they were grazing the oats. Item 5 of the report states that the only available pasture was
160 acres known as Beryl 320. The report states that as soon as the winter planting of oats in the
newly transitioned Red River Fields 4, 5, and 6 is established, the acreage will increase
significantly and so will the configuration of the available grazing.

Cornucopia provided no facts to support this allegation.

V. CONCLUSION & RECOMMENDATION

Allegation 1: Cornucopia contends that Shamrock’s feedlot facility does not provide sufficient
pasture for its dairy herd of approximately 11,000 cows, of which approximately 700-1000 cows

are managed organically.

Regulatory Requirements: 7 CFR Section 205.237(a)

The producer of an organic livestock operation must provide livestock with a total feed ration
composed of agricultural products, including pasture and forage, that are organically produced
and, if applicable, organically handled: Except, that, nonsynthetic substances and synthetic
substances allowed under §205.603 may be used as feed additives and supplements.

Conclusion & Recommendation:

QA findings from an announced inspection on November 19-20, 2008 indicate apparent
violations to 7 CFR Section 205.237(a). QAI has been in conversation with Shamrock about its
pasture availability and approved a plan submitted by Shamrock in January 2009 to adapt its
operations to meet regulatory guidelines.

We concur that Shamrock has not increased the amount of pasture available to its organic herd.
As a result, Shamrock has attempted to graze more animals than is justifiable for the climatic
conditions given the limited organic pasture it has available.

As stated in § 205.403(2)(ii), The Administrator or State organic program’s governing State
official may require that additional inspections be performed by the certifying agent for the
purpose of determining compliance with the Act and the regulations of this part.
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Allegation 2: Cornucopia contends that Shamrock’s cows were confined to feedlots and not
pastured for weeks.

Reqgulatory Requirements: 7 CFR Section 205.238(a)(3) and (4) and 205.239 (a) (1) (2)
(b)YD()(B)(4)

(@) The producer of an organic livestock operation must establish and maintain livestock living
conditions which accommaodate the health and natural behavior of animals, including: (1) Access
to the outdoors, shade, shelter, exercise areas, fresh air, and direct sunlight suitable to the
species, its stage of production, the climate, and the environment; (2) Access to pasture for
ruminants; (b) The producer of an organic livestock operation may provide temporary
confinement for an animal because of: (1) Inclement weather; (2) The animal’s stage of
production; (3) Conditions under which the health, safety, or well-being of the animal could be
jeopardized; or (4) Risk to soil or water quality.

Conclusion & Recommendation:

The QAI inspector reviewed pasture logs from April 1-30, 2008 and July 1-31, 2008. The April
pasture log shows the herd was denied pasture from April 5-8, 2008 due to irrigation of the field.
The July pasture log shows the herd was denied pasture from July 1-31, 2008 due to ambient
temperatures exceeding 90°F. The Inspector’s Report dated November 20, 2008, states on page
2, item 3 that heifers and dry cows did not need supplemental feed during the winter when they
were grazing the oats. Item 5 of the report states that the only available pasture was 160 acres
known as Beryl 320. The report states that as soon as the winter planting of oats in the newly
transitioned Red River Fields 4, 5, and 6 is established, the acreage will increase significantly
and so will the configuration of the available grazing. Based on the inspector’s report, C & E
concludes that the herd was denied pasture for the reasons set forth in § 205.239(b).

As stated in § 205.403(2)(ii), The Administrator or State organic program’s governing State
official may require that additional inspections be performed by the certifying agent for the
purpose of determining compliance with the Act and the regulations of this part.

Allegation 3: Cornucopia contends that geographic or climatic conditions which make pasture
impractical or not cost-effective, cannot be used to justify year-round noncompliance with the
pasture rule.

Reqgulatory Requirements: 7 CFR Section 205.239(a)(b)
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() The of an organic livestock operation must establish and maintain livestock living conditions
which accommodate the health and natural behavior of animals, including: (1) Access to the
outdoors, shade, shelter, exercise areas, fresh air, and direct sunlight suitable to the species, its
stage of production, the climate, and the environment; (2) Access to pasture for
ruminants;...(b)The producer of an organic livestock operation may provide temporary
confinement for an animal because of: (1) inclement weather; (2) The animal’s stage of
production; (3) Conditions under which the health, safety, or well being of the animal could be
jeopardized; or (4) Risk to soil or water quality.

Conclusion & Recommendation:

The QAI inspector reviewed pasture logs from April 1-30, 2008 and July 1-31, 2008. The April
pasture log shows the herd was denied pasture from April 5-8, 2008 due to irrigation of the field.
The July pasture log shows the herd was denied pasture from July 1-31, 2008 due to ambient
temperatures exceeding 90°F. The Inspector’s Report dated November 20, 2008, states on page
2, item 3 that heifers and dry cows did not need supplemental feed during the winter when they
were grazing the oats. Item 5 of the report states that the only available pasture was 160 acres
known as Beryl 320. The report states that as soon as the winter planting of oats in the newly
transitioned Red River Fields 4, 5, and 6 is established, the acreage will increase significantly
and so will the configuration of the available grazing. Again, based on the inspector’s report, C
& E concludes that the herd was denied pasture for the reasons set forth in 8§ 205.239(b).
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REPORT OF INVESTIGATION
l. INTRODUCTION

The Compliance & Enforcement (C&E) Division of the National Organic Program (NOP) is
responsible for investigating complaints filed under the Organic Foods Production Act of 1990
(7 USC 6501 et seq.) and its related laws and regulations.

On October 14, 2008, C&E received a complaint through David Trykowski, Director,
Agricultural Marketing Service (AMS) Compliance and Analysis Branch regarding alleged
violations of the NOP at Shamrock Farms Dairy (Shamrock) facility in Phoenix, Arizona (AZ).
Mr. Will Fantle, Director of Research, The Cornucopia Institute, Cornucopia, Wisconsin (WI)
made the complaint.

On October 21, 2008, Valerie Schmale, Agricultural Marketing Specialist (Regulatory) C & E,
contacted Joe Smillie, of Quality Assurance International (QAI), Shamrock’s certifying agent, to
begin an investigation into the allegations. The case was referred to Maria DeVincenzo, Quality
Specialist, QAL, for further investigation. An investigation was conducted and the results of the
investigation are contained in this report.

Significant terms:

Center-pivot irrigation (sometimes called central pivot irrigation), also called circle
irrigation — is a method of crop irrigation in which equipment rotates around a pivot.

Dry cow — A cow that will no longer give milk.

Feed — Edible materials which are consumed by livestock for their nutritional value. Feed may
be concentrates (grains) or roughages (fodder, hay, silage). The term, “feed” encompasses all
agricultural commodities, including pasture ingested by livestock for nutritional purposes.

Feed additive — A substance added to feed in micro quantities to fulfill a specific nutritional
need,; i.e. essential nutrients in the form of amino acids, minerals, and vitamins.

Feed supplement — A combination of feed nutrients added to livestock feed to improve the
nutrient balance or performance of the total ration and intended to be: (1) Diluted with other fees
when fed to livestock; (2) Offered free choice with other parts of the ration if separately
available; or (3) Further diluted and mixed to produce a complete feed.

Field — An area of land identified as a discrete unit within a production operation.

Forage — Vegetative material in a fresh, dried, or ensiled state (pasture, hay, or silage), which is
fed to livestock.

Heifer — A young female cow before she has had her first calf.

Pasture — Land used for livestock grazing that is managed to provide feed value and maintain or
improve soil, water, and vegetative resources.

Records — Any information in written, visual, or electronic form that documents the activities
undertaken by a producer, handler, or certifying agent to comply with the Act and regulations in
this part.




Saudi Barn - an open styled barn designed by the University of Arizona for use in the Saudi
Arabian desert. The barn consists of a feed line under a shaded area, which allows the animals to
be handled in the headlocks while eating.

Split operation — An operation that produces or handles both organic and nonorganic
agricultural products.

Springer — A female that is about to give birth to a calf.

BACKGROUND

Shamrock Dairy is a split operation with a total of about 10,000 cows, 1,000 of which were
certified organic in June 2007. Shamrock is the only organic dairy in Arizona. Milk is shipped
to its plant in Phoenix where it is bottled as fluid milk and processed into sour cream.

Shamrock has been certified with QAI for crops and livestock since March 2, 2007. Shamrock
was certified to handle silage on April 5, 2007 and dairy products on April 23, 2007. On
January 2, 2009, Shamrock became a certified producer of crops for livestock feed (barley, hay,
pasture, oats, sorghum, and Sudan Grass). Shamrock’s organic dairy herd was started in June
2007 using a group of heifers that were transitioned in Oregon. Two more groups of heifers
entered the herd in 2007. One group entered the herd on June 5, 2007 and is known as the X
group. The second group entered the herd on September 21, 2007 and is known as the Y group.
Records indicate that there are 119 head accounted for in the X herd and 129 head accounted for
in the Y herd.

Shamrock’s Dairy Organic Compliance Plan (OCP) for livestock management covers the
Shamrock Farms Company in Stanfield, Arizona (AZ). According to Shamrock’s OCP Herd
Pasture Profile (HPP), dated November 15, 2008, there are 998 head of organic dairy cattle on
120-140 acres of organic pasture at Shamrock. Shamrock is certified for crops, handling, and
livestock. Crops grown for the organic operations include permanent pasture, alfalfa, and winter
forage. There are no outside sales of crops; all crops harvested are used for on-farm feed.

As of November 18, 2008, Shamrock’s OCP Item A6 indicates there are 750 milk cows managed
organically. The HPP dated November 15, 2008 indicates that the number of organic pasture
acres is 160 total. The HPP indicates the breakdown of the organic herd as follows in the chart
below.

Age Group |# of Production |Pasture Fields |[Acreage of |[Number of Estimated Number
Animals in|Status Provided to Pasture Feed Units Fed |of Pasture Units
Age this Age Group|Fields to each Age Fed to each Age
Group Provided |Group per day |Group per day

16 months 125 Heifers Berl 320 160 20 1 acre

22 months  [123 Springers Berl 320 160 24 1.25 acres

24+ months {200 Dry Cows Berl 320 160 24 2.5 acres

24+ months  [550 Milking Berl 320 160 20 5.5 acres




The inspector’s report dated November 19-20, 2008, indicates that there were 120 acres of
available pasture on Beryl 320.

Shamrock’s Proposed Pasture SOP for the Organic Dairy indicates that animals shall have access
to pasture except for the reasons of:
e Pasture development (irrigation, planting, manure application)
e Inclement weather (Daily temperature exceeding 90°F, severe monsoon storms)
e Health Issues (dry animals, heifers in the last 30 days of gestation, fresh animals less than
45 days in milk, animals that are weak or sick and in need of close monitoring)

The Proposed Pasture SOP does not indicate the number of acres available per cow, or the total
number of acres available for pasture. Irrigation on the Beryl 320 parcel is accomplished
through center-pivot irrigation. Irrigation for the Red River parcels is accomplished through
flooding. Cattle cannot be pastured during times of irrigation because of damage created by the
animals’ hooves in the soft ground.

In a December 1, 2008 letter to Shamrock, QAI indicated the inspector had noted that for the
winter of 2008, the extent of pasture for the dairy was 140 acres. QAI requested that Shamrock
provide a written plan to provide adequate pasture for its organic livestock. The plan was to
include acreage, forage description, the timing of the cropping cycles such that there would
always be ground available for grazing, animal numbers, and the duration/frequency of their stay
on the pasture as well as an assessment of the pasture’s ability to provide substantive nutritive
value to the animals pastured.

1. ALLEGATIONS

The Cornucopia Institute (Cornucopia) broadly alleges violations of the National Organic
Program’s (NOP) regulatory standards governing dairy cows and access to pasture provisions.’

Allegation 1: Cornucopia contends that Shamrock’s feedlot facility does not provide sufficient
pasture for its dairy herd of approximately 11,000 cows, of which approximately 700-1,000 cows
are managed organically.

Allegation 2: Cornucopia contends that Shamrock’s cows were confined to feedlots and not
pastured for weeks.

Allegation 3: Cornucopia contends that geographic or climatic conditions which make pasture
impractical or not cost-effective, cannot be used to justify year-round noncompliance with the
pasture rule.

1. METHODOLOGY

In response to the October 14, 2008 initial complaint, On October 21, 2008, Valerie Schmale
with NOP C & E requested that QAI conduct an investigation into the allegations consistent with

5



C&E procedures for certified operations. Ms. Schmale also requested QAI respond back to NOP
with their findings by November 27, 2008; and a description of corrective action with a timeline
for implementation.

On October 28, 2008, C&E Branch Chief, Ruihong Guo sent Cornucopia correspondence to
request more information and evidence to support its allegations against Shamrock. C&E
requested more information from Mr. Fantle because the initial complaint lacked sufficient
evidentiary support to warrant a C&E investigation. Mr. Mark Kastel, Cornucopia, responded on
November 3, 2008 that he was traveling and could not put the evidence together until his return;
no specific date was proposed.

In a November 7, 2008, response to C&E’s request, QAI indicated that a review of the inspection
report from an April 1, 2008 inspection did not indicate any questions as to the organic integrity
of the operation. QAI indicated that if a full investigation was not completed by January 30,
2009, it would submit an update on the current progress to the USDA. In a November 10, 2008
response, the NOP stated that complaints were time sensitive and must be investigated promptly.
NOP responded that a full report was expected by November 27, 2008.

On December 1, 2008, QAI sent Shamrock, a Notice of Noncompliance to address deficiencies
found during the November 19-20, 2008 inspection. QA indicated the inspector had noted that
for the winter of 2008, the extent of pasture for the dairy was 140 acres. QAI requested that
Shamrock provide a written plan to provide adequate pasture for its organic livestock. The plan
was to include acreage, forage description, the timing of the cropping cycles such that there
would always be ground available for grazing, animal numbers, and the duration/frequency of
their stay on the pasture as well as an assessment of the pasture’s ability to provide substantive
nutritive value to the animals pastured. Additionally, QAI stated that Shamrock would have to
complete Individual Field Profile (IFP) Sheets for Red River 1, 2, and 3 fields that would be
eligible for organic use in the autumn of 2009.

On December 10, 2008, QAI sent a letter to Barbara C. Robinson, Acting Director National
Organic Program, addressing the allegations of the complaint. In that letter, QAI stated that it
believed Shamrock was complying with NOP regulations as currently written. QAI also
addressed each allegation.

On September 17, 2009, Schmale and Compliance Specialist Tammie Wilburn conducted a
telephone interview with Mr. Will Fantle and Mr. Mark Kastel of the Cornucopia Institute. The
telephone interview was conducted as a final attempt to collect evidence to support Cornucopia’s
complaint prior to moving to case closure. Schmale and Wilburn summarized the interview in a
memorandum of telephone conversation, which was affirmed by all interview participants.

On December 4, 2009, Schmale requested and received from QAI, Shamrock’s response to the
December 1, 2009, Notice of Noncompliance.

The following findings of fact are supported by:

6



(1) QAI’s November 20, 2008 inspector’s report submitted to C&E,

(2) QAI’s December 1, 2008 Notice of Noncompliance to Shamrock,

(3) QAI’s December 10, 2008 response to allegations,

(4) Shamrock’s response to the Notice of Noncompliance,

(5) C&E’s September 17, 2009 Memo of Interview with the Cornucopia Institute, and
(6) Additional information as requested of QAI and the Cornucopia Institute.

IV.  FINDINGS OF FACT

Allegation 1: Cornucopia contends that Shamrock’s feedlot facility does not provide sufficient
pasture for its dairy herd of approximately 11,000 cows, of which approximately 700-1000 cows
are managed organically.

In its December 10, 2008 letter, QAI responded that until the NOP finalizes the pasture rule, it
will not require a certain number of cows per acre nor a certain quantity of feed from
pasture/grazing. QAI findings indicate that access to the outdoors was provided aside from the
instances related to inclement weather, animals’ stage of production, or risk to soil or water
quality. The reasons for confinement were consistent with NOP regulations. QAI findings
indicate that pasture has been available, consistent with NOP regulations. QAI provided a table
explaining the grazing season in relation to animal numbers and acres available for pasture (MC
= Milking Cows, DR = Dry Cows, H = Heifers):

Animal # Acres Available
Month MC DR H Cow DC&H Crop
February 743 4 253 100 20 Oats
March 730 16 367 100 20 Oats
April 701 43 365 0 120 Oats
May 15" 701 24 365 0 120 Oats
May 16" On  |701 24 365 0 0 Crop Switch
June 663 88 471 0 0 Crop Switch
July 624 184 |398 0 120 Sorghum
August 627 195 (374 0 0 Sorghum
September 635 179 |365 0 0 Sorghum
October 672 189 |308 0 0 Sorghum
November 672 189 |308 0 0 Crop Switch
Average # 679 103 |358
Total [1140

Specific notes to the table indicate (1) that grazing of the oats started in mid to end of January
and (2) the heifers tried to graze the sorghum for about 10 days in July.



Inspection records indicate that Shamrock dairy is a split operation with a total of about 10,000
cows, 1,000 of which are managed organically. QAI documented on its November 20, 2008
Inspection Report that Shamrock has not provided sufficient access to pasture for its organic
dairy herd. QAI indicated the inspector had noted that for the winter of 2008, the extent of
pasture for the dairy was 140 acres. QAI requested that Shamrock provide a written plan to
provide adequate pasture for its organic livestock. The plan was to include acreage, forage
description, the timing of the cropping cycles such that there would always be ground available
for grazing, animal numbers, and the duration/frequency of their stay on the pasture as well as an
assessment of the pasture’s ability to provide substantive nutritive value to the animals pastured.
Additionally, QAI stated that Shamrock would have to complete Individual Field Profile (IFP)
Sheets for Red River 1, 2, and 3 fields that would be eligible for organic use in the autumn of
2009. Copies of QAI’s inspection records dated November 20, 2008, are in the exhibits section
of this report.

Allegation 2: Cornucopia contends that Shamrock’s cows were confined to feedlots and not
pastured for weeks.

In its December 10, 2008 letter, QAI responded that findings indicate that access to the outdoors
was provided aside from the instances related to inclement weather, animals’ stage of
production, or risk to soil or water quality. The reasons for confinement were consistent with
NOP regulations. QAI findings indicate that pasture has been available, consistent with NOP
regulations. QAI provided a table explaining the grazing season in relation to animal numbers
and acres available for pasture (MC = Milking Cows, DR = Dry Cows, H = Heifers):

Animal # Acres Available
Month MC DR H Cow DC&H Crop
February 743 4 253 100 20 Oats
March 730 16 367 100 20 Oats
April 701 43 365 0 120 Oats
May 15" 701 24 365 0 120 Oats
May 16" On  |701 24 365 0 0 Crop Switch
June 663 88 471 0 0 Crop Switch
July 624 184 |398 0 120 Sorghum
August 627 195 (374 0 0 Sorghum
September 635 179  |365 0 0 Sorghum
October 672 189 |308 0 0 Sorghum
November 672 189 |308 0 0 Crop Switch
Average # 679 103|358
Total 1140

Specific notes to the table indicate (1) that grazing of the oats started in mid to end of January
and (2) the heifers tried to graze the sorghum for about 10 days in July.



The QAI inspector reviewed pasture logs from April 1-30, 2008 and July 1-31, 2008. The April
pasture log shows the herd was denied pasture from April 5-8, 2008 due to irrigation of the field.
The July pasture log shows the herd was denied pasture from July 1-31, 2008 due to ambient
temperatures exceeding 90°F. The Inspector’s Report dated November 20, 2008, states on page
2, item 3 that heifers and dry cows did not need supplemental feed during the winter when they
were grazing the oats. Item 5 of the report states that the only available pasture was 160 acres
known as Beryl 320. The report states that as soon as the winter planting of oats in the newly
transitioned Red River Fields 4, 5, and 6 is established, the acreage will increase significantly
and so will the configuration of the available grazing.

Cornucopia provided no facts to support this allegation.

Allegation 3: Cornucopia contends that geographic or climatic conditions, which make pasture
impractical or not cost-effective, cannot be used to justify year-round noncompliance with the
pasture rule.

In its December 10, 2008 letter, QAI responded that until the NOP finalizes the pasture rule, it
will not require a certain number of cows per acre nor a certain quantity of feed from
pasture/grazing. QAI findings indicate that access to the outdoors was provided aside from the
instances related to inclement weather, animals’ stage of production, or risk to soil or water
quality. The reasons for confinement were consistent with NOP regulations. QAI findings
indicate that pasture has been available, consistent with NOP regulations. QAI provided a table
explaining the grazing season in relation to animal numbers and acres available for pasture (MC
= Milking Cows, DR = Dry Cows, H = Heifers):

Animal # Acres Available
Month MC DR H Cow DC &H Crop
February 743 4 253 100 20 Oats
March 730 16 367 100 20 Oats
April 701 43 365 0 120 Oats
May 15" 701 24 365 0 120 Oats
May 16" On  |701 24 365 0 0 Crop Switch
June 663 88 471 0 0 Crop Switch
July 624 184 |398 0 120 Sorghum
August 627 195 (374 0 0 Sorghum
September 635 179  |365 0 0 Sorghum
October 672 189 |308 0 0 Sorghum
November 672 189 |308 0 0 Crop Switch
Average # 679 103 |358
Total [1140

Specific notes to the table indicate (1) that grazing of the oats started in mid to end of January
and (2) the heifers tried to graze the sorghum for about 10 days in July.
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Additionally, a QAI inspector reviewed pasture logs from April 1-30, 2008 and July 1-31, 2008.
The April pasture log shows the herd was denied pasture from April 5-8, 2008 due to irrigation
of the field. The July pasture log shows the herd was denied pasture from July 1-31, 2008 due to
ambient temperatures exceeding 90°F. The Inspector’s Report dated November 20, 2008, states
on page 2, item 3 that heifers and dry cows did not need supplemental feed during the winter
when they were grazing the oats. Item 5 of the report states that the only available pasture was
160 acres known as Beryl 320. The report states that as soon as the winter planting of oats in the
newly transitioned Red River Fields 4, 5, and 6 is established, the acreage will increase
significantly and so will the configuration of the available grazing.

Cornucopia provided no facts to support this allegation.

V. CONCLUSION & RECOMMENDATION

Allegation 1: Cornucopia contends that Shamrock’s feedlot facility does not provide sufficient
pasture for its dairy herd of approximately 11,000 cows, of which approximately 700-1000 cows

are managed organically.

Regulatory Requirements: 7 CFR Section 205.237(a)

The producer of an organic livestock operation must provide livestock with a total feed ration
composed of agricultural products, including pasture and forage, that are organically produced
and, if applicable, organically handled: Except, that, nonsynthetic substances and synthetic
substances allowed under §205.603 may be used as feed additives and supplements.

Conclusion & Recommendation:

QA findings from an announced inspection on November 19-20, 2008 indicate apparent
violations to 7 CFR Section 205.237(a). QAI has been in conversation with Shamrock about its
pasture availability and approved a plan submitted by Shamrock in January 2009 to adapt its
operations to meet regulatory guidelines.

We concur that Shamrock has not increased the amount of pasture available to its organic herd.
As a result, Shamrock has attempted to graze more animals than is justifiable for the climatic
conditions given the limited organic pasture it has available.

As stated in § 205.403(2)(ii), The Administrator or State organic program’s governing State
official may require that additional inspections be performed by the certifying agent for the
purpose of determining compliance with the Act and the regulations of this part.
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Allegation 2: Cornucopia contends that Shamrock’s cows were confined to feedlots and not
pastured for weeks.

Reqgulatory Requirements: 7 CFR Section 205.238(a)(3) and (4) and 205.239 (a) (1) (2)
(b)YD()(B)(4)

(@) The producer of an organic livestock operation must establish and maintain livestock living
conditions which accommaodate the health and natural behavior of animals, including: (1) Access
to the outdoors, shade, shelter, exercise areas, fresh air, and direct sunlight suitable to the
species, its stage of production, the climate, and the environment; (2) Access to pasture for
ruminants; (b) The producer of an organic livestock operation may provide temporary
confinement for an animal because of: (1) Inclement weather; (2) The animal’s stage of
production; (3) Conditions under which the health, safety, or well-being of the animal could be
jeopardized; or (4) Risk to soil or water quality.

Conclusion & Recommendation:

The QAI inspector reviewed pasture logs from April 1-30, 2008 and July 1-31, 2008. The April
pasture log shows the herd was denied pasture from April 5-8, 2008 due to irrigation of the field.
The July pasture log shows the herd was denied pasture from July 1-31, 2008 due to ambient
temperatures exceeding 90°F. The Inspector’s Report dated November 20, 2008, states on page
2, item 3 that heifers and dry cows did not need supplemental feed during the winter when they
were grazing the oats. Item 5 of the report states that the only available pasture was 160 acres
known as Beryl 320. The report states that as soon as the winter planting of oats in the newly
transitioned Red River Fields 4, 5, and 6 is established, the acreage will increase significantly
and so will the configuration of the available grazing. Based on the inspector’s report, C & E
concludes that the herd was denied pasture for the reasons set forth in § 205.239(b).

As stated in § 205.403(2)(ii), The Administrator or State organic program’s governing State
official may require that additional inspections be performed by the certifying agent for the
purpose of determining compliance with the Act and the regulations of this part.

Allegation 3: Cornucopia contends that geographic or climatic conditions which make pasture
impractical or not cost-effective, cannot be used to justify year-round noncompliance with the
pasture rule.

Reqgulatory Requirements: 7 CFR Section 205.239(a)(b)
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() The of an organic livestock operation must establish and maintain livestock living conditions
which accommodate the health and natural behavior of animals, including: (1) Access to the
outdoors, shade, shelter, exercise areas, fresh air, and direct sunlight suitable to the species, its
stage of production, the climate, and the environment; (2) Access to pasture for
ruminants;...(b)The producer of an organic livestock operation may provide temporary
confinement for an animal because of: (1) inclement weather; (2) The animal’s stage of
production; (3) Conditions under which the health, safety, or well being of the animal could be
jeopardized; or (4) Risk to soil or water quality.

Conclusion & Recommendation:

The QAI inspector reviewed pasture logs from April 1-30, 2008 and July 1-31, 2008. The April
pasture log shows the herd was denied pasture from April 5-8, 2008 due to irrigation of the field.
The July pasture log shows the herd was denied pasture from July 1-31, 2008 due to ambient
temperatures exceeding 90°F. The Inspector’s Report dated November 20, 2008, states on page
2, item 3 that heifers and dry cows did not need supplemental feed during the winter when they
were grazing the oats. Item 5 of the report states that the only available pasture was 160 acres
known as Beryl 320. The report states that as soon as the winter planting of oats in the newly
transitioned Red River Fields 4, 5, and 6 is established, the acreage will increase significantly
and so will the configuration of the available grazing. Again, based on the inspector’s report, C
& E concludes that the herd was denied pasture for the reasons set forth in 8§ 205.239(b).
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From: Morr, Craig

To: Crail, Lars; Schmale, Valerie

Subject: FW: Shamrock revised NC letter - DRAFT

Date: Tuesday, August 02, 2011 9:25:43 AM
Attachments: Reinspection Draft NC Letter - Shamrock (3).doc

Lars and Valerie,

Here is another attempt at the letter to Shamrock. Again, we’d like to provide intro to the letter
with the proposed email at the bottom of this string. If you have issues with this letter, please give
me a call to clarify your concerns. I’'m afraid | may not have been the best communicator of your
concerns back to the team on this matter.

Thank you for your assistance.

Craig

From: Morr, Craig

Sent: Thursday, July 14, 2011 3:08 PM

To: Crall, Lars; 'Schmale, Valerie'

Cc: Randolph, Alexis; Grealy, Stephen
Subject: Shamrock revised NC letter - DRAFT

Lars and Valerie,

Attached you will find a revised letter to Shamrock on their non-compliance status. This along with
the following cover email are what we propose distributing to them upon your review. As a
reminder, we had issued a rescission of the proposed suspension last Friday.

Any input you have on the proposed would be greatly appreciated.

Regards,
Craig

Dear Mr. John Voss:

Thank you for responding to the combined notice of noncompliance and proposed suspension
letter issued on May 13, 2011. As you are aware that letter was rescinded on July 8, 2011.
QA has accepted the additional information Shamrock Farms supplied in response to that
letter as an update to your organic system plan.

We have been able to complete our evaluation of your operation based on your recent
inspection June 9, 2011. Please find attached your finalized review letter. A complete
response is due within the timeframes noted for each point. Once a sufficient response is
received we will be able to proceed with your certification.

NOTICE: This email and its contents/attachments may be confidential and are


mailto:CMorr@nsf.org
mailto:Lars.Crail@ams.usda.gov
mailto:Valerie.Schmale@ams.usda.gov
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DRAFT

John Voss

P.O. Box 280

Stanfield, AZ 85172

USA

Re: Shamrock Farms Co. / Shamrock Farms Co. 

Dear Mr. John Voss:

· As part of your obligation for ongoing participation in the QAI Organic Certification Program, the Certification Department has asked us to convey to you that your program will require the following corrective action and/or improvement.  All of the issues raised in the May 13, 2011 letter have been adequately addressed.  The following points represent outstanding issues from the June 9th inspection that QAI needs to have clarified. Please address each item within the noted time frame.

Within 30 Days - Request for More Information

Prior to issuing an organic certificate, QAI requests further information in order to assess compliance. Please provide this information within Thirty Days (30 days) of receipt of this letter:

		Number

		



		Description 

		During the annual inspection on March 17, 2011, the following observations were noted: 


- The pasture season started 46 days late; on December 14th due to planting and irrigation delays and that the grazing season was interrupted due to a historic period of low temperatures (down to16 degrees F) in December.

- DM intake from pasture for various groups this grazing season ranged from zero during certain portions of the month to 20%. 

- Up until the time of inspection, average DMI from pasture was below the 30% requirement.

- The Livestock Farm Profile (LFP) defines the grazing season as 137 days. 

- Animals had grazed only 58 days. 

In email dated March 25, 2011 it was stated that Shamrock Farms intended to extend the grazing season until the end of May 2011.  To further evaluate Shamrock Farms’ compliance after the extended grazing season had ended, a re-inspection took place on June 9, 2011.  During the re-inspection, the following observations were noted:


- Based on the records audited and the documentation provided in the OSP and correspondence with QAI, not all eligible animal classes in the operation would have complied with the new pasture rule as noted in the attached Total Dry Matter Intake from Pasture 2010-2011 summary.  


- In 2011 many grazing days were lost from a historic frost and not establishing fall grazing.

In addition, the Total Dry Matter Intake from Pasture 2010-2011 notes that during the grazing season:


- High Milk Cows received 26% DMI from pasture;

- Low Milk Cows received 27% DMI from pasture;

- Dry Cows were on pasture for 82 days.

On February 12, 2010, several sections of the NOP were modified and published. These changes directly affect previously certified organic livestock operations effective June 17, 2011. Specifically, 205.237 (c) requires that: 

a.
Ruminant animals must be grazed throughout the entire grazing season for the geographical region, which shall be not less than 120 days per calendar year. Due to weather, season, and/or climate, the grazing season may or may not be continuous. 

b.
Producers shall provide pasture of a sufficient quality and quantity to graze throughout the grazing season and to provide all ruminants under the organic system plan with an average of not less than 30 percent of their dry matter intake from grazing throughout the grazing season. 

c.
Currently certified livestock operations must comply with this new Regulation as of June 17, 2011. 


 A pasture plan that meets the requirements of the NOP regulations effective June 17, 2011 must be reviewed and approved by QAI prior to implementation and updated by Shamrock Farms and QAI as needed on an on-going basis. 




i.
As such, please provide to QAI for review a written description of how pasture access and grazing will be further improved to ensure that organic livestock graze at least 120 days per calendar year and receive at least 30% of their dry matter intake from grazing throughout the grazing season.


ii.
Be sure to specifically address how you will ensure that High Milk Cows and Low Milk Cows will receive at least 30% DMI from pasture.


iii.
Be sure to specifically address how you will ensure that Dry Cows receive at least 120 days on pasture.


iv.
Please confirm that you will notify QAI in writing of any variance from your approved pasture plan at the time the variance occurs. 





		Compliance 

		NOP - Livestock (Dairy)



		Standard Clause 

		7 CFR 205.237 (c)



		Issue Date 

		20-Jun-2011



		Due Date 

		





Within 90 Days

Please include a written response to each item within Ninety Days (90 days) of receipt of this letter. If the 90 day due date is past the start of your renewal cycle, responses to each point will be required before we can begin the renewal process. 

		Number

		



		Description 

		During the recent midyear inspection, the following observations were noted:


- All of the data provided was validated except for the heifers.  


- These (heifers) are combined from pens 14 and 5 according to their life stage/breeding cycle.  


- Pen 5 was not provided, as many days on pasture as pen 14 so in theory, these two pens should have been split out. 


- There is no Monthly Pasture Dry Matter Intake sheet for the Hospital and the fresh pen.

A record keeping system must accurately document outdoor access for each type and class of animal, both during and outside the grazing season, including temporary confinement.  


Please provide to QAI for review:

a.
A description of how record keeping will be improved to ensure that days on pasture and Dry Matter Intake from pasture are accurately recorded on the Total Dry Matter Intake from Pasture summary for each class and/or sub-class of animal;

b.
Written confirmation that pens, which are managed differently or receive different grazing days on pasture, will be listed out as different sub-classes on the Total Dry Matter Intake from Pasture document and any other relevant profile forms;

c.
Written confirmation that recordkeeping, such as the Monthly Pasture Dry Matter Intake, will be updated to account for and track all animals, including those in the Hospital and Fresh pen.



		Compliance 

		NOP - Livestock (Dairy)



		Standard Clause 

		7 CFR 205.201(a)(4), 205.103(b)(2), (b)(4)



		Issue Date 

		20-Jun-2011



		Due Date 

		





We at QAI appreciate your effort and dedication to the organic process and look forward to continuing to work together. Deficiencies requiring correction within 7, 15 or 30 days must be addressed before we can resume consideration of your certification. If an adequate response is not received within the specified time, we will assume you no longer wish to be certified by QAI, and a Notice of Proposed Suspension of your certification will be issued. Responses must be sent to the corporate office in San Diego via a delivery service that provides dated return receipts. 

If you have any questions, please contact me by phone (858-200-9718) or fax (734-827-3896).

Sincerely,

[image: image1.jpg]Gbe Chu,






John Joseph

Certification Project Manager

cc:

Inspector: Stanley Edwards
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If you have questions regarding this proposed action or how to file an appeal, you may contact
Dr. Ruihong Guo at Ruihong.Guo@ams.usda.gov or by telephone at (202) 720-3252.

Sincerely,

Barbara C. Robinson, Ph.D.

Acting Director

National Organic Program

cc: Mark Bradley, Chief, Accreditation, Auditing, & Training Branch
David W. Trykowski, Director, Compliance, Safety and Security

R. Guo Barbara C. Robinson

—


mailto:Ruihong.Guo@ams.usda.gov

United States
Department of
Agriculture

T

USDA

Agricultural
Marketing
Service

Subject: NOPC-003-09

Dear

Agricultural
Marketing
Service

Notice of Noncompliance

1400 Independence Avenue, S.W.
STOP 0268, Room-2646S
Washington, D.C. 20250-0268




If you have questions regarding this notice of noncompliance or the suitability of proposed
corrective actions, please contact me or Dr. Ruihong Guo, Director, Compliance & Enforcement
Division at Ruihong.Guo@ams.usda.gov or by telephone at (202) 720-3252.

Sincerely,

Miles McEvoy
Deputy Administrator
National Organic Program

cc: Mark Bradley, Chief, Accreditation, International Activities Division
Samantha Simon, Auditing Review & Compliance Branch, Livestock & Seed Programs

R. Guo Miles McEvoy

—
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